
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford East Area 
Committee to be held on Thursday, 5 July 2018 at 6.00 
pm in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors

LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT BRADFORD INDEPENDENT GROUP

I Greenwood
H Khan
Salam
Shafiq

R Ahmed
Humphreys
Stubbs
Ward

Sajawal

Alternates:

LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT BRADFORD INDEPENDENT GROUP

Iqbal
Jamil
I Khan
Mir

Griffiths
N Pollard
Reid
J Sunderland

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact 
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. 
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be 
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.

Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in 
under Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.
From: To:
Michael Bowness
Interim City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Fatima Butt/Tracey Sugden
Phone: 01274 432227/434287
E-Mail: fatima.butt@bradford.gov.uk/tracey.sugden@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



2

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34) 

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR (Standing Order 35) 

To appoint a Chair for the Municipal Year 2018/2019.

3.  APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR (Standing Order 35) 

To appoint a Deputy Chair for the Municipal Year 2018/2019.

4.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.



3

5.  MINUTES 

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2018 be signed 
as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Tracey Sugden – 01274 434287)

6.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Tracey Sugden - 01274 434287)

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is 
the responsibility of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in 
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Tuesday 3 
July 2018.

(Tracey Sugden – 01274 434287)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

8.  ANNUAL UPDATE ON ROAD SAFETY IN BRADFORD EAST 

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “A”) will update 
Members on current casualty levels and trends in Bradford East and on 
the Road Safety education, training and publicity initiatives aimed at 
reducing casualties.



4

Recommended – 

(1) That the information in respect of casualty trends and road 
safety activities in Bradford East be noted.

(2) That the evidence based approach to determining road 
safety priorities continue to be supported.

(Sue Snoddy – 01274 437409) 

9.  27 WINGFIELD MOUNT, BRADFORD - REQUEST FOR A 
DISABLED PERSONS PARKING PLACE 

The Committee is asked to consider Document “B”, a report of the 
Strategic Director, Place which outlines an application for a disabled 
persons parking place where an objection has been received.

Recommended – 

(1) That the Bradford East Area Committee determines whether 
to overrule or uphold an objection to a requested Disabled 
Persons Parking Place at 27 Wingfield Mount.

(2) That the applicant and objector be informed accordingly.   

(Andrew Smith – 01274 434674)

10.  PETITION - WESTFIELD LANE, BRADFORD 

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “C”) outlines a 
petition that has been received which requests the closure of Westfield 
Lane.

The petition states that “Westfield Lane, BD10 ,Bradford has become a 
dangerous to the public “rat run” existing measures have not been able 
to address the chronic vehicle speeding and associated dangerous 
driving on Westfield Lane. The disregard towards the highway code on 
Westfield Lane has increased the risk of personal harm or fatality 
beyond what is called reasonably practical. We the undersigned are 
concerned citizens who urge Bradford Council to close Westfield Lane 
to through traffic to improve the safety and quality of life for all who live 
and walk on Westfield Lane.”

The report also explains the data that has been collected in respect of 
the speed and volume of traffic using Westfield Lane.
 



5

Recommended – 

(1) That no action be taken on the request for a closure of 
Westfield Lane.

(2) That the petitioner be informed accordingly.

(Andrew Smith – 01274 434674)

11.  SAFER ROADS DEVOLVED BUDGET 

Previous Reference: Executive, 12 June 2018

Members are asked to consider Document “D” which updates the 
Committee on changes to the appointment of the Safer Roads Budget 
(recently approved by the Executive) and seeks approval for a 
programme of schemes in Bradford East for 2018/19. 

Recommended - 

(1) That the changes to the apportionment of the Safer Roads 
budget (approved by the Executive on 12 June 2018) be 
noted.

(2) That a programme of Casualty Reduction schemes for 
2018/19 listed in Appendix 1 be approved.

(3) That the proposed programme of Traffic Management 
schemes for 2018/19 listed in Appendices 2 and 3 be 
approved.

(4) That any Traffic Regulation Orders, or any legal procedures 
linked to the processing of traffic calming measures or 
pedestrian crossing facilities which are necessary to 
implement the chosen schemes be approved for 
processing and advertising subject to the scheme details 
being agreed with the local Ward Members.

(5) That any valid objections to the advertised Traffic 
Regulation Orders, traffic calming or pedestrian facilities be 
submitted to this Area Committee for consideration or in 
the event of there being no valid objections the Traffic 
Regulation Orders be sealed and implemented and the 
traffic calming or pedestrian facilities be implemented as 
advertised.



6

(6) That the previously approved schemes for Shipley-Airedale 
Road/Barkerend Road and Killinghall Road/Fagley Road (as 
detailed in paragraph 3.1) and Kings Gate (as detailed in 
paragraph 3.2) be formally abandoned.

(Andrew Smith – 01274 434674)

12.  COMMUNITY CHEST BUDGET ALLOCATION 2017/18 AND 
COMMUNITY CHEST GRANTS FUNDING 2018/19 

Document “E” outlines the allocation of the Community Chest Budget 
for the financial year 2017/18 and asks Members to consider the make 
up of the Grants Advisory Group in the Bradford East Area for 2018/19.

Recommended – 

(1) That the allocation of Community Chest Grants to local
           groups in the Bradford East Constituency for the financial
           year 2017/18 be noted.

(2) That a 20018/19 Grants Advisory Group made up of the
           Chair, Deputy Chair and Opposition Spokesperson be
           established.

(3) That the Area Co-ordinator be asked to submit a report on
           the allocation of Community Chest Budget to local groups
           in Bradford East at the end of the financial year 2018/19.

(Daren Parr – 01274 431066)

13.  BRADFORD EAST WARD PLANS 

The Assistant Director of Neighbourhood and Customer Services will 
submit Document “F” which reports on the draft Ward Plans for the 
Bradford East Area covering the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.  
In addition the report provides an update on progress of actions 
undertaken supporting the delivery of Bradford East Ward Plan 
priorities for 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

Recommended-

(1) That the six Ward Plans for 2018 – 2019 be approved and 
adopted.

(2) That Council Officers, partner agencies and community 
organisations be requested to support the implementation 
of the six Ward Plans for 2018 - 2019. 



7

(3) That the Area Co-ordinator reports back to this Committee 
on the progress in addressing the priorities contained in 
the Ward Plans for 2018 - 2019. 

(4) That the progress of actions undertaken supporting the 
delivery of Ward Plan priorities for the period between 1 
April 2017 and 31 March 2018 be noted. 

(Ishaq Shafiq – 01274 431066)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 5 July 2018  
 
 

A 
Subject:   
 
Annual update on Road Safety in Bradford East  
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report seeks to update members on current casualty levels and trends in Bradford 
East and on the Road Safety education, training and publicity initiatives aimed at reducing 
these casualties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
Steve Hartley  
Strategic Director Place 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning & Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Sue Snoddy 
Team Leader Road Safety 
Phone: (01274) 437409 
E-mail: sue.snoddy@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment and Waste Management 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8/



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report seeks to update members on current casualty levels and trends in 
 Bradford East and on the Road Safety education, training and publicity 
 initiatives aimed at reducing these casualties. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 A report on proposals for the devolution of Road Safety funding was considered by 

the Bradford East Area Committee on 22 November 2012. At the meeting members 
resolved to support an evidence based approach to determine Road Safety 
priorities. It was also resolved to present an annual ‘State of the Nation’ style report 
detailing casualty numbers/trends and details of ongoing and proposed road safety 
education, training and publicity initiatives to the Area Committee. 

 
2.2 The West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan set a target to reduce the number of 
 fatal and serious road casualties in West Yorkshire by 50% by 2026.  This reduction 
 target uses the 2005 – 2009 average figure as a baseline.  For the  Bradford district 
 this equates to a reduction from 248 to 124 casualties. 

2.3 A ‘Road Casualties’ report is published annually. Based on Police Road Traffic 
Collision records the report identifies casualty reduction priorities for the District. 
This report takes into account the most recent full year data available, i.e. 2017, 
and trends in comparison to preceding years. 

2.4 In 2017 there was an overall decrease in casualties in the Bradford District and 
 the long term downward trend has been maintained.  This mirrors the long term 
 downward trend for West Yorkshire.  Appendix 1 shows the present position for 
 the Bradford District.   

2.5 In Braford East there was an overall decrease in casualties and, as with the District, 
the long term trend is downward. Appendix 2 shows the present position for 
Bradford East.    

2.6 Public Health (PH) now provides financial support for the Road Safety Team.  An 
Inter Departmental Agreement has been agreed linking the Road Safety Team 
programme with PH outcomes which include; killed and serious injuries, hospital 
admissions caused by unintentional injury, infant mortality and mortality rate from 
causes considered preventable.   

2.7 The Road Safety Team operates on a district-wide basis. Staff and financial 
resources are allocated to education, training and publicity programmes based on 
priorities identified for greatest impact on casualty reduction. Between August 2017 
and July 2018 the team delivered the programmes set out in Appendix 3.  These 
programmes  are highlighted in the Bradford Metropolitan District Road Safety Plan, 
which is supported by the Area Committees.  

2.8 Car occupants account for the highest number of casualties and are targeted  

 

Page 2



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
  

through publicity campaigns and enforcement.  Education and training initiatives, 
delivered at local level, target the 0-19 age group through work with schools, other 
educational establishments, youth organisations, multi-agency partnerships and 
Area Coordinator teams. 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Engagement with schools 

3.1 The team provides a three tier district wide service.  The first tier is where schools 
in the top eight wards with the highest child casualties are targeted. The second tier 
is the delivery of presentations by the team which are booked on a first come first 
served basis.  The third tier is the provision of resources and information for all 
schools which does not need a road safety officer to deliver.  Appendix 4 shows the 
first and second tier engagement with schools by ward, based on a two year 
rotation.  

 Activities in Bradford East during 2017 - 2018 

3.2 In Bradford East activities in primary schools focused on pedestrian safety sessions 
and there was a strong take up for the practical pedestrian training for Year 3.  A 
number of schools also ran Bikeability courses.  There was also a strong take up of 
Theatre in Education performances by secondary schools for Year 7 which 
addressed pedestrian safety.  

 
3.3 In 2018 - 2019 the team, will continue to address key issues in Bradford East  

identified from the Annual Road Casualties Report, through the activities 
outlined in Appendix 3.  

3.4 Given the relatively small data set for user and demographic groups for individual 
 constituencies, district wide casualty data is more generally used to inform some 
 intervention priorities.  

3.5 The West Yorkshire Safer Roads Delivery Group, which comprises of Road Safety 
Officers from each district, the police and Fire and Rescue, delivers regional road 
safety campaigns which are data led. Analysis of casualties and causation factors 
has continued to highlight the vulnerability of 11-12 year old pedestrians with failure 
to look properly being a major contributory factor. This was addressed through 
Theatre in Education targeting year 7 students.      

 Safer Roads schemes 

3.6 The Traffic & Highways Area Teams deliver a programme of Safer Roads 
engineering measures such as traffic calming, pedestrian and cycle facilities, speed 
limit reductions and parking management. These schemes are funded through the 
Single Transport Plan and are largely evidence-based to ensure best value in terms 
of casualty reduction. The Safer Roads schemes programmes are the subject of 
separate reports to the Area Committees.  

Page 3



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The Road Safety budget allocation for education, training and publicity resources 
 for 2018/19 is £33,700.  This also covers contributions to wider West Yorkshire and 
 Yorkshire and Humber campaigns and initiatives that have an impact on the 
 Bradford District. 
 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 Budget spend on Road Safety is currently prioritised against overall district casualty
 reduction priorities which are based on analysis of statistical data relating to road 
 casualties.  This analysis, underpinned by the District Road Safety Plan priorities, is 
 used to establish key themes of a district-based approach for the following 12 
 month period.  It is anticipated that a failure to maintain this approach would have a 
 detrimental effect on future casualty prevention/reduction.   

5.2  Without continued strategic use of resources the ability of the Council to achieve 
 value  for money through procurement savings as well as participating in 
 partnership  working on West Yorkshire and Yorkshire and Humber campaigns, 
 initiatives and events would be at risk. 

 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 The ongoing activities of the Road Safety team contribute to the Council’s duties 
 under the Road Traffic Act 1988. 

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
 The Road Safety Team provides a diverse range of road safety programmes and 
 activities that engage with individuals from across the Bradford East area.  
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Improvements in road safety conditions encourage a shift to more sustainable 
 transport modes. 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

 Any increases in walking, cycling or public transport use encouraged by road safety 
improvements would have a positive impact on reducing Greenhouse Gas 
emissions. 

 

 

Page 4



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The work of the Road Safety team contributes towards improving community safety 
in the following areas: 

 Drivers and passengers – speed, seatbelt wearing 

 Pedestrian safety 

 Vulnerable road users: children, cyclists; and motorcyclists 

 Safety around schools 

 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 None 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The information in this report is relevant to all wards. 
 
7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS  
 

Road Safety Team activities contribute to the Safer Communities priorities within 
the Bradford East Ward Plans.  Through education, training, publicity and 
partnership working with other agencies and local people, the Road Safety Team 
address pedestrian safety, safer and responsible driving, and parking issues 
particularly around schools. 

 
7.9 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING 
 
 None 
 
7.10 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 
 None 
 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 That the Bradford East Area Committee identifies additional priority areas that could 

be addressed by the Road Safety team as part of their annual programme.  

 

Page 5



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the information in respect of casualty trends and Road Safety activities in 

Bradford East be noted.    

10.2  That the evidence based approach to determining Road Safety priorities continue to 
be supported. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix 1 – Road Casualties Bradford District 2012 to 2017  

11.2 Appendix 2 – Road Casualties Area Committee: Bradford East 2012 to 2017 

11.3 Appendix 3 - Road Safety Education Training and Publicity Programmes  

11.4 Appendix 4 – Engagement with schools by ward   

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Devolution Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 6



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
 

Page 7



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 

 

 APPENDIX 1 

P
age 8



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 

 

 APPENDIX 2           
AAPPENDIX 
2 

P
age 9



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
APPENDIX 3 

 
ROAD SAFETY EDUCATION TRAINING AND PUBLICITY PROGRAMMES 
 
Resources  
  

 Starting School and Transition  

 School Gate Parking information, banners and boards 

 Be Bright Be Seen (Early years centres, schools, Mosques and Madrassas) 

 Getting around safely In the car – Annual circulation through schools 

 Getting around safely together road safety book - Annual circulation through Health 
Visitors 

 Information for Mosques and Madrassas  
 
Early Years and Primary School Sessions 
 

 Childrens Centres/Nursery/Reception – Getting around safely together story 

 Childrens Centres/Nursery/Reception – Getting around safely In the car story and 
Role Play 

 Year 1 and 2 – Role Play  

 Year 3 – Pedestrian Training – Practical on road skills 

 Year 3 and 4 – Role Play ‘It’s Your Choice (pedestrian safety )  

 Year 5 and 6 – Charlie’s Accident 

 In Car Safety – Years 1 - 6 

 Cycling skills and Bikeability training  

 Parent/Carer Sessions 

 Car Seat Checks and information sessions 
 
Secondary School  
 

 Year 7 – Theatre in Education (Pedestrian Distractions) 

 Year 12/13 – First Car Resource 
 
Publicity 
 
Drivers, passengers, adult cyclists, motorcyclists and pedestrians are targeted 
through publicity activities.  Press releases, tweets, advertising on buses, radio, JC 
Decaux boards, and leaflets are used to put out key messages related to seat belt 
wearing, speed, the use of mobile phones, drink and drug driving, distractions and 
awareness of other road users.   
 
The team work with the other West Yorkshire and Yorkshire and Humber authorities 
on publicity campaigns and support the Governments ‘Think’ campaigns.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 10



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
National and Local Partnership Events and Initiatives 
 

 Child Safety Week 

 Brake Road Safety Week 

 Stay Safe  

 Positive Lifestyle 

 Summer Holiday Programmes 

 Area Coordinator Team Initiatives 

 NHS Wheelchair Tests 

 Car Seat Training Sessions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Page 11



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
APPENDIX 4 

 

Engagement with schools by ward  2018  
 

Black Text - Schools participating in sessions offered                                        
Red Text - Priority Schools not participating in sessions offered  
Blue Text -  Other schools not participating  in sessions offered  
 

1 CITY (West) 
All Saints CE PS, Copthorne PS, Farnham PS, Horton Grange PS, Princeville PS, St William’s RC PS, St 
Joseph’s RC PS, Princeville CC, Dixons Music PS,  Dixons Trinity Academy, Dixons McMillan Academy, St 
Edmund’s Children Centre 

2 BOWLING AND BARKEREND (East) 
Barkerend PS, Bowling Park (Usher St Site), Lower Fields PS, Carlton Bolling College, Olive, Bradford 
Academy, Barkerend CC, Fearnville PS, Feversham Primary, Westminster CE PS,  Oastler Special, The 
Children’s Place Day Nursery, Bradford Forster Academy 

3 BRADFORD MOOR (East) 
Byron PS, Dixons Marchbank Academy,  Killinghall PS,  St Mary’s & St Peter’s Catholic,  Thornbury PS,  
Lapage PS, Delius Special, Laisterdyke Business & Enterprise College 

4 MANNINGHAM (West) 
Abbey Green Nursery & Children’s Centre,  Midland Road Nursery & Children’s Centre,  Atlas PS, Green 
Lane PS, Iqra PS, Miriam Lord PS, Dixons Manningham Primary Academy, Westbourne PS, Oasis 
Academy Lister Park,  Bradford Grammar, One in a Million Secondary 

5 BOLTON AND UNDERCLIFFE (East) 
Wellington PS, Swain House PS, Grove House PS, Poplars Farm PS, Peel Park PS, St Francis RC PS, Hanson 
Upper, Feversham College 

6 KEIGHLEY CENTRAL (Keighley) 
Eastwood PS, Holycroft PS, Keighley St Andrew’s CE PS, St Anne’s RC PS, St Joseph’s RC PS, Victoria PS, 
The Holy Family Catholic, University Academy Keighley, Keighley College, Beechcliffe Special Secondary 

7 LITTLE HORTON (East) 
Bankfoot PS,  Newby PS,  Horton Park PS,  Marshfield PS,  St Stephen’s CE PS,  Bowling Park, Crystal 
Gardens (Greave St),  Eternal Light,  The Fountain,  Canterbury Nursery School & CC, Burnett Field’s CC,  
Dixons City Academy, Rainbow Primary 

8 TOLLER (West) 
Lilycroft Nursery, Girlington PS, Lilycroft PS, Lister PS, Margaret McMillan PS, St Cuthbert & The First 
Martyr’s Catholic PS, St Philip’s CE PS, Whetley PS,  St Edmunds Nursery & Children’s Centre,  Farcliffe & 
Lilycroft Children & Family Centre, Lady Royd Prep School, Bradford Girls Grammar (KS1&2), Bradford 
Girls Grammar (KS3&4) 

9 TONG (South) 
Carrwood PS, Knowleswood PS, Newhall PS, Ryecroft PS, St Columba’s RC PS, St John’s CE PS, 
Woodlands CE PS, Tong High 

10 GREAT HORTON (South) 
Brackenhill PS, Hollingwood PS, Lidget Green PS, Southmere PS, St Oswald’s CE PS, Grange Technology 
College, Southfield School (Special), Dixons Kings Academy 

 WIBSEY (South) 
St Matthew’s CE PS, St Paul’s CE PS, St Winefride’s RC PS, Wibsey PS 

12 HEATON (West) 
Frizinghall PS, Beckfoot Heaton (Heaton PS), Heaton St Barnabas CE PS, Beckfoot Upper Heaton (Belle 
Vue Boys), Belle Vue Girls, St Bede’s & St Joseph’s Catholic College, High Park School, Chellow Heights 
Special, The Children’s Place Day Nursery Heaton 

 WYKE (South) 
Low Moor CE PS, Shirley Manor PS, Worthinghead PS, Appleton Academy (Primary), Appleton Academy Page 12



                                                                                               Bradford East Area Committee 
(Secondary), Wyke Children’s Centre 

14 BINGLEY RURAL (Shipley) 
Cottingley Village PS , Cullingworth Village PS, Denholme PS , Harden PS, Wilsden PS, Beckfoot, Samuel 
Lister, Parkside, Hazelbeck School (Special Secondary)  

15 ROYDS (South) 
Farfield PS, Hill Top CE PS, Reevy Hill PS, Woodside PS, Buttershaw Business & Enterprise College 

16 THORNTON &  ALLERTON (West) 
Beckfoot Allerton Primary (Allerton PS), Keelham PS, Ley Top PS, Sandy Lane PS, The Academy at St 
James (St James’ Church PS), St Matthew’s RC PS, Thornton PS, Beckfoot Thornton Academy (Thornton 
Academy) 

17 ECCLESHILL (East) 
Cavendish PS, Holybrook PS, Our Lady & St Brendan’s RC PS , St Luke’s CE PS, Fagley PS, St Clare’s RC PS, 
Fagley CC, Gateway CC 

 KEIGHLEY WEST (Keighley) 
Ingrow PS, Laycock PS, Merlin Top PS, Nessfield PS, Our Lady of Victories RC PS, Worth Valley PS, 
Rainbow CC, Beckfoot Oakbank Academy (Oakbank), Beckfoot Phoenix Primary Special School 

 WINDHILL & WROSE (Shipley) 
High Crags PS, Low Ash PS, Christchurch Academy, Owlet Children & Family Centre, Bradford Christian 
School, St Anthony’s RC PS 

20 QUEENSBURY (South) 
Foxhill PS, Home Farm PS, Russell Hall PS, Shibden Head PS, St John the Evangelist RC PS, Stocks Lane PS, 
Queensbury (Secondary) 

21 IDLE AND THACKLEY (East) 
Greengates PS, Parkland PS, Thorpe PS, Thackley PS, Blakehill PS, Idle CE PS, Immanuel College,  
Parkland CC 

22 SHIPLEY (Shipley) 
Hirst Wood Nursery, Glenaire PS, Saltaire PS, Shipley CE PS, St Walburgas RC PS, Wycliffe CE PS, Titus 
Salt 

23 CLAYTON AND FAIRWEATHER GREEN (West) 
Clayton St John CE (Clayton CE PS), Clayton Village PS, Crossley Hall PS, St Anthony’s RC PS, Dixons 
Allerton Academy 

24 WHARFEDALE (Shipley) 
Burley & Woodhead CE PS, Burley Oaks PS, Menston PS 

25 CRAVEN (Keighley) 
Addingham PS, Silsden Primary (Aire View Infant/Hothfield J&I), Eastburn J&I,  Steeton PS, Daisy Chain 
CC 

 ILKLEY (Keighley) 
All Saints CE PS, Ashlands PS, Ben Rhydding PS, The Sacred Heart RC PS , Ghyll Royd, Ilkley Grammar  

27 BINGLEY (Shipley) 
Crossflatts PS, Eldwick PS, Myrtle Park PS, Beckfoot Priestthorpe PS, St Joseph’s RC PS, Trinity All Saints 
CE PS, Bingley Grammar 

 KEIGHLEY EAST (Keighley) 
Strong Close Nursery &CC, East Morton CE PS, Long Lee PS, Parkwood PS, Riddlesden St Mary’s CE PS 

 WORTH VALLEY (Keighley) 
Haworth PS, Lees PS, Oldfield PS, Oxenhope CE PS, Stanbury PS, Oakworth PS 

30 BAILDON (Shipley) 
Baildon CE PS, Hoyle Court PS, Sandal PS 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 05 July 
2018. 
 
 

B 
Subject:   
 
27 WINGFIELD MOUNT, BRADFORD – REQUEST FOR A DISABLED PERSONS 
PARKING PLACE FOLLOWING AN OBJECTION 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place where the 
application has received an objection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Ward:       5 Bowling & Barkerend 
                                                                                                                     
          

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director 
Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Smith 
Principal Engineer 
Phone: (01274) 434674 
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Regenration and Environment 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9/



 

 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1 This report considers an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place where the 
application has received an objection. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Council has received an application for a Disabled Persons Parking Place from the 
occupant of 27 Wingfield Mount. The resident who lives here is registered disabled, receives 
PIP at the higher rate, holds a current Disabled Person’s Blue Badge and has a vehicle 
registered at the property. There is no off-street parking at these premises. 

2.2 A plan showing the indicative location of a Disabled Persons Parking Place outside 27 
Wingfield Mount as Appendix 1.  

 
  
3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 The applicant has a number of on-going medical conditions which they maintain necessitates 
the provision of a disabled persons parking space.. 

3.2 As part of the Disabled Persons Parking Place application investigation process, officers 
undertake consultations with adjacent neighbours to determine if there are any objections to 
the proposal. An objection has been received to this application; the points of objection are 
summarised below: 

i. It is alleged that the applicant does not own a vehicle and that the requested parking 
space is for a relative. 

ii. It is alleged that relatives of the occupants, both living on the same street and 
elsewhere, do often park their cars outside the property. 

iii. On-street parking on Wingfield Mount is already at a premium. 
iv. The turning head at the end of the street is already used for parking and it is expected 

that this would be exacerbated by the proposal. 
v. An existing Disabled Persons Parking Place on Wingfield Mount is already used by 

vehicles not displaying blue badges, as such the objector is concern that an additional 
such space will be similarly abused.   

 

4.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1 If approved, this parking place would be implemented as part of the overall programme of 
Disabled Persons Parking Places in Bradford East in 2018/19 subject to the allocation of 
funding by the Area Committee 

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 There are no significant risks arising out of the implementation of the proposed 
recommendations. 

6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 

Page 16



 

 

6.1 The options contained in this report are within the Councils powers as Highway Authority and 
Traffic Regulation Authority. 

7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

Due regard has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act when determining the 
proposals in this report.  

7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no sustainability implications arising from this report. 

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint and 
emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report. 

7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

None 

7.6 TRADE UNION 

None 

7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

7.8       AREA COMMITTEE WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS      
 

7.8.1 None 
 

7.9 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING 
 
 None. 
 
7.10 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 
 None. 
 
 
 

8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

8.1 None 
Page 17



 

 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1 That the objection to the requested Disabled Persons Parking Place at 27 Wingfield Mount be 
overruled and the parking place be implemented in the 2018/19 financial year subject to the 
availability of funding. 

9.2 That the objection to the requested Disabled Persons Parking Place at 27 Wingfield Mount be 
upheld and no further action be taken on this request. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1 That the Bradford East Area Committee determines whether to overrule or uphold an 
objection to a requested Disabled Persons Parking Place at 27 Wingfield Mount. 

10.2 That the applicant and objector be informed accordingly. 

11.0 APPENDICES 

11.1 Appendix A –  Location Plan 

12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1 City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council File Ref:HS/TRSS/103766 

 

 

 

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of the Strategic Director Place to the meeting of 
Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 5 July 
2018. 
 
 

C 
Subject:   
 
PETITION – WESTFIELD LANE, BRADFORD 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report considers a petition requesting the closure of Westfield Lane, Bradford. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wards: 13 Idle and Thackley 
            28    Windhill and Wrose 

  
            

Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning and Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Smith 
Principal Engineer 
Phone: (01274) 434674 
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Regeneration and Environment 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10/



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  1 
26/06/2018 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1 This report considers a petition requesting the closure of Westfield Lane, Bradford. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 

Petition : Westfield Lane (79 signatures) 

2.1 The petitioners are requesting the Council to close Westfield Lane to through traffic 
to improve safety and the quality of life for all who live and work on Westfield Lane, 
Bradford. The petition states that Westfield Lane has become a dangerous through 
route and that the existing traffic measures do not address vehicle speeds and 
dangerous driving on Westfield Lane. A copy of the full wording of the petition is 
shown in Appendix 1 and a location plan is attached as Appendix 2.  

2.2 Westfield Lane is some 1.9km long stretching from Town Lane and Highfield Road 
in Idle to Wrose Road in Wrose. It is therefore partly in the Bradford East and partly 
in the Shipley Area Committee areas. Approximately 80% of the petitioners live in 
the Bradford East area. Westfield Lane is residential for the majority of its length 
except for the section from Wrosecliffe Grove to Welwyn Avenue where there are a 
stables and fields. This is where the boundary changes. There is a series of round 
top road humps on Westfield Lane between properties numbered 94 and 191, 
covering a distance of 500 metres. This section is in the Bradford East area. These 
features have been in place for over 10 years.  

2.3 There has been one recorded road incident causing slight injury in the last five 
years on Westfield Lane. This was a collision at the junction with Welwyn Avenue, 
Wrose.  

2.4 Information on the speed and volume of traffic using Westfield Lane has been 
gathered using an automatic data logger.  
 
Data was collected in October 2017 on the section of Westfield Lane to the south of 
Wrosecliffe Grove near the stables. The average volume of two-way traffic over 4 
days was 2120 (1107 in the direction of Wrose and 1013 towards Idle). The 
average speed of traffic was 26mph and 85% of traffic was travelling at or below 
30mph.  
 
Data has been collected more recently for 4 days between 17 and 20 May 2018 
(Thursday to Sunday) near the Hepworth Idle cricket ground at the Idle end of the 
road. The average two-way traffic volume was 2747 (1334 in the direction of Wrose 
and 1413 towards Idle). The average speed of traffic was 25mph and 85% of traffic 
was travelling at or below 29mph. 
 
These figures do not give cause for concern on a 30mph residential route. Also, 
given that Westfield Lane forms part of a network of roads serving sizeable 
residential areas, a significant proportion of traffic will be generated by residents 
themselves. 

 
 Page 22



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  2 
26/06/2018 

2.5 The closure of Westfield Lane would affect a large number of residents who would 
need to find alternative routes between Wrose, Shipley and Idle. All affected 
residents would need to be consulted on any potential closure and their views 
considered. The inconvenience caused would need to be weighed up against any 
envisaged benefits. Some of the alternative routes available although less rural in 
nature already give cause for concern in terms of traffic speeds and road injuries. 
Inevitably the closure of one route to through traffic will increase traffic volumes on 
other roads some of which may be equally undesirable alternative routes leading to 
requests for other through routes to also be closed.  

  
2.6 The Bradford East Area Committee only has a limited amount of funding to address 

traffic related concerns raised by residents. Priority is currently given to sites where 
there are significant numbers of road injuries and where specific engineering 
interventions are predicted to have casualty reduction benefits. There is an even 
lesser budget for traffic management measures where there are community safety 
concerns that have not necessarily materialised into a significant collisions record 
but, for instance, vehicle speeds are above acceptable tolerances. It would be 
difficult to recommend prioritisation of resources to an area with some existing 
traffic calming measures, little casualty reduction potential, and no evidence of 
excessive speed.  

 
3.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 Local ward members have been consulted. A local councillor has commented that a 
closure has been considered before but residents were against the inconvenience 
which would be caused particularly getting to Wrose. They also feel that if this went 
ahead many requests would be received for road closures from residents of other 
roads used as through routes. They suggest doing surveys and finding out what the 
public think of the idea. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

4.1 There are no financial or resource implications arising from this report. 

5.0 RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 There are no risks arising from this report. 

6.0 LEGAL APPRAISAL 

6.1 There are no legal issues arising from this report. 

7.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

Due regard has been given to Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 when 
investigating these matters. 

7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no sustainability implications arising from this report. Page 23



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  3 
26/06/2018 

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 

There is no impact on the Council's own and the wider District's carbon footprint 
and emissions from other greenhouse gasses arising from this report. 

7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no community safety implications of this report. 

7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 

None 

7.6 TRADE UNION 

None 

7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 

Ward Members have been consulted on the petition. 

7.8 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS 

None 

7.9 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING 

 None 

7.10 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 None 

8.0 NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 

8.1 None 

9.0 OPTIONS 

9.1 Members may propose alternative recommendations on which they will receive 
appropriate officer advice. 

10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

10.1 That no action be taken on the request for a closure of Westfield Lane. 

10.2 That the petitioner be informed accordingly. 

11.0 APPENDICES 

11.1 Appendix 1 – Westfield Lane - Petition. 

11.2 Appendix 2 – Westfield Lane – Location Plan. 
Page 24



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  4 
26/06/2018 

12.0 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

12.1 City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council File Ref: HS/TRSS/48233. 

Page 25



APPENDIX 1 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  5 
26/06/2018 

Page 26



Appendix 2 

HS/TRSS/48233/CH  6 
26/06/2018 

 Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
the Bradford East Area Committee to be held on 5 July 
2018 
 
 

D 
Subject:   
 
SAFER ROADS DEVOLVED BUDGET 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report updates the Area Committee on changes to the apportionment of the 
Safer Roads budget (recently approved by the Executive) and seeks approval for a 
programme of schemes in Bradford East for 2018/19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
Steve Hartley 
Strategic Director -Place 

Portfolio:   
 
Regeneration, Planning & Transport 
 

Report Contact:  Andrew Smith 
Principal Engineer 
Phone: (01274) 434674 
E-mail: andrew.smith@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Regeneration & Environment 

       Wards: All Bradford East

Page 29

Agenda Item 11/



1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates the Area Committee on changes to the apportionment of the 

Safer Roads budget (recently approved by the Executive) and seeks approval for a 
programme of schemes in Bradford East for 2018/19. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The West Yorkshire Transport Strategy 2040 was approved by the West Yorkshire 

Combined Authority (WYCA) in August 2017. In conjunction with the Strategic 
Economic Plan, the overarching aim of the strategy is “…for Leeds City Region to 
be a globally recognised economy where good growth delivers high levels of 
prosperity, jobs and quality of life for everyone.” 

 
2.2 The key objectives of the strategy are: 
 
 Economy: Create a more reliable, less congested, better connected transport 

network.  
 
 Environment: Have a positive impact on our built and natural environment.  
 
 People and place: Put people first to create a strong sense of place. 
 
2.3 In term of Safer Roads themes, the strategy includes a specific aim to reduce road 

accidents, aspiring to ‘zero tolerance’ of transport-related deaths. There are also 
aspirations to encourage walking and cycling by improving safety. 

 
2.4 The Strategy retains the casualty reduction target first introduce by the Local 

Transport Plan, i.e. a 50% reduction in the number of people killed or seriously 
injured in road collisions (KSI) by 2026. 

 
2.5 Historically there were specific budgets for the promotion of Casualty Reduction 

schemes and more general Traffic Management Measures. Following a significant 
reduction in the level of funding, this was combined into a single funding stream. 
Executive devolved the budget to the Area Committees on the basis of population 
split in October 2012, with a provision that 70% of the budget had to be allocated to 
Casualty Reduction schemes, the residual funding being available for projects 
prioritised by members.  

 
2.6 The prioritisation of funding for Casualty Reduction schemes has been an important 

contributor to the continuing downward trend in casualty rates within the district. 
This has been achieved in partnership with other interventions including Police 
enforcement and Road Safety education, training and publicity activities. However, 
the current level of funding dictates that individual Area Committees are restricted in 
the scale of projects that can be prioritised. The current system also precludes the 
development of projects of more strategic significance or on a district-wide basis. 

 
2.7 There has been a systematic addressing of locations with notable clusters of 

recorded traffic collisions. As such, the occurrence of collisions is becoming more 
sporadic and thus more difficult to target with specific area committee based 
interventions. Notwithstanding this it is acknowledged that there remains a safety Page 30



benefit in delivering traffic management schemes in areas where casualty rates are 
not necessarily high, but where there are concerns about vehicle speeds, 
severance or more general safety issues. 

 
2.8 In order to address the issues highlighted in paragraphs 2.6 and 2.7 the following 

revisions to the Safer Roads budget allocation and scheme governance systems for 
2018/19 onwards were approved by Executive committee on 12 June 2018: 

 

 Establish a top-slice of the Safer Roads budget to enable the 
promotion of strategic or district-wide projects, with the approval to 
promote such projects and consideration of any resulting objections 
being an Executive Member function. 

 

 Maintain the existing allocation for project development 
 

 Residual funding to be distributed to the Area Committees for them to 
continue promoting Casualty Reduction schemes as a priority. Each 
Area Committee will retain an indicative sum of £50,000 (per area) for 
general traffic management measures, with this figure being flexible 
when all viable Casualty Reduction projects have been prioritised. 

 
 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Safer Roads budget forms part of a package of works known as 

implementation plans (IP). These have previously been 3yr plans, however the 
current plan (IP3) is for a 5yr period. IP2 ran from 2014/15 to 2016/17; all Safer 
Roads projects in Bradford East approved for promotion in that period have now 
been completed with the exception of 2 schemes as follows: 

 

 Shipley-Airedale Road/Barkerend Road red-light violation camera – which was not 
recommend for progression by the West Yorkshire Safety Camera partnership on 
account of other planned improvement works at the junction. 

 Killinghall Road/Fagley Road junction improvement – which proved unfeasible due 
to the requirement for 3rd party land. 
 
It is recommended that these projects are formally abandoned by the Area 
Committee. 

 
3.2 The approved 2017/18 area-wide Traffic Regulation Order for Bradford East 

included an item for the installation of waiting restrictions on Kings Gate. Following 
investigations and initial consultations it was concluded that there was little 
evidence to support the installation of restrictions and that the proposal would be 
detrimental to nearby businesses. 

 
It is recommended that this proposal be formally abandoned by the Area 
Committee. 

 
 
 
 Page 31



3.3 It is recommended that the Area Committee re-affirms its commitment to 
progressing Disabled Persons Parking Places and undertaking mobility access 
improvement works by again including budgets for these within the 2018/19 
programme. The cost of any traffic surveys required to assess requests for traffic 
management measures and assist in determining future schemes programmes will 
also need to be met from this budget. 

 
3.4 It is also suggested that the successful exercise of promoting a constituency-wide 

Traffic Regulation Order, to include a number of sites where minor amendments to 
waiting restrictions have been requested, be repeated in 2018/19. (Due to the more 
extensive processes involved, it would not be feasible to include any larger 
schemes or Residents Permit Parking Schemes within the constituency-wide 
Order). 

 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The strategic schemes top-slice has been set at £120,000 for 2018/19 by 

Executive. Residual funding is allocated to the Area Committee’s based on 2011 
census population figures as follows: 

 
    

Area Population % 

    

Bradford West 22.0 

Bradford South 19.4 

Bradford East  21.8 

Shipley 18.2 

Keighley 18.6 

 
 
4.2 This apportionment results in a total budget of £122,892 for Bradford East. The 

individual budgets are therefore £72,892 for Casualty Reduction schemes and 
£50,000 for other community priority schemes 

 
4.3 The Council’s allocation for IP2 has been fully expended. As such there is no 

residual funding to allocate from that period.  
 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1 A failure to follow an evidence-based approach and prioritise schemes on the basis 

of casualty reduction potential would not meet with the overarching aims of the 
Safer Roads allocation 

 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
6.1 There are no specific issues arising from this report.  The course of action proposed 

is in general accordance with the Councils power as Highway Authority and Traffic 
Regulation Authority. The Council’s commitment to taking into account the needs of 
all road users, including those with special mobility needs, is referred to in the body 
of this report. 

Page 32



 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
 Due consideration is given to Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 when developing 

all Safer Roads schemes.  
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Safer Roads projects are designed to minimise future maintenance implications and 
the impact on the environment. 
 

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

The implementation of highway safety schemes and projects which encourage 
sustainable transport modes will potentially reduce harmful emissions. 
  

7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Safer Roads programme delivers a wide-range of projects including traffic 
calming, pedestrian crossing facilities, cycling and horse riding provision, speed 
limit reductions and junction improvements. Such measures, along with partnership 
activities, form an integral part of improving safety in local communities.  Reduction 
of community severance and community cohesion are two positive outcomes of this 
programme. 
 

7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 None 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None 
 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Respective ward members will be involved in the development of site specific 
projects. 

 
 
7.8 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING 
 
 None 
 
7.9 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT 
 
 None 
 
 
 Page 33



8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 Members may nominate alternative schemes to those recommended in Appendices 

2 and/or 3 (to the same total budget value). Officers will provide appropriate advice 
on any suggested substitutions. Any alternative sites suggested for inclusion in 
Appendix 1 will be subject to justification in terms of Casualty Reduction potential 

 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That the changes to the apportionment of the Safer Roads budget (approved by the 

Executive on 12 June 2018) be noted. 
 

10.2 That a programme of Casualty Reduction schemes for 2018/19 listed in Appendix 1 
be approved. 

 
10.3 That the proposed programme of Traffic Management schemes for 2018/19 listed in 

Appendices 2 and 3 be approved. 
 
10.4 That any Traffic Regulation Orders, or any legal procedures linked to the 

processing of traffic calming measures or pedestrian crossing facilities which are 
necessary to implement the chosen schemes be approved for processing and 
advertising subject to the scheme details being agreed with the local Ward 
Members. 

 
10.5 That any valid objections to the advertised Traffic Regulation Orders, traffic calming 

or pedestrian facilities be submitted to this Area Committee for consideration or in 
the event of there being no valid objections the Traffic Regulation Orders be sealed 
and implemented and the traffic calming or pedestrian facilities be implemented as 
advertised. 

 
10.6 That the previously approved schemes for Shipley-Airedale Road/Barkerend Road 

and Killinghall Road/Fagley Road (as detailed in paragraph 3.1) and Kings Gate (as 
detailed in paragraph 3.2) be formally abandoned. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix 1 – Bradford East Casualty Reduction Schemes – recommended 2018/19 

programme. 
 
11.2 Appendix 2 – Bradford East Traffic Management Schemes – recommended 

programme. 
 
11.3 Appendix 3 – List of minor Traffic Regulation Orders recommended for inclusion in 

2018/19 Area-Wide Traffic Regulation Order. 
 Page 34



11.4 Appendix 4 – List of requests received for Traffic Management Measures in 
Bradford East in last 5 years. 

 
11.5 Appendix 5 – List of requests received for minor Traffic Regulation Orders including 

sites recommended for inclusion in 2018/19 Area-Wide Traffic Regulation Order. 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 Report of the Strategic Director Department of Environment and Sport to the 

meeting of Council Executive 9 October 2012 – Devolution to Area Committees 
 
12.2 Report of the Strategic Director Place to the meeting of Council Executive 12 June 

2018 – Proposed changes to the Safer Roads budget allocation 
 

Page 35



 
APPENDIX 1 

 
Bradford East Casualty Reduction Schemes – recommended 2018/19 programme. 
 
Priority List 
 

 
Reserve List 
 

 
*Killed or Seriously Injured 

Site Ward Proposed Scheme 5yr Casualties  Budget Estimate 

KSI* Slight 

Valley View Grove  and 
Northcote Road 

4 Safety camera* 7 10 38,000 

Thornbury gyratory Leeds 
Road /Dick Lane approach 

6 Trief kerbs and signal loop 2 3 8,892 

Kings Road – Brisbane 
Avenue to Canal Road 

4 Reduce speed limit to 30mph 1 36 11,000 

Little Horton Lane north of 
Thornton Lane 

18 Upgrade existing zebra crossing 0 5 15,000 

    TOTAL 72,892 

  *subject to approval by the WYCRP    

Site Ward Proposed Scheme 5yr Casualties Budget Estimate 

KSI* Slight 

Cutler Heights Lane/Fenby 
Avenue 

5/25 Traffic signals (Part in Bradford South - Tong 
Ward) 

7 13 110,000 

Thornbury Road 6 Buildouts as pedestrian facilities 1 2 30,000 

Orchard Grove and Old Park 
Road 

13 Traffic calming 0 2 60,000 

      

P
age 36



APPENDIX 2 
 
Bradford East Traffic Management Schemes - recommended 2018/19 programme                  
        
 
 

Site/Scheme type Ward Proposed scheme Budget estimate 

    

Shipley Airedale Road 5 Safety barrier £15,000 

    

Traffic Regulation Orders ALL See Appendix 3 £16,000 

    

Traffic surveys ALL Traffic surveys/automatic counter deployment £5,000 

Mobility access ALL Dropped kerbs/access improvements £5,000 

DPPPs ALL Disabled persons parking places £9,000 

    

  TOTAL £50,000 

    

 
  

 

P
age 37



BRADFORD EAST AREA COMMITTEE   APPENDIX 3 

LIST OF RECOMMENDED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS   

       

      Date of latest     

Ward Location Type of Order Request Originator Comments / Problem 

  Bolton & Undercliffe         

4 Idle Road  Waiting restrictions 17-18 Internal Former QLM site - parking on footway issues 

            

  Bowling & Barkerend        

5 Corban Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Resident No change Park Map correction 

5 Cutler Heights Lane Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Limited waiting for customers (409-411) 

5 Fullerton Street Review restrictions 17-18 Business Loading bay extension 

5 Gilpin Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Sightlines in vicinity of entrance to taxi rank 

5 Lorne Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls for safety entering street from Wakefield Road 

5 Mitre Court Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Additional dyls one side from entrance 

5 Mount Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Access issues for Cemex 

5 New Augustus St, Filey St Review restrictions 17-18 Internal Pay and display unused, maintenance issue - convert to limited waiting 

5 Pollard Lane Review restrictions 17-18 Cllr Reduction in dyls adjacent to No.18 

            

  Bradford Moor         

6 Killinghall Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls to protect traffic flow past refuge at First Avenue 

            

  Eccleshill         

10 Moorside Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Replace keep clear with dyls and extend to radius of Robin Close for access 

            

  Idle & Thackley         

13 Leeds Rd and Albion St Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Internal No change Park Map correction 

13 Leeds Road Thackley Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls to protect traffic flow past new refuge near Ashfield Road 

13 Town Lane Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls at accesses to Blenheim Place for access 

            

  Little Horton         

18 Back Horton Park Avenue Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls to prevent obstruction from Little Horton Ln, adj 386 

18 Basil Street SEM 17-18 Public Canterbury Nursery and Horton Park Primary school 

18 Cousen Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Internal No change Park Map correction 

18 Defarge Court Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls at entrance to maintain access 

18 Duinen Street Loading bay 17-18 Business Loading issues associated with Rainbow School 

18 Greaves Street SEM 17-18 Internal Crystal Gardens school 

18 Marsh Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls one side at junction with Manchester Rd 

18 Parkside Road  Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Waiting restrictions opposite yard entrance to Parkside Mills 

18 Trevor Foster Way Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Waiting restrictions to maintain access 

            

P
age 38



BRADFORD EAST AREA COMMITTEE  

LIST OF REQUESTS FOR TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT MEASURES APPENDIX 4 

                     

       SURVEY ROAD TYPE  OTHER FACTORS  

W
A

R
D

 

ROAD NAME REQUEST 
EST.  
COST 

O
R

IG
IN

A
L
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

 Y
E

A
R

 

M
O

S
T

 R
E

C
E

N
T

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 

A
C

C
ID

E
N

T
S

 -
 N

U
M

B
E

R
 (

5
 y

e
a
rs

) 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 S
P

E
E

D
S

 (
H

/M
/L

) 

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 V
O

L
U

M
E

S
 (

H
/M

/L
) 

M
IN

O
R

 R
O

A
D

/ 
C

U
L

-D
E

-S
A

C
  
 

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 D

IS
T

R
IB

U
T

O
R

 

D
IS

R
IB

U
T

O
R

 /
 T

H
R

O
U

G
H

 R
O

U
T

E
 

  

S
C

H
O

O
L
 O

R
 P

L
A

Y
G

R
O

U
N

D
 

S
A

F
E

R
 R

O
U

T
E

 T
O

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 

S
H

E
L
T

E
R

E
D

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 

P
E

T
IT

IO
N

 

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

/F
O

R
U

M
 G

E
N

E
R

A
T

E
D

 

M
E

M
B

E
R

 I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 

COMMENTS 

  Bolton & Undercliffe     
                        

  

                           

4 
Idle Road (former QLM 
site) 

Lay by etc 
(bollards only) 

35000 
(6,500) 

16-17   3 M H    Y    Y    Y 
Zebra crossing enhancements 17-18, still 
parking issues 

4 
Kingsley Ave Bolton 
Ln 

Permit parking 10,000 17-18    L L Y          Y Match day residents only parking 

4 Lister Lane 
Pedestrian 
crossing 

25,000 16-17   1 M H    Y  Y       Crossing towards park 

4 Lister Lane VAS update 3,000 17-18   1 M H    Y          Existing site , sign superceded by 30 mph SLO 

4 
Stanley Rd jw Canal 
Rd 

Extend island 10,000 17-18   0 M H    Y          Police concern, 2 lanes forming at signals 

4 Vernon Place Residents Parking 10,000 14-15    L L Y            Parking issues associated with local businesses 

                                        

  Bowling & Barkerend                                     

5 
Bowling Back 
Ln/Sticker Ln 

Traffic Signals 100,000 13-14   5 M M    Y          Include one-way at Parry Lane 

5 Burras Road Traffic calming 15,000 10-11 16-17 0 L L Y    Y Y      Possible 20mph zone 

5 Wapping Road Traffic calming 45,000 11-12 17-18 0 M L    Y          Incl. North Wing - frontages 

                                        

  Bradford Moor                                     

6 
Dick Lane (Thornbury 
rbt) 

Trief kerbing and 
signal loop 

9,000 17-18   3 H H    Y          
Loss of control from Leeds Rd, maintenance 
issue for Recreation 

6 
Moorside Ln / Scaley 
St 

One way 10,000 12-13 16-17 0 L L    Y          Narrow roads, rat running to avoid signals 

6 Mortimer Row Residents parking 10,000 13-14 17-18  L L Y              

6 Thornbury Road Build-outs 30,000 12-13 16-17 3 M M Y    Y Y      Aid pedestrians crossing between school sites 

                    

                                        

P
age 39



  Eccleshill                                     

10 
Acre Avenue / Acre 
Lane 

Residents parking 10,000 13-14    L L Y            
Include buildout at junction with Stone Hall 
Road 

10 
Bradford Road (E5 
Rbt) 

Zebra Crossing 40,000 16-17   0 L H    Y          
Police request. Half in Shipley area seeking 
match funding 

10 Fieldgate Road Bollards or fence 4,000 14-15    - - Y            Vehicles overiding closure 

10 Norman Lane VAS 10,000 17-18   1 H M    Y        Y VAS each direction 

10 Osterley Grove Traffic calming 15,000 11-12 14-15 1 L L Y          Y Possible 20mph zone 

10 Pullan Avenue Ped island mods 12,000 13-14    H H    Y  Y Y      Increase size of traffic island at jcn with rbt 

10 Roundwood Glen Traffic calming 15,000 17-18   1 M L   Y           Chicane near 33 to reduce speed on bend 

10 Rowlestone Rise Traffic calming 20,000 13-14 14-15 0 L L Y              

10 Victoria Road Zebra Crossing 50,000 13-14   0 M M    Y  Y Y      Include raised table to replace existing cushions 

                                        

  Idle & Thackley                                     

13 Albion Road Residents parking 10,000 14-15 15-16  M M    Y          
Layby nearest Leeds Rd. Workers taking 
parking, 1 res 

13 
Croftlands / Green 
Lane 

Traffic calming 25,000 06-07 15-16 1 L L   Y           Minor side road leading to cul-de sacs 

13 Cross Road Traffic calming 20,000 09-10 17-18 1 L L   Y   Y Y      Access to playground 

13 
Cyprus Ave/Windhill 
Old Rd 

Point closure 10,000 13-14 17-18 0 L L   Y           Through traffic issue - 2 residents 

13 Harrogate Road Refuge island 10,000 16-17   0 M H    Y          Near Navigation Dr, help prevent overtaking 

13 Highfield Road 
Zebra 
refurbishment 

5,000 17-18   1 M H    Y          Upgrade beacons 

13 Howgate Traffic calming 15,000 13-14 14-15 0 L L   Y      Y       

13 Leeds Road Zebra crossing 20,000 14-15   3 M H    Y          Existing refuge and dyls at Apperley Lane 

13 Leeds Road, Thackley 
Zebra 
refurbishment 

5,000 17-18   0 M H    Y     Y   Y Upgrade beacons 

13 
Orchard Gr / Old Park 
Rd 

Traffic calming 60,000 12-13 17-18 1 M M   Y   Y Y    Y Include Hawthorn Dri, Bracken Edge & 20 zone 

13 Santa Monica Road Junction imp. 10,000 12-13 14-15 0 L L Y            Sightline improvement 

13 Tenterfields Traffic calming 30,000 17-18   0 L L   Y         Y Harrogate Rd to Marina and 20mph 

13 
Town Lane at 
Sherborne Rd 

Refuge island 10,000 16-17   1 M H    Y          Difficulties crossing to bus stops 

                                        

  Little Horton                                     

18 Halcyon Way Traffic calming 20,000 15-16   1 L L   Y         Y   

18 
Lindley Road side 
access rd 

Road closure 7,000 16-17   1 L L Y         Y   Closure of access road between 42 and 44 

18 Little Horton Lane Permit parking 10,000 17-18    M H    Y        Y Add permit holders to limited waiting 683-707 

18 Melba Road Traffic calming 20,000 10-11 17-18 0 L L Y        Y  Y Traffic calming adjacent to build-outs 

18 Round Street Traffic calming 20,000 07-08 17-18 0 L L   Y     Y      Bus route 

18 Seldon Street Traffic calming 20,000 13-14   0 L L Y            Traffic calming adjacent to build-outs 

                                        

P
age 40



BRADFORD EAST AREA COMMITTEE   APPENDIX 5 

LIST OF REQUESTS FOR TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS   

       

      Date of latest     

Ward Location Type of Order Request Originator Comments / Problem 

  Bolton & Undercliffe         

4 Idle Road  Waiting restrictions 17-18 Internal Former QLM site - parking on footway issues 

4 Kings Gate Waiting restrictions 16-17 Business Dyls at entrance to business park 

            

  Bowling & Barkerend        

5 Corban Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Resident No change Park Map correction 

5 Cutler Heights Lane Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Limited waiting for customers (409-411) 

5 Dryden Street Review restrictions 17-18 Business Review of restrictions near entrance to Bradford Hide Co 

5 Fullerton Street Review restrictions 17-18 Business Loading bay extension 

5 Gilpin Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Sightlines in vicinity of entrance to taxi rank 

5 Lorne Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls for safety entering street from Wakefield Road 

5 Mavis St, Seaton St area Review restrictions 16-17 Cllrs Review of restrictions incl Harewood St, Binnie St, Barlow St, Webster St, Feather Rd 

5 Mitre Court Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Additional dyls one side from entrance 

5 Mount Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Access issues for Cemex 

5 New Augustus St, Filey St Review restrictions 17-18 Internal Pay and display unused, maintenance issue - convert to limited waiting 

5 Pollard Lane Review restrictions 17-18 Cllr Reduction in dyls adjacent to No.18 

            

  Bradford Moor         

6 Barkerend Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Limited waiting to allow deliveries to Barkerend Food Store No.358 

6 Killinghall Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls to protect traffic flow past refuge at First Avenue 

            

  Eccleshill         

10 Moorside Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Replace keep clear with dyls and extend to radius of Robin Close for access 

            

  Idle & Thackley         

13 Leeds Rd and Albion St Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Internal No change Park Map correction 

13 Leeds Road Thackley Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls to protect traffic flow past new refuge near Ashfield Road 

13 Thackley Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls at 12/14 for access 

13 Town Lane Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls at accesses to Blenheim Place for access 

            

  Little Horton         

18 Back Horton Park Avenue Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Public Dyls to prevent obstruction from Little Horton Ln, adj 386 

18 Basil Street SEM 17-18 Public Canterbury Nursery and Horton Park Primary school 

18 Caledonia Street Waiting Restrictions 14-15 School Limited waiting to increase parking for school 

18 Cousen Road Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Internal No change Park Map correction 

18 Defarge Court Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls at entrance to maintain access 

18 Duinen Street Loading bay 17-18 Business Loading issues associated with Rainbow School 

18 Greaves Street SEM 17-18 Internal Crystal Gardens school 

P
age 41



18 Marsh Street Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Cllr Dyls one side at junction with Manchester Rd 

18 Parkside Road  Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Waiting restrictions opposite yard entrance to Parkside Mills 

18 Trevor Foster Way Waiting Restrictions 17-18 Business Waiting restrictions to maintain access 

            

  

P
age 42



 
 

 

 

Report of the Director of Neighbourhood and Customer 
Services to the meeting of Bradford East Area 
Committee on Thursday 5 July 2018 

 
 

E 
Subject:   
 
Community Chest Budget allocation 2017 / 2018 and Community Chest Grants funding 
2018 / 2019  

 
Summary statement: 
 
This report outlines the allocation of the Community Chest Budget for the  
financial year 2017/2018 and asks Members to consider the make-up of the Grants 
Advisory Group in the Bradford East Area for 2018/2019.  

 
 

 
 

Steve Hartley 
Director Neighbourhoods and Customer Services 
 

Portfolio:   
Corporate  
 
 

Report Contact:  Daren Parr 
Ward Officer  
Phone: (01274) 431066 
E-mail: daren.parr@bradford.gov.uk 

Improvement Committee:   
Corporate 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 12/



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 2 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report outlines the allocation of the Community Chest Budget for the  
            financial year 2017/2018 and asks Members to consider the make-up of the Grants 

Advisory Group in the Bradford East Area for 2018/2019. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The Community Chest Budget assists and enables a wide range of community initiatives 

to be developed to benefit communities in the Bradford East Area.  
 

2.2 The Community Chest Budget allocated to the Bradford East Area Coordinator’s Office 
for 2017 / 2018 was £11,500.  

 

2.3 Applications that meet the published criteria are considered from community groups and 
organisations and sometimes from individuals living and benefiting the Bradford East 
Area. 

 

2.4 The Area Co-ordinator, or designated officer, is responsible for making the decisions on 
the Community Chest applications received. These decisions are made in consultation 
with the Grants Advisory Group whose membership is made up of three Elected 
Members, reflecting the political make up of the Bradford East Area Committee. In 
previous years the Chair and Deputy Chair and the Opposition Spokesperson have made 
up the Grants Advisory Group. 

 

2.5 Interest in and the demand on the Community Chest Fund continues to be extremely 
high.  Over the years, the Community Chest Fund has been well used by local community 
and voluntary organisations and individuals.  Numerous activities and events have been 
supported which otherwise may have been difficult to run. 

 

3. Other considerations 
 

3.1 During the financial year 2017/2018, 35 applications for Community Chest Grants were 
awarded to community groups, a breakdown of which is shown in appendix A. 

 
3.2     In reviewing the Community Chest grant allocation for 2017 / 2018, it is important to note 

the high demand on the fund available to Bradford East Area Co-ordinator’s Office.  
Owing to the high demand on the limited Community Chest fund it has been a practice of 
the Bradford East Area Co-ordinator, or designated officer, in consultation with the Grants 
Advisory Group, to make a contribution towards the total cost of the activity and to only 
occasionally approve the full amount requested. 

  

4. Options 
 

4.1 That Members note the report. 
 

5. Financial and resource appraisal 
 

5.1 Financial 
 

5.1.1 In 2017/2018 the Community Chest funding allocated was £11,500 plus an additional 
£250 that was returned as not spent from the previous year. Therefore, a total of £11,750 
Community Chest funding was available.  

Page 44



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 3 

5.1.2 The 2018 / 2019 Community Chest Fund is £11,500. The Fund is frequently match 
funded by contributions from other Council Departments, external funders and fundraising 
by the local community groups applying.  

 

5.2       Staffing 
 

5.2.1 Officer support is provided from the Area Co-ordinator’s Office from within existing 
resources. 

 

6. Legal appraisal 
 

6.1 There are no legal implications. 
 

7. Other implications 
 

7.1 Equal Rights 
 

7.1.1 Community Chest Grants enable local organisations to provide activities and services in 
response to identified local needs.  Support for a range of disadvantaged groups figure in 
the award of the grant e.g. women, young people, older people, minority ethnic 
communities and those with disabilities or special needs.     

 

7.2 Sustainability implications 
 

7.2.1  Local community groups and individuals are encouraged to fundraise and apply for 
funding from  other sources, including charitable organisations.  This experience builds up 
confidence and empowers local residents. 

 

7.3 Community safety implications 
 

7.3.1 There are no Community Safety implications arising from this report. 
 

7.4 Human Rights Act 
 

7.4.1 There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations below. 
 

7.5 Trade Union 
 

7.5.1 There are no Trade Union Implications arising from this report. 
 

8. Not for publication documents 
 

8.1 There is no restriction on the publication of this report. 
 

9. Recommendations 
 

9.1 That the allocation of Community Chest Grants to local groups in the Bradford East 
Constituency for the financial year 2017/2018 be noted. 

 
9.2   That a 2018/2019 Grants Advisory Group made up of the Chair, Deputy Chair and 

Opposition Spokesperson be established. 
 
9.3     That the Area Coordinator be asked to submit a report on the allocation of Community 

Chest Budget to local groups in Bradford East at the end of financial year 2018/2019. 
 

10. Appendices 
 

Page 45



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 4 

10.1 Appendix A: Breakdown of Community Chest applications in 2017/2018. 
  

11.      Background documents 
 

11.1    None. 

Page 46



       Ward 

 

Ref Project 

 

Total 

Cost 

Amount 
Requested 

Decision 

 

 
I T 

 
CC/41/16 

PLAY NETWORK BRADFORD 
Little cooks is a 10 session, basic cooking course with children and 
young people aged 8-15yrs, to show how to use basic cost effective 

ways to cook using what they may already have in cupboards at 
home. 

 
£500.00 

 
£500.00 

 
 

£400 

 
I T 

 
CC/42/16 

SPRINGFIELD CENTRE 
For repair and re-stock sports equipment for the use of children and 

young people 

 
£500.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£400 

 
BB, BM 

 
CC/44/16 

THE ANCHOR PROJECT 
Following a litter picking campaign (already started) we will be 

awarding prizes, with a street competition element attached. There will 
be certificates and prizes, free activities promoting a healthy 

environment eg gardening, cycling and cooking. 

 
£1100.00 

 
£502.00 

 
£200 

 
 

LH 

 
 

CC/01/17 

FRIENDS OF HORTON PARK 
Organisation of a Family Fun Day, Eid Celebration and fundraiser at 
Horton Park. Aiming to raise funds towards a new project which will 
see the transformation of the pond.  Grant will be used to fund the 

group activities and outdoor marques. 

 
 

£822.25 

 
 

£500.00 

 

£150 

 
 

BB 

 
 

CC/02/17 

BRADFORD PHAB CLUB 
To promote and encourage people of all abilities to come together on 

equal terms, to achieve complete inclusion within the wider 
community.  This includes promoting and encouraging the self-

confidence and independence of young people of all abilities through a 
range of diverse activities and projects 

 
 

£1200.00 

 
 

£500.00 

 
 

£300 

 
 

IT 
 

 
 

CC/03/17 

GREENGATES BOWLING CLUB 
Towards a lawn mower to cut Greengates Bowling Green. This will be 

a 2nd hand lawn mower currently on offer at £800 yet they sell for 
approx. £2000. 

 
 

£800.00 

 
 

£500.00 

 
 

£500 

 
ALL WARDS 

 
CC/04/17 

BRADFORD PHOTOGRAPHIC SOCIETY 
Towards photo trips, frames, mounts, room hire and snacks. The aim 

of the project is to improve the health and well-being of their users 
most of whom are over 60 

 
£400.00 

 
£200.00 

 
 

£200 
 

 
ECC 

 

 
CC/05/17 

 
LET’S SING COMMUNITY CHOIR 

For running costs of the weekly choir meetings. Room hire is £20 and 

 
On-going 

 
£500.00 

 
£300 

P
age 47



       Ward 

 

Ref Project 

 

Total 

Cost 

Amount 
Requested 

Decision 

 

 the musical director £90. 

 
LH 

 
 

 
CC/06/17 

BEAUTIFUL BD5 GARDEN COMPETITION PARTNERSHIP 
Towards the cost of producing entry forms, 5 work-shops, venue and 

refreshment costs. 

 
£800.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£500 

 
ECC 

 
 

 
CC/07/17 

ECCLESHILL HORTICULTURAL SOCIETY 
Towards their Centenary Fun Day Show. The money will pay towards 

the marquee. 

 
£2500.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£400 

 
BB 

 

 
CC/08/17 

THE TICKHILL CENTRE 
To pay for a double decker coach to Blackpool Pleasure Beach as part 

of their summer activities programme.  

 
£1170.00 

 
£470.00 

 
£250 

 
 

BB 
 

 
 

CC/09/17 

NEESIE 
Towards developing a programme to allow single mothers to grow 
independently and better their lives – developing vital awareness 

sessions such as first aid, health and safety, plus health and fitness 
walks.  

 
 

£542.00 

 
 

£492.00 

 
 

£300 

 
IT 
 

 
CC/10/17 

THE MEMORY TREE CIC 
Towards the Dementia Friendly Groups annual room hire. 

 
£5390.00 

 
£480.00 

 
£480 

 
BB 

 

 
 

CC/13/17 

EAST BOWLING PENSIONERS CLUB 
The grant will be used to pay the room rent to enable them to carry out 

their activities.  

 
 

400.00 

 
 

400.00 

 
 

£400 

 
 

LH 
 

 
 

CC/15/17 

BOL LADIES GROUP 
Towards coach hire for a visit to the Houses of Parliament for a group 

of families from West Bowling. 

 
 

1050.00 

 
 

800.00 

 
 

£500 

 
BU, ECC 

 
CC/16/17 

BOLTON ST JAMES CHURCH 
Towards developing a community garden. Funding is for a community 

garden sign, block paving and an outside tap. 

 
1200.00 

 
500.00 

 
 

 
£500 

 
 

IT 
 

 
 

CC/18/17 

 
FRIENDS OF GREENGATES 

To fund festival lights for the 16ft living Christmas tree at Greengates 
War Memorial. 

 
 

600.00 

 
 

340.00 

 
 

£340 
 

P
age 48



       Ward 

 

Ref Project 

 

Total 

Cost 

Amount 
Requested 

Decision 

 

 
BU, BB, BM, 

LH 
 

 
 

CC/19/17 

 
BOWLING ALLOTMENTS AND GARDENS SOCIETY 

A start-up grant required towards anti-vandal paint and/or equipment. 

 
 

900.00 

 
 

500.00 

 
 

£500 

 
 

BB, LH 

 
 

CC/20/17 
 

CECIL GREEN ARTS 
Towards creating a theatrical story which tells a tale of migration and 

explore issues relevant to Bradford today. The money is for 40 
discounted tickets, 20 hours pay – community organiser, minibus 

hire/taxi. 

 
 

18527.00 

 
 

500.00 

 
 

£175  

 
 

IT 

 
 

CC/21/17 
 

THACKLEY CRICKET CLUB 
Thackley Christmas Celebration Event – Christmas lights switch on, 

choir and free refreshment. The money is for the Christmas tree, 
refreshments, choir fee and printing of flyers.  

 
 

400.00 

 
 

300.00 

 
 

£300 

 
 

BU 

 
 

CC/22/17 

SYDWIGCRES RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION 
Towards turning an unadopted piece of land into an oasis of plant life. 
Labour is provided by local residents. Money will be spent on BEES 

workday, plants and seeds and publicity flyers plus food and drink for 
the celebration event. 

 
 

500.00 

 
 

1500.00 

 
 

£250 

 
 

LH 

 
 

CC/23/17 

BD5 DADS & KIDS 
A weekly club for dads and kids to build stronger bonds and positive 

relationships in families. Resources for play and games, arts and craft 
materials and fruit/refreshments are required. 

 
 

500.00 

 
 

6000.00 
annually 

 
 

£400 

 
 

BB 

 
 

CC/24/17 

SHREE KRISHNA COMMUNITY CENTRE 
Towards a Diwali Christmas party for older people. The grant would go 

towards raffle prizes, finger food, Christmas crackers and a musical 
band. 

 
 

800.00 

 
 

500.00 

 
 

£400 

 
BU 

 

 
CC/25/17 

WROSE WALKING NATIVITY 
Towards audio equipment to support the annual community event 

organised by St Cuthberts Church. The Christmas Story is retold at 
various venues throughout the walk. 

 
1265.00 

 
350.00 

 
£350 

 
 
 

ECC 

 
 
 

CC/26/18 

LITTLE CHEFS 
Meet & Eat pilot at Rockwell. To target those whose lives are affected 
by loneliness and isolation; it will impact on physical, social and mental 

health. Expenditure includes food cost, room/kitchen 
hire/transport/sessional staff/barge trips@4/publicity and reporting. 

 
 
 

£5960.00 

 
 
 

£500.00 

 
 
 

£400 

P
age 49



       Ward 

 

Ref Project 

 

Total 

Cost 

Amount 
Requested 

Decision 

 

Feedback from this pilot scheme will be monitored.  

 
ECC 

 
CC/27/18 

MEN@ECCY 
Towards a 10 week programme of exercise including gentle chair 

based; pilates and tai chi. 

 
£810.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£400 

 
BU 

 
CC/28/18 

CASTAWAYS 
For the choir and theatre group hall rental.  

 
£900.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£400 

 
 

ECC 
 

 
 

CC/29/18 

RCA THE GATEWAY 
To pay for essential kitchen equipment. The café is used daily by the 

community for a healthy breakfast, lunch and evening meals. The 
grant will pay for quiche dishes, beakers, chopping boards, cutlery, 

box on wheels and a kitchen knife set. 

 
 

£492.32 

 
 

£492.32 

 
 

£200 

 
ECC & IT 

 
CC/30/18 

ENGAGING COMMUNITIES CIC 
For indoor and outdoor games. These are loaned to local community 

and voluntary groups within the BD2 & BD10 area.  

 
£361.20 

 
£361.20 

 
£250 

 
BU 

 

 
CC/31/18 

BRADFORD METHODIST HOLIDAY AT HOME 
Towards the Holiday at Home activity for lonely and isolated over 80s. 

The money will go towards trip, food, entertainment etc. 

 
£3093.00 

 
£300.00 

 
£300 

 
ECC 

 

 
CC/32/18 

BELDON ODDIES & BELDON ODDIES RESERVES 
The club is struggling to keep going and requests help towards pitch 

rent, insurance, affiliation, cups, kit and training tops. 

 
£1700.00 

 
£500.00 

 
£300 

 
ECC, IT 

 

 
CC/33/18 

GREENGATES OVER 50’s SOCIAL GROUP 
Group would like to attract new members aimed at reducing isolation 

by offering a 10 week programme of physical activities.  
 

 
£700 

 
£400 

 
£355 

 
ECC 

 
CC/34/18 

ECCLESHILL ADVENTURE PLAYGROUND 
Towards an Easter Egg Hunt with activities and easter eggs for 

children aged 5-13yrs with events taking place from 2nd to 14th April. 

 
£451.91 

 
£451.91 

 
£150 

ALL WARDS CC/35/18 BRITISH ROHINGYA COMMUNITY 
Start-up organisation – Would like to hold a community cohesion event 
to coincide with Eid festival in June / July. Event will include a range of 

activities e.g. face painting henna art and stalls.  

 
£1100 

 
£500 

 
£250 

BU, BB, BM CC36/18 BD3 UNITED 
Towards expanding football coaching and education provisions for 
young people aged 5 to 16 years at Myra Shay Playing Field. Costs 

towards publicity, room & football pitch hire and mini bus hire. 

 
£1600 

 
£500 

 
£250   

P
age 50



       Ward 

 

Ref Project 

 

Total 

Cost 

Amount 
Requested 

Decision 

 

   £11,750.00 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

Report of the Assistant Director of Neighbourhood and 
Customer Services to the meeting of Bradford East 
Area Committee to be held on Thursday 5 July 2018 

 
 

           F 
Subject:   
 
Bradford East Ward Plans 
 
 

Summary statement: 
 
This report invites members to consider draft Ward Plans for the Bradford East Area 
covering the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. In addition, the report provides an 
update on progress of actions undertaken supporting the delivery of Bradford East Ward 
Plan priorities for 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

 

Assistant Director 
Ian Day 

Portfolio:   
 
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 
 

Report Contact:  Ishaq Shafiq 
Phone: (01274) 431066 
E-mail:ishaq.shafiq@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Corporate  

 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 13/



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 2 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report invites members to consider draft Ward Plans for the Bradford East 
 Area covering the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. In addition, the report 
 provides an update on progress of actions undertaken supporting the delivery of 
 Bradford East Ward Plan priorities for 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1   Ward Plans highlight local priorities and provide a basis for tackling issues 

collectively at a local level.   
 
2.2 The method for developing priorities for Wards has been through the annual Ward 
 Assessment.  The Ward Assessment includes a wide range of key statistical 
 information about the Ward.  In addition to the statistical data, there is also a range 
 of qualitative information gained through community engagement. The 
 quantitative and qualitative information is used to establish the needs of  
 the Ward.  The Assessment also includes information about community strengths 
 and resources available to address the Ward needs.    
 
2.3  Information collated through this process has identified priorities in the Ward Plans 

that require addressing. 
 
2.4 Members in all the six wards and partners have been invited to be involved in the 

development of the Ward Plans. The Committee may wish to look to allocate 
resources at its disposal to meet the priorities contained in the Plans. The Ward 
Plans 2018 - 2019 are attached as Appendix A.  

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 3.1   The purpose of the six Ward Plans is to set out a clear list of priority issues that 

should be addressed in 2018 - 2019 in order to improve the social, economic and 
environmental conditions within the Bradford East Area. The Ward Plans will 
continue to be the subject of a refresh on an annual basis with full consultation with 
members, partner organisations and the community. 

 
3.2 Bradford East Area Committee is able to influence the Ward Plans directly by use 

of its executive powers and delegated budgets, as well as by a co-ordinator body 
and catalyst for action working in partnership. The six Ward Plans list the current 
priorities which can be amended in the light of emerging conditions and 
opportunities (e.g. devolution). 

 
4. OPTIONS 
 
4.1  That Bradford East Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this 
 report. 
 
4.2 That Bradford East Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this 
 report, with amendments. 
 
4.3  That Bradford East Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations 
 outlined in this report. 
 
5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

Page 54



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 3 

 
5.1 The production and dissemination of the six Ward Plans can be met from within 

existing resources. 
 
5.2 The priorities contained in the Ward Plans can be used to assist the Area 

Committee in its Local Area Management role and to inform the allocation of 
existing Area Committee budgets.  

 
5.3 Officer support for co-ordination to action the priorities in the Ward Plans can be 

provided by the Area Co-ordinator’s Office. 
 
5.4  The six Ward Plans will inform budget-setting processes and service-
 planning throughout the Area. 
 
5.5 The Bradford East Ward Plans will be forwarded to other key service-providers 

such as the Police and Clinical Commissioning Groups and community 
organisations to request that the Ward Plans be used to inform their own priority-
setting processes. 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
6.1 There are no significant risks arising out of the proposed recommendations 
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
           The Ward Plans will seek to address concerns that have arisen from all sections 
 of the community. 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
           Sustainability considerations should be a constant element in any actions taken to 

address the Ward Plans. 
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
           There are no Greenhouse Gas Emission implications arising from this report. 
 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
           Community safety priorities have been included in the six Ward Plans. 
 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
           There are no Human Rights implications arising from this report. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
          There are no Trade Union implications arising from this report 

Page 55



Report to the Bradford East Area Committee 

 4 

 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
           Priorities identified in the Ward Plans will benefit all six wards in Bradford East. 
 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
          There are no not for publication documents. 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1   That the six Ward Plans for 2018 – 2019 be approved and adopted. 
 
10.2  That Council Officers, partner agencies and community organisations be requested 

to support the implementation of the six Ward Plans for 2018 - 2019.  
 
10.3 That the Area Co-ordinator reports back to this Committee on the progress in 

addressing the priorities contained in the Ward Plans for 2018 - 2019.  
 
10.4 That the progress of actions undertaken supporting the delivery of Ward Plan 

priorities for the period between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 be noted.  
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix A:  Draft Ward Plans 2018 -2019. 
 
11.2 Appendix B: Ward Plan update reports 2017 - 2018 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
12.1 None 

Page 56



Appendix A – Bradford East Ward Plans 2018 and 2019 drafts 
 

Bolton and Undercliffe Ward Plan 2018 - 2019 
 

 
 

Ward Members  Cllr Michael Stelling Cllr Ian Greenwood  Cllr David Ward 

Ward Officer Ishaq Shafiq  Date completed May 2018 

P
age 57



 
Summary of the Bolton & Undercliffe Ward Assessment 

Community 
Strengths 

The Greenwood Centre is now under new management arrangements supported by Ward 
Councillors, Inspired Neighbourhoods and other partners.  A range of actions are being 
undertaken to secure investment, develop services for young people, older people and retain 
space for the wider community usage.  There are a number of community based organisations 
supported by volunteers working across the Ward.  Active citizenship is healthy in the ward as a 
whole but support for existing volunteers and to community based groups and organisations, and 
to increase volunteering, will continue to be needed.   

Clean There are far fewer incidents of littering and flytipping (dumping) than in other wards although 
people continue to perceive littering as a big problem.  There is a slightly lower than district 
average of residents using the doorstep recycling service.  Dog fouling is consistently raised as an 
issue by people.   

Safe Burglary is the main, ongoing crime across the ward along with theft of motor vehicle. Residents 
tend to be satisfied with the Police and other agencies who deal with anti-social behaviour but see 
drugs as a problem and feel unsafe after dark locally.  Speeding and inappropriate and dangerous 
parking outside schools and places of worship are regularly raised as an issue.    

Active Obesity in children entering year 6 at school is higher than the district average as is the proportion 
of people who have difficulty finding the money to heat their homes.   

Incomes employment 
and housing 

There are concerns about proposed new housing as part of the Canal Road Corridor 
improvements and the impact this will have on traffic and local services including schools and 
health.   

Children and young 
people 

Although opportunities to exist for young people to engage in positive activities such as youth 
clubs and sports, more is felt to be needed to divert them away from anti-social behaviour and 
crime.  Attainment of grades A to C in GCSE’s is lower than the district average and it is felt 
aspiration and attainment could be improved.   

Stronger 
Communities 

The population of the ward is skewed towards older people as well as more White, mixed race, 
Indian and ‘other’ ethnic groups than the district average.  The majority of community based 
groups are linked to faith organisations, mainly Churches. 

Further information There is always more that could be said about Bolton and Undercliffe.  This Ward Plan captures 
some of the key challenges, local services, community based work and is backed up by statistical 
information from West Yorkshire Observatory.   (http://www.westyorkshireobservatory.org) 

 

P
age 58



1.0 Clean 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can   

Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target  street litter – 
especially around 
schools and business 
areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure kerbside 
collections are regular, 
accessible and that 
residents are aware of 
the New ‘Bin Policy’ 
which introduces 
alternate weekly 
collections.  
 

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
front s and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when trade 
waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Young people carry out community 
litter picks.  Deliver environmental 
sessions to young people attending 
youth club sessions.  
 
Contact elderly or vulnerable 
residents or those who live with 
steps or steep drives to discuss 
collections. Offer assisted 
collections where appropriate.  
 
Ensure that bins are collected on 
schedule.  
Work to increase the number of 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
 
Recycle as much household waste as 
possible within the guidelines of the 
new bin policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward 
Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of 
Groups 
Schools 
Youth Service 
 

P
age 59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce Fly Tipping 
 
 
 
Support local 
environmental projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
Dog Fouling   

houses that have a recycle bin and 
work with residents who are not 
using the service correctly.  
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 
Working with residents and business 
to collect information and pursue 
enforcement action.  
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support the exploration of new 
project aimed at promoting clean air 
and wild life around the Undercliffe 
area.  
 
Explore innovative ways to tackle 
dog fouling. Taking examples from 
other local authorities including 
flagging dog fouling.  Consult with 
local residents in hotspot areas on 
the possibilities of a pilot scheme.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.0 Safe 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can  

Named person 
responsible 

P
age 60



2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Roadshow 
events, in partnership 
with other Wards, to 
ensure resident are 
aware of basic crime 
prevention measures, 
fire safety. This is an 
opportunity to engage 
and inform residents on 
the best ways to report 
crime.  
 
Increase young 
people’s awareness of 
community safety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disrupt the sale of 
illegal alcohol, tobacco 
and fireworks, 
especially to under age 
individuals.  
 
 
 

Develop community based forums to 
encourage people to report issues 
including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Outreach sessions to target ASB in 
Bolton and Undercliffe hot-spots. 
 
Working with young people to 
understand the consequences of 
their actions.  
 
Raise awareness of the effects of 
drugs and alcohol. 
 
Area wide detached team identified 
over bonfire weekend to work 
alongside partners.  
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 
activities to divert young people into 
positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
 
 
 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 61



2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding and 
inconsiderate parking.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To work with partners 
and the community to 
tackle drug use and 
dealing in specific “ hot 
spot” areas  in the ward 

Offer schools educational 
programmes through the Road 
Safety Team – supporting 
pedestrian safety and raise 
awareness of consequences of not 
using seat belts, child seats and use 
of mobile phones. Drivers drive and 
park more responsibly.  
 
Regular Police and Wardens 
educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the Peel 
Park, Poplars Farm and Swain 
House cluster of school as arranged 
through the Ward Partnership Team. 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 
ensure information is reported to 
police.  Positive action to be 
collected and fed back to residents 
within these identified areas. 

Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 
within as much information as 
possible. 
 
Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance mis 
use.  

3.0 Active 

 
Code 

 
Priority  

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can 

Named person 
responsible 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Actively promote and 
support activities for 
older people to reduce 
social isolation.  
 
 
 

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities 
and events and sign post 
individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use 
of local pharmacies for advice where 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 

P
age 62



 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Encourage healthy 
eating and positive 
individual behaviour life 
style changes. 
 
  

appropriate. 
 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 

community venues / community 
websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food choices 
and encouraged to exercise, stop / 
reduce smoking and manage their 
own health through self-care initiated 
actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

Third Sector 

3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ensure people can 
access the right 
support and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Link people to services to reduce 
problems with debt, changes to 
welfare reform and tackle fuel 
poverty.  Support people into 
employment – sign posting to 
employability programme 
opportunities. 
 
Raise awareness of foodbanks 
where appropriate e.g. Trussell 
Trust, Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an Integrated 
Switching Service 
 
Provide workshops for local people 
to protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to 
relevant services. 
 

Debt advice provision to be offered at 
the Greenwood Centre facilitated by 
Inspired Neighbourhoods 
 
Local foodbanks run by Church on the 
Way and St Luke’s Church. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 
InCommunities 
Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Community 
Works 
Children’s 
Centre  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 
Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

P
age 63



3.4 Increase vulnerable 
young peoples levels of 
health and wellbeing  

Girls group to be set up with a focus 
on staying safe. 
 
Run activities with themes such as 
Black History Month and LGBT 
Month. 
 
Attend events such as IDOHOBIT & 
Pride. 

 Youth Service 

3.5 Increase young 
peoples employability  

Develop volunteering opportunities 
for 16 – 25 year olds. 
 
Accredit young peoples learning. 

 Youth Service 

3.6 Shipley and Canal 
Road Area Action Plan 
– new housing. To 
ensure that local 
communities are kept 
informed and engaged 
wherever possible in on 
going regeneration 
initiatives and 
developments within 
the ward.  
 
 

Update residents by appropriate 
means, including social media and 
forums, encourage involvement in 
the planning consultation process.  
 
Ensure that Ward Plan consideration 
are reflected in developments, e.g. 
community safety, road network 
implications, provision for positive 
activity and active communities  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Residents can check planning website 
for information on applications made. 
 

Planning 
Regeneration 
Team  
Ward Officer 
Council 

4.0 Other 

P
age 64



 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can 

Named person 
responsible 

4.1 Support, encourage 
and develop 
opportunities for 
residents to volunteer 
to get involved in a 
wide range of activities 
and projects 
connecting people from 
different faiths, 
ethnicities and ages. 
 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage 
their own involvement in local 
projects.  
 
Develop a multi-faith forum for the 
ward and host multi-faith celebration 
events.  
 
Encourage residents to report issues 
to agencies and Council services 
and explore community responses 
as part of the solutions approach.  

 
Support community groups to 
access funding opportunities internal 
and external to the Council. 
 
Support local voluntary groups  

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 
solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 
groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

4.2 Ensure out of school 
activities are available 
to young people 

Deliver 3 open sessions in Bolton 
and Undercliffe. 
 
Deliver weekend provision. 
 
Deliver holiday provision. 
 
Engage in district wide events.   

 Youth 

P
age 65



4.3 Develop active 
citizenship amongst 
young people 

Engage young people in 4 youth 
voice initiatives. 

 Youth Service 

4.4. Support vulnerable 
young people 

Provide one to one support young 
people referred from CAMHS, CSE 
Hub and Early help. 
 
Provide area wide peer support 
group (R Space). 

 Youth Service 

4.5 Young people plan one 
community event 

Young people to plan a community 
day at Greenwood Community 
Centre open to all ages. 

 Youth Service 

4.6 Continue to grow 
services to support 
LGBT 

Peer Support for trans young 
people. 
 
Peer support for parents and carers 
of Trans young people. 
 
Peer Support for LGBT and young 
people. 
 
Residential opportunities for LGBT 
and young people. 
 
National conference for CYM. 
 

 Youth Service 

 

P
age 66



Bowling and Barkerend Ward Plan 2018- 2019  
 

 
 

Ward Members  Cllr Imran Khan Cllr Hassan Khan Cllr Rizwana Jamil 

Ward Officer Ishaq Shafiq Date completed May 2018 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Summary of the Bowling and Barkerend Ward Assessment 

Community 
Strengths 

The Bowling and Barkerend ward connects and leads into the Bradford City Centre and is a key gateway 
linking Leeds and Bradford.  There are strong community organisations including Community works, 
Karmand Centre, Otley Road and Barkerend Environment Group, The Anchor Project, The Vine, 
Bangladeshi Community Association and several active residents groups. Within the Karmand Centre 
there is a large outdoor cricket area run by the BD3 Sports Association. In addition, there are two 
children’s centres in the Ward which are now run independently of the Council. The school community 
provides a useful platform for engagement and gives opportunities for partnership working within 
schools.  Many of the schools have community rooms / spaces and offer a range of activities to parents 
e.g. sewing, ICT, exercise etc.  Compared to other Wards of Bradford, with the exception of the adjoining 
Ward of Bradford Moor, the area has significantly high numbers of faith buildings (mosques, temples and 
churches). The ward benefits from very strong active citizenship through the faith sector.  There are 
opportunities to increase active citizenship across the ward; in some areas this would need more support 
and encouragement, using different methods to reach the hard to reach. Some of this could be achieved 
by continuing to improve through day to day work of Council Wardens, Ward Officer, Community 
Development workers, Youth Workers, parental support workers engaging one to one with residents on 
their environmental and community safety issues, connecting them with services; also through specific 
projects\clean ups in areas where residents want to see change. This could be developed to help sustain 
the work.   There are a range of good parks and outdoor spaces Bowling Park, Beech Grove, Upper 
Seymour Street Recreation Ground, woodlands and other smaller play areas across the Ward.    

Clean Residents not taking responsibility for the cleanliness of streets, including un-adopted backstreets and 
other public spaces (dropping or not picking up litter and dumping unwanted waste items on verges 
streets and open spaces rather than using waste sites or Bulk Waste collections) remain a priority.  
Environmental issues such as street litter, feeding vermin, untidy gardens, fly-tipping and waste around 
fast food premises are commonly raised at community engagement events by Wardens, Councillors and 
other community groups and also remain a significant issue across the ward.  Trade waste containment 
and litter from fast-food take-away premises continue to be a big issue particularly along key gateways 
such as Leeds Road, Barkerend Road, Killinghall Road and associated side streets. There has been an 
increase in new food businesses.  Surprisingly, 91.2% of people in the Ward are overall satisfied with the 
local area and this is higher than the Bradford East Area and District averages of 80.5% and 86.8 
respectively.  Residents who perceive litter or rubbish as a problem at 30% is relatively higher than the 
District average (26.2%) but below the Bradford East Area average (26.2%). The percentage of streets 
failing on litter is high for the Ward (23.2%) compared against the Bradford East area (19.1%) and 
double the district average (11.8%).  The ward ranks top in the district for reported fly-tipping the 

P
age 68



Bradford District as more residents are now logging complaints formally with the Council. The number of 
fly-tipping hotspots has actually decreased as residents are more informed about how to report 
environmental concerns to the Council.   

Safe Overall there has been a downward crime trend across the ward i.e. less crimes. However, the 
percentage of overall crime ranks the Ward in the top five within the district wide. Most community 
tensions raised within the ward relate to perceptions of high levels of anti-social behaviour associated 
with driving, speeding and parking as well as drugs related activities. Low levels of engagement between 
residents and local services makes creating positive changes in deprived communities more difficult. 
Previous user satisfaction survey highlights the percentage of people who are satisfied with how the 
Police dealt with the issue they reported (86.9%) ranked the Bowling and Barkerend the top most 
satisfied Ward against other Neighbourhood Policing Teams (NPTs).   

Active The all age, all cause mortality rate per 1000 population is higher than the Bradford East average and 
district average. The diabetes hospital admission ranks the high across the district. This is reflective of 
the population make up for the ward.  Coronary heart disease mortality, people who find it difficult finding 
money to pay for heating and hot water and birth rates are high. Lack of access to NHS dentists across 
the area is an issue and people find it difficult to get GP appointments when they need them, which 
probably lead to inappropriate use of the local hospital A&E department.  People have access to 
information on healthy lifestyles (diet and exercise) but there remains much to be done to create positive 
behaviour changes that impact on health.  It is particularly difficult to engage men and Eastern European 
residents on health issues. 

Incomes 
employment and 
housing 

According to the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2011, Bowling and Barkerend has very high levels of 
deprivation.  All of the ward’s population live in neighbourhoods that fall within the 20% most deprived in 
England.  The ward is ranked 4th most deprived out of 30 wards in Bradford in terms of its average 
deprivation scores.  It also ranks badly across all seven domains which make up the multiple deprivation 
score. There is an increasing East European population drawn to the area by cheap, poor quality private 
rented housing, often with informal tenancy arrangements. There is a need for more support to make 
people job-ready and into training and employment.  In terms of housing a proportionately high number 
of privately owned homes are empty for lengthy periods compared to other areas, whilst social housing is 
popular locally with a high number of ‘bids’ per property available.   Exploitation of people in housing 
need on limited income leads to overcrowded and poor quality housing being occupied, often by central 
and eastern European migrants.  Advice services and ESOL classes help address these issues, but 
again more is needed.   

Children and The birth rate in ward is higher than the Bradford East Area and district averages.  Qualification rates for 
young people leaving school are low and work with NEET (not in employment education or training) 

P
age 69



young people young people aims to help create young people than are ready for training and employment.   
Statistically children living in poverty ranks the ward in the top five district wide.  A higher proportion of 
young people than the district average become ‘looked after’ by the Local Authority.  More work is 
needed to impact on obesity in children and young people.  Although there are a number of youth 
projects and clubs across the ward but more is needed, particularly to draw in girls and young women.   

Stronger 
Communities 

Volunteering overall is low across the Ward. However, there are many people involved with faith based 
organisations as volunteers delivering community benefit activities which might not be seen as 
volunteering by those taking part in this work. There is a need to improve active citizens within the Ward. 
There are some very successful projects in the area such as the Friends of Bowling Park who have 
developed a strong network of volunteers that take part in activities ranging from litter picking, running a 
café, gardening club to fun days and youth engagement activities. The population ethnicity mix White, 
South Asian and Eastern European communities is a challenge.  This diversity creates challenges, in an 
area where it is felt that people from different backgrounds don’t necessarily get on well or treat each 
other with respect and there are community tensions.   

 

P
age 70



 
Bowling and Barkerend Ward Plan 2018 - 2019 

 

1.0 Clean 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can  Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce street litter – 
especially around schools 
and business areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce fly tipping and 
engage more proactively 
with residents and 
partners focusing on the 
top 10 hot-spots within 
the ward  

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
fronts and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when trade 
waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Engage with Schools to tackle litter 
dropped by students.  
 
Beautiful BD3 garden competition. 
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  
 
Residents and partners engage with 
helping to organise community led 
environmental action days and 
projects.  

Ward Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of Groups 
Schools 
 

P
age 71



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support local positive 
social action 
environmental initiatives. 
 

Working with residents and business to 
collect information and pursue 
enforcement action.  
 
Explore use of CCTV to maximise 
intelligence gathering to support 
possible prosecutions. 
 
Collaborative problem solving with 
Wardens, Ward Officer, Enforcement 
Officer and Clean Team 
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support community led environmental 
action days and back street tidy ups.  

2.0 Safe 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 

Community engagement 
awareness events to 
ensure resident are aware 
of basic crime prevention 
measures, fire safety. 
This is an opportunity to 
engage and inform 
residents on the best 
ways to report crime.  
 
 
 
Tackle anti social 
behaviour within Fenby, 

Develop community based forums to 
encourage people to report issues 
including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Strengthen links between Schools and 
Police officers to tackle anti-social 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 
activities to divert young people into 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 72



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

Feather Road and 
Prospect Road areas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disrupt the sale of illegal 
alcohol, tobacco and 
fireworks, especially to 
under age individuals.  
 
Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding, inconsiderate 
parking, mobile phone 
and seat belt 
infringements.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To work with partners and 

behaviour issues particularly within the 
Undercliffe area, Leeds Road vicinity 
and Seymour Park. 
 
Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, 
escalating this where appropriate to 
Court action. 
 
Detached youth work by Youth Service 
in hotspots particularly around 
Seymour Park. 
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
 
 
Offer schools educational programmes 
through the Road Safety Team – 
supporting pedestrian safety and raise 
awareness of consequences of not 
using seat belts, child seats and use of 
mobile phones. Drivers drive and park 
more responsibly.  
 
Regular Police and Wardens 
educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the 
Barkerend Road corridor and Fenby 
Avenue as arranged through the Ward 
Partnership Team. 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 

positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 

P
age 73



the community to tackle 
drug use and dealing in 
specific hot spot areas in 
the ward. 

ensure information is reported to 
police.  Positive action to be collected 
and fed back to residents within these 
identified areas. 

within as much information as 
possible. 
 
Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance 
misuse.  
 
 

3.0 Active 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

Actively promote and 
support activities for older 
people to reduce social 
isolation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encourage healthy eating 
and positive individual 
behaviour life style 
changes. 
 
 

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities and 
events and sign post individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use of 
local pharmacies for advice where 
appropriate. 
 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 
Support the delivery of Better Start 
initiatives such as HENRY (Health 
Education and Nutrition for the Really 
Young) across the area and HENRY 
Parent Champions to spread the word. 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 
community venues / community 
websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food 
choices and encouraged to exercise, 
stop / reduce smoking and manage 
their own health through self-care 
initiated actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third Sector 

P
age 74



3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 

Ensure people can 
access the right support 
and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Substandard, 
overcrowded or empty 
homes.  

Link people to services to reduce 
problems with debt, changes to welfare 
reform and tackle fuel poverty.   
 
Support people into employment – sign 
posting to employability programme 
opportunities. 
 
Raise awareness of foodbanks where 
appropriate e.g. Trussell Trust, 
Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an Integrated 
Switching Service 
 
Provide workshops for local people to 
protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to relevant 
services. 
 
 
Council Wardens to refer overcrowded 
homes to Housing Standards Team or 
social housing organisations. 
 
Council Warden to refer substandard 
empty homes to Empty Homes Team 
or social housing providers. 

Debt advice provision offered in 
places of community interest.  
 
Community led food projects and 
luncheon clubs e.g. faith centre on 
Prospect Road hold weekly evening 
to feed the homeless supported by 
other faith and third sector partners. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Refer empty homes to the Empty 
Homes Team or local Councillors 

InCommunities 
Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Children’s 
Centres  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 
Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

3.5 
 
 
 
 

Seek to challenge low 
educational attainment, 
low aspirations and anti 
social behaviour by 
improving the offer for 

BMDC delivers weekly open access 
sessions at the Karmand Centre and 
Carlton Bolling College and holiday 
activities schemes.  
 

Partners and communities refer young 
people to youth provision 
opportunities and events. 
 
Third Sector and faith centres also 

Youth Service 
Third Sector  
Faith Centres 
Parks and 
Landscape 

P
age 75



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

young people.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deliver inclusive open 
access youth work 
sessions addressing ASB, 
challenging behaviour, 
Substance misuse, sexual 
health, healthy 
relationships and 
community pride. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provides a variety of formal and 
informal workshops addressing issues 
that young people face at youth service 
open access venues.  
 
 
 
Deliver preventative one to one and 
group sessions to young people at risk 
of CSE in the ward including work with 
the EU communities. 
 
Work with young people and families at 
low level risk of CSE in partnership with 
the CSE hub to reduce risk levels and 
increase resilience. A series of 
assessments and action plans will be 
put in place for young people and 
agreed by them and the family. Support 
young people to stick to action plans 
and engage in positive activities that 
will enhance their life. 
 
Recruit, train and enable youth and 
adult volunteers to support youth work 
sessions. 

deliver youth engagement activities 
include Emerge, The Vine Centre and 
local sports groups.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Police 
CSE Hub 
 

4.0 Other 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

P
age 76



4.1 Support, encourage and 
develop opportunities for 
residents to volunteer to 
get involved in a wide 
range of activities and 
projects connecting 
people from different 
faiths, ethnicities and 
ages. 
 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage 
their own involvement in local projects.  
 
Continue to support the multi-faith 
forum for the ward and host multi-faith 
celebration events.  
 
Encourage residents to report issues to 
agencies and Council services and 
explore community responses as part 
of the solutions approach.  

 
Support community groups to access 
funding opportunities internal and 
external to the Council. 
 
Support local voluntary groups  

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 
solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  
 
Partners host multi-faith and multi-
cultural community events.   

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 
groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

 
 
 

P
age 77



Bradford Moor Ward Plan 2018- 2019  
 

 
 

Ward Members  Cllr Mohammed Shafiq Cllr Zafar Iqbal Cllr Riaz Ahmed 

Ward Officer Ishaq Shafiq Date completed May 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 78



Summary of the Bradford Moor Ward Assessment 

Community 
Strengths 

The Bradford Moor ward connects and leads into the Bradford City Centre and is a key gateway 
linking Leeds and Bradford.  There are a range of community organisations including The 
Thornbury Centre which acts as a hub for the Ward delivering a broad range of service provisions, 
Thornbury Youth and Community Centre, Bradford Moor PASS (based at Attock Park) and some 
other third sector groups. There is a children’s centre in the Ward at Mortimer House.  The area is 
well served with several schools across the ward, a mix of state and private educational 
establishments.  The school community provides a useful platform for engagement and gives 
opportunities for partnership working within schools.  Many of the schools have community rooms 
/ spaces and offer a range of activities to parents sewing, ICT, exercise etc.  Compared to other 
Wards of Bradford, but similar to the adjoining ward of Bowling and Barkerend, the area has 
significantly high numbers of faith buildings (mosques, temples and churches). The ward benefits 
from very strong active citizenship through the faith sector e.g. Sant Nirankari volunteers group do 
occasional litter picks / cleanups in their surrounding area.  The level of volunteering is low and 
investment by residents in their neighbourhood is low in terms of community involvement in 
helping address local community concerns. However there is voluntary involvement in a range of 
activities including volunteering on a street level,  through community groups and faith based 
organisations and some of this might not have been seen by the individuals concerned as 
volunteering.  There are certainly opportunities to increase active citizenship across the ward; in 
some areas this would need more support and encouragement, using different methods to reach 
the hard to reach. Some of this could be achieved by continuing to improve through day to day 
work of Council Wardens, Ward Officer, Community Development workers, Youth Workers, 
parental support workers engaging one to one with residents on their environmental and 
community safety issues, connecting them with services; also through specific projects\clean ups 
in areas where residents want to see change. This could be developed to help sustain the work.   
There are a range of good parks and outdoor spaces Bradford Moor Park, Myrashay, Woodhall 
Recreation Grounds etc. Morrison’s head offices are based within the ward at Gain Lane. The 
ward has access to a diverse range of businesses, shops and food places.  

Clean Residents generally not taking responsibility for the cleanliness of streets, including un-adopted 
backstreets in terms of dropping or not picking up litter and dumping unwanted waste items on 
backstreets, verges and open spaces rather than using waste sites or Bulk Waste collections 
(which are now being charged for, other than for electrical items). Trade waste arrangements are 
inadequate or non existent for a number of businesses. Anecdotally we are aware that East 
Europeans residents in rented housing get blamed for furniture and household waste being 

P
age 79



dumped in yards and on verges by other residents.  This can be the result of landlords not 
clearing houses between tenancies, leaving the problem for the new tenants to deal with.   This 
can have an impact on the nature of a neighbourhood and how people get along, and is a wider 
community problem.  Low levels of engagement between residents and local services and the 
types of engagement and a lack of experience of ‘self-help’ makes creating positive changes in 
this deprived community more difficult to kick start and then keep going. The Bradford Moor Ward 
ranks top district wide for street litter failure and ranks second highest for reported fly-tipping.  
More work is needed to encourage residents to recycle.  Residents should be supported to 
develop self-help approaches.    

Safe Overall crime statistics evidence a downward crime trend. However, despite this significant issues 
of anti social behaviour and illegal drug dealing impact negatively on feelings of safety and 
probably the low level of satisfaction in Police and other services dealing with ASB.   Low 
satisfaction with Police and other services dealing with anti-social behaviour could be linked to 
high levels and concern about anti social behaviour and street drug dealing / drug running.   
Concern about teenagers hanging around on streets, in parks and open spaces which can feel / 
be intimidating or aggressive is also something that young people themselves mentioned when 
taking part in a Youth Service consultation. People feeling unsafe after dark, including young 
people is perhaps also linked to levels of crime and anti social behaviour.  Drivers not using seat 
belts or child restraints, parking irresponsibly and reacting negatively (sometimes abusively) 
continues to be a challenge. Bradford Moor is one of three Better Start Bradford Wards. Children 
aged under 3 years old in the Better Start area are more likely to be brought up in an environment 
where domestic abuse occurs compared to Bradford district.  

Active High rate of a number serious, life threatening health conditions including diabetes, coronary heart 
disease and obesity which impact on mortality rates and quality of life.   High birth rate. Isolation 
and depression may be linked to family lifestyles, lack of occupation and levels of poor health. 
Though people say they feel encouraged to be physically active the need for support / 
encouragement of healthy lifestyle choices is ongoing.  Bradford Moor is one of three Better Start 
Bradford Wards. The communities in the Better Start Area have a lower life expectancy than in 
Bradford district and, for males, there is a significant difference been the expected life span in the 
Better Start area compared to local and national figures. The Better Start area has a high infant 
mortality rate with 9 infants dying per 1,000 live births compared to 4.6 per 1,000 in England 
between 2009 and 2011. There are higher rates of obesity in both Reception and Year 6 in the 
Better Start area compared to Bradford and England. The three Better Start wards account for 
19% of all admissions to hospital following injury for 0-3 year olds across Bradford district and also 

P
age 80



have higher rates of A&E attendances for 0-4yrs than for the district. The Better Start children 
have poorer oral health with, on average, 3.2-4.0 decayed, missing or filled teeth per child aged 
under 5 years old. This data clearly indicates that children in the Better Start area are much less 
healthy compared to children within Bradford district as a whole and Bradford district itself is 
worse compared to regionally and nationally in many child health outcome areas.   

Incomes employment 
and housing 

High level of benefit claimants and low household income leads to worry about amount of debt 
and covering costs of heating etc. Overcrowded households are juxtaposed with a high level of 
empty homes across the ward and a low number of bids for social housing. 

Children and young 
people 

High youth and young adult population means a significant and appropriate level of services for 
children and young people are needed.  The high level of children receiving free school meals is 
due to low household incomes, positive role models are needed.  Obesity from year 6 onward is 
linked to diet, sedentary lifestyles and easy availability of cheap fast food.  Low educational 
attainment and lack of aspiration; positive role models are needed. The Better Start Area 
Wellbeing Profile highlights over half of the children aged 5 years old or under in this area have 
poor social and emotional development compared to one in three children in Bradford. In the 
same survey, one in five children had poor communication, language and literacy compared to the 
district average of one in ten. We know already domestic abuse and child protection rates are 
higher in the Bradford Moor Ward and are aware from other research by Born in Bradford that 
White mothers are more likely to smoke and drink alcohol and this applies to many mothers of 
White Other ethnicity. 

Stronger 
Communities 

Volunteering overall is low across the Ward similar to the neighbouring ward of Bowling and 
Barkerend. However, there are many people involved with faith based organisations as volunteers 
delivering community benefit activities which might not be seen as volunteering by those taking 
part in this work. There is also evidence of some volunteering through local centres such as the 
Thornbury Centre Hub but there is a need to encourage and support volunteers to engage helping 
to build their capacity. The population ethnicity mix White, South Asian and Eastern European 
communities is a challenge.  This diversity creates challenges, in an area where it is felt that 
people from different backgrounds don’t necessarily get on well or treat each other with respect 
and there are community tensions.   

 

P
age 81



Bradford Moor Ward Plan 2018 - 2019 
 

1.0 Clean 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can  Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce street litter – 
especially around schools 
and business areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce fly tipping and 
engage more proactively 
with residents and 
partners focusing on the 
top 10 hot-spots within 
the ward  
 
 

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
fronts and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when trade 
waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Engage with Schools to tackle litter 
dropped by students.  
 
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 
Working with residents and business to 
collect information and pursue 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
Recycle as much household waste as 
possible within the guidelines of the 
new bin policy.  
 
 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  

Ward Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of Groups 
Schools 
 

P
age 82



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support local positive 
social action 
environmental initiatives. 
 

enforcement action.  
 
Explore use of CCTV to maximise 
intelligence gathering to support 
possible prosecutions. 
 
Collaborative problem solving with 
Wardens, Ward Officer, Enforcement 
Officer and Clean Team 
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support community led environmental 
action days and back street tidy ups.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents and partners engage with 
helping to organise community led 
environmental action days and 
projects.  

2.0 Safe 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community engagement 
awareness events to 
ensure resident are aware 
of basic crime prevention 
measures, fire safety. 
This is an opportunity to 
engage and inform 
residents on the best 
ways to report crime.  
 
 
 
Tackle anti social 
behaviour within the Maze 
particularly around Attock 
Park area and the Leeds 
Road corridor. 

Develop community based forums to 
encourage people to report issues 
including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Strengthen links between Schools and 
Police officers to tackle anti-social 
behaviour issues particularly within the 
Attock Park area. 
 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 
activities to divert young people into 
positive activities. 
 
 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 83



 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disrupt the sale of illegal 
alcohol, tobacco and 
fireworks, especially to 
under age individuals.  
 
Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding, inconsiderate 
parking, mobile phone 
and seat belt 
infringements.   

Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, 
escalating this where appropriate to 
Court action. 
 
Detached youth work by Youth Service 
in hotspots particularly around Attock 
Park and the Leeds Road corridor. 
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
Offer schools educational programmes 
through the Road Safety Team – 
supporting pedestrian safety. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regular Police and Wardens 
educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the 
Barkerend Road corridor and Fenby 
Avenue as arranged through the Ward 
Partnership Team. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 84



 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To work with partners and 
the community to tackle 
drug use and dealing in 
specific hot spot areas in 
the ward. 

 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 
ensure information is reported to 
police.  Positive action to be collected 
and fed back to residents within these 
identified areas. 

 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 
within as much information as 
possible. 
 
Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance 
misuse.  

3.0 Active 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

Actively promote and 
support activities for older 
people to reduce social 
isolation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encourage healthy eating 
and positive individual 
behaviour life style 
changes. 
 
 

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities and 
events and sign post individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use of 
local pharmacies for advice where 
appropriate. 
 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 
Support the delivery of Better Start 
initiatives such as HENRY (Health 
Education and Nutrition for the Really 
Young) across the area and HENRY 
Parent Champions to spread the word. 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 
community venues / community 
websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food 
choices and encouraged to exercise, 
stop / reduce smoking and manage 
their own health through self-care 
initiated actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third Sector 

3.3 Ensure people can Link people to services to reduce Debt advice provision offered in local InCommunities 

P
age 85



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

access the right support 
and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

problems with debt, changes to welfare 
reform and tackle fuel poverty.   
 
Support people into employment – sign 
posting to employability programme 
opportunities. 
 
Raise awareness of foodbanks where 
appropriate e.g. Trussell Trust, 
Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an Integrated 
Switching Service 
 
Provide workshops for local people to 
protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to relevant 
services. 
 

places of community interest.  
 
Community led food projects and 
luncheon clubs e.g. faith centre on 
Prospect Road hold weekly evening 
to feed the homeless supported by 
other faith and third sector partners. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Children’s 
Centres  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 
Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seek to challenge low 
educational attainment, 
low aspirations and anti 
social behaviour by 
improving the offer for 
young people.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BMDC delivers weekly open access 
sessions at Laisterdyke Centre and 
holiday activities schemes.  
 
Provides a variety of formal and 
informal workshops addressing issues 
that young people face at youth service 
open access venues.  
 
Deliver preventative one to one and 
group sessions to young people at risk 
of CSE in the ward including work with 
the EU communities. 
 

Partners and communities refer young 
people to youth provision 
opportunities and events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Youth Service 
Third Sector  
Faith Centres 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Police 
CSE Hub 
 

P
age 86



3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deliver inclusive open 
access youth work 
sessions addressing ASB, 
challenging behaviour, 
Substance misuse, sexual 
health, healthy 
relationships and 
community pride. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Work with young people and families at 
low level risk of CSE in partnership with 
the CSE hub to reduce risk levels and 
increase resilience. A series of 
assessments and action plans will be 
put in place for young people and 
agreed by them and the family. Support 
young people to stick to action plans 
and engage in positive activities that 
will enhance their life. Recruit, train and 
enable youth and adult volunteers to 
support youth work sessions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.0 Other 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

4.1 Support, encourage and 
develop opportunities for 
residents to volunteer to 
get involved in a wide 
range of activities and 
projects connecting 
people from different 
faiths, ethnicities and 
ages. 
 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage 
their own involvement in local projects.  
 
Continue to support the multi-faith 
forum for the ward and host multi-faith 
celebration events.  
 
Encourage residents to report issues to 
agencies and Council services and 
explore community responses as part 

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 
solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  
 
Partners host multi-faith and multi-
cultural community events.   

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 
groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

P
age 87



of the solutions approach.  
 

Support community groups to access 
funding opportunities internal and 
external to the Council. 
 
Support local voluntary groups  

 
 

P
age 88



Idle & Thackley Ward Plan 2018-2019 
 

 

 
 

 

Ward Members  Cllr Jeanette 
Sunderland 

Cllr Julie Humphreys Cllr Alun Griffiths 

Ward Officer Daren Parr Date completed June 2018 
 
 

 

P
age 89



Introduction to Idle & Thackley Ward Plan 
 

Ward Idle & Thackley Ward 
 

Ward Officer Daren Parr 
 

Partners involved Bradford East Area Co-ordinator’s Office (Area Co-ordinator, Ward Officer, Area Operations 
Manager, Youth Service, Street Cleansing Manager, Environmental Enforcement). Ward Councillors, 
Neighbourhood Policing Team, Incommunities, BMDC Traffic & Highways, BMDC Parks & 
Landscapes, Community Groups and Organisations. 

How does the ward plan 
work 

The ward plans throughout the district engage with the communities identified in the boundary of 
each ward. The assessment summarises the strengths using both statistical and qualitative 
information. Each year the plan sets out agreed action in each ward with the support of a Ward 
Officer to work with others to seek solutions.  Ward plans are agreed and accountable to the Area 
Committees in each constituency. 
 

How to get involved If you would like to get involved please contact the Ward Officer, Daren Parr on (01274) 431066 or 
the email address is daren.parr@bradford.gov.uk  
 

 

Summary of the Idle & Thackley Ward Assessment 
 
Population The Idle & Thackley ward consists of six neighbourhoods which are: lower part of Thorpe Edge, Idle, Idle Moor, 

Cote Farm estate, Thackley  and Apperely Bridge.  
 
93% of the population are predominantly white with small pockets of mixed ethnicity throughout the ward. The 
population of 25 to 69 year olds has moderately increased is significantly higher in comparison to other wards 
within Bradford East and district wide. The younger population of 5 to 14 year old has moderately increased whilst 
the population of 0 to 4 year old and 15 to 24 year old has seen a moderate reduction in comparison to other 
areas within Bradford East and district wide. 
 

Community 
Strengths 

Two primary roads through Idle & Thackley provide good arterial commuting inks to Bradford, Shipley, Leeds and 
Leeds Bradford Airport. The introduction of a new railway station at Apperley Bridge has enhanced public 

P
age 90

mailto:daren.parr@bradford.gov.uk


transport links between Bradford and Leeds. The semi rural locations of Idle, Thackley, Greengates and Apperley 
Bridge provide an opportunity for a variety of outdoor activities including walking and horse riding. Idle village 
centre has been identified as a Conservation Area and provides its residents and visitors with a good variety of 
shops, pubs and two supermarkets. In 2015 the Wright Watson Centre opened its doors and now hosts a number 
of business enterprises, community based projects and a public library.   

Clean Key issues include:  

 Street litter and trade waste hotspots. 

 Fly tipping 

 Build up of detritus 

 Weeds 

 Dog fouling 
 
Since 2015 Street Cleansing requests per 1000 population has increased from 5.87 to 7.28. However, this is still 
lower than the area average of 9.09 and a district average of 9.20. Fly tipping cleansing requests per 1000 
population has also increased from 2.41 to 5.73 and is still lower than the area average of 15.61and a district 
average of 13.30. Between 2017/18 Bradford Council’s Enforcement Officers has successfully investigated and 
prosecuted a number of people involved in fly tipping and dog fouling complaints.  

Safe Statistics provided by the West Yorkshire Police Senior Analyst highlights that between 2016 to April 2018: 

 Criminal damage cases increased from 204 to 280 

 Theft from motor vehicle increased from 148 to 234 

 Theft of motor vehicle decreased from 49 to 29 

 Violence without injury increased from 237 to 323 
 
Over the past two years Bradford Council and the Neighbourhood Policing Team have organised a series of crime 
prevention road shows in the ward in a bid to help reduce crime 
 
For the past two / three years Idle village has become a hotspot area for ASB with young people causing much of 
the nuisances. The Neighbourhood Policing Team, partners, retailers and Ward Councillors are working on 
various strategies to address the problem.   

Active Statistics from 2013 to 2015 obtained from Public Health indicate that:- 
 

 Infant mortality rate at 8.91 (per 1,000 live births) is higher than the area (6.6) and district (5.9) averages.  

 The life expectancy rate for both males and females is on par with the area and district averages.  

P
age 91



 The under 75 mortality rate due to cancer is lower at 138.9 (per 100,000 population) compared to the area 
average of 175.3 and district average of 153.7.  

 The under 75 mortality rate due to cardiovascular diseases is 102.3, lower than the area average of 124.2 
and lower than the district average of 102.7  

 The mortality rate due to respiratory diseases is 65.98, lower than the area (70.26) but higher than the 
district (50.93) averages. 

 Data obtained from 2015/16 highlights that 14.81% of children in reception have excess weight or are 
obese. In comparison the area average is 18.63% and district average is 21.10% 

 31.88% of children in year 6 have excess weight or are obese. In comparison the area average is 35.81% 
and district average is 36.40%. 

Incomes 
employment 
and housing 

Annual data 2016 to 2017 obtained from Jobcentre Plus, highlights:- 

 The percentage of job seekers allowance claimants is 0.90 (rate per 16 to 64 population) lower than the 
area average of 2.2% with the district average at 1.80.  

 The percentage of working age claimants is 1.3 (rate per 16 to 64 population) lower than the area average 
of 3.2 and district average of 2.6 

% of empty homes over 6 months - according to data from 2016 to 2017 (BMDC Revenues & Benefits):-  

 0.82% of homes have been empty longer than 6 months, lower than the area average of 1.95% and lower 
than the district average of 1.90%. 

% of people not in education, employment or training (NEET) – according to 2016/17 Integrated Youth Support 
Solution (IYSS) database 

 1.2% of people in the ward are NEET, lower than the area average of 2.70 and district average of 2.20 
 
Incommunities, Home Group and Places For People are the main registered social landlords for providing 
alternative accommodation in Thorpe Edge.  

Children and 
young people 

Qualitative information taken from BMDC Youth Workers suggests that young people express concerns about:- 

 Relationships with peers, parents and teachers. 

 Parents & other family members involved in drugs & alcohol. 

 High turn over of supply teachers in schools. 

 Social media (online bullying, sexting etc.) 
 
Young people feel that youth centres provide them with a warm, safe place to socialise and take part in activities. 
The Springfield Centre offers open access youth sessions, day trips, volunteering opportunities, job search, boys / 
girls only clubs, summer school programme and fund raising activities.   

P
age 92



Stronger 
Communities 

Local volunteers from Idle Active group and Greengates Community Garden Group undertake a variety of 
environmental projects. Idle Cricket club, Idle residents group (incommunities supported), Idle & Thackley theatre 
group, Thackley Urban village, Thackley Cricket club, Thackley Methodist Church supporting; Jigsaw Out of 
School Club,Guides and Brownies, Wives Club, Monday Mums Play-Group, Mums and Tots., Karate, Retired 
Men’s Forum Ladies Group Baby Ballet. Other community based groups include Greengates over 55’s group, 
Friends of Greengates Cenotaph and History Group, Friends Of Buck wood, Thackley Good Friends Café, a local 
independent newsletter (Thackley Trumpet) written by local residents. The ward also benefits from a range of 
community assets to encourage more volunteering, these include: The Wright Watson Centre, Birkhill and Idle 
recreation grounds, Springfield and Springdale Centres located near by in Thorpe Edge.  
 
The River Aire cuts through the lower part of the Idle & Thackley Ward. On 26th December 2015 several homes 
and business in Apperley Bridge area were severely damaged due to flooding as a result of high water levels from 
the river. The high water levels of the river also caused a large scale environmental problem at Buck Mill Bridge. 
Ward Councillors and local community volunteers worked with Bradford Council, The Environment Agency and 
other services to clean up the debris from the river and peoples homes.   P

age 93



 
Idle & Thackley Ward Plan 2018/19 

 

1.0 Safe 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can services contribute? 

 
What can people do? 

 
Named person 

responsible 

1.1 Tackle anti-social 
behaviour 
 

 Monitor ASB hotspots through 
Ward Partnership Team meetings 
held every 6 weeks. 
 

 Police and Council ASB teams 
take action such as issuing ASB 
warning letters and dispersal 
orders where ASB problems are 
prevalent. 

 

 Police to undertake regular 
patrols on evenings in Idle village. 

 

 Police to explore interest from 
businesses to set up an Idle 
Business Watch scheme and 
introduce a radio 2 way 
communication system. 
 

 PCSOs/Council Wardens 
undertaking patrols and Youth 
Workers to carry out outreach 
/detached work 

 People can volunteer to work with 
the Youth Service and help 
qualified Youth Workers to deliver 
a variety of youth provisions. 
 

 Retailers to keep a diary log of 
incidents. 
 

 Retailers to use the Radio Shop 
Link scheme to warn other 
retailers of emerging ASB issues. 
 

 People can help the Police by 
joining the Special Constable 
scheme. 

Police  
Youth Service 
Council Warden 
Council Ward 
Officer 
  

1.2 Tackle inconsiderate 
and illegal parking 
around schools 
 

 Council Wardens and PCSOs to 
undertake patrols and 
enforcement including 
deployment of camera car outside 
schools and other hotspot areas. 

 

 Parents/residents to ensure 
responsible parking around 
schools 

 

Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police  

P
age 94



 

 Ward Officer/NPT/Road Safety 
Team to work with schools and 
parents on road safety issues. 
 

 Police to secure funding for junior 
police uniforms as part a school 
road safety initiative (Days of 
Action) 

 
 

Road Safety Team 

1.3 Reduce incidents of 
crime (violent crime, 
burglary, robbery and 
car crime) 
 

 PCSOs/Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch schemes, 
Crimestoppers,and undertake 
reassurance patrols 

 Police to explore better 
communications to the public via 
social media and NPT newsletter. 

 Police to map out hotspot areas 
of burglary and car crime and 
work with partners to carryout 
Days of Action (leafleting, raising 
public awareness, trying out car 
door handles) 

 Ward Officer / Police to liaise with 
community centres to help reduce 
domestic violence. 

 Residents and community groups 
report information to 
Crimestoppers and Police  

 Residents to set up and actively 
engage in Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes 

 Community groups to publicise 
Crimestoppers and 
Neighbourhood Watch schemes 

 Police Cadets could link up with 
Youth Service and Community 
groups to help reduce weapons 
in the community.  

 
 

Police Constable 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Neighbourhood 
Watch Officer 
 

1.4 Increase  young 
people’s awareness of 
community safety 
 

 Area wide detached youth service 
team identified over bonfire 
weekend to work alongside 
partners and young people in 
hotspot areas. 

 Youth Service to deliver themes 
workshops in Black History Month  
and LGBT month. 

 Youth Worker 
 
 

P
age 95



 Young people to engage in Pride 
& International day against 
Homophobia Bi-phobia and Trans 
phobia. 

 Youth Service to deliver session 
around personal safety to build 
resilience with a focus on ASB, 
drugs & alcohol use and 
consequences of crime. 

1.5 Increase young 
peoples employability 

 Deliver school Transition Camp 
with partners. 

 Youth Service to set up 
homework club. 

 Develop volunteering 
opportunities for young people. 

 Accredit young peoples learning. 

 Youth Worker 

1.6 Develop active 
citizenship amongst 
young people 

 Engage young people in 4 Youth 
Voice initiatives. 

 Register 50 young people to vote. 

 Young people to plan one 
community event. 

 Youth Worker 
 
 
 
 

1.7 Continue to grow 
services to support 
LGBT young people. 

 Provide peer support for trans 
young people through Phoenix. 

 Facilitate a peer support for 
parents and carers of trans young 
people. 

 Provide peer support for LGBT+ 
young people through sound. 

 Provide residential opportunities 
for LGBT+ young people. 

 Facilitate National Conference for 
young people, People of Colour 
(POC) and who identify as LGBT+ 

 Youth Worker 

P
age 96



through Colour Youth Movement 
Network (CYM). 

1.8 Support vulnerable 
young people 

 Youth Service to develop a “Build 
a Girl Group” to address issues of 
CSE. 

 Provide one to one support for 
young people referred from Child 
and Adolescence Mental Health 
Service (CAMHS), CSE Hub and 
Early Help. 

 Youth Service to provide area 
wide peer support group (R 
space). 

 Run activities with themes such 
as Black History Month and LGBT 
month. 

 Attend events such as 
International Day Against 
Homophobia, Biphobia and 
Transphobia (IDAHBIT) and Pride 

 Youth Worker 

2.0 Clean 

2.1 Reduce littering and 
fly tipping including 
rubbish in gardens 
 
 
 
 
 

 Council Wardens to monitor 
rubbish in domestic gardens and 
outside business premises. 
Advise residents and business 
owners how to dispose of their 
rubbish responsibly either through 
using bulk collection service, 
recycling, using household waste 
site or trade waste contracts. 

 Council Wardens to initially 
investigate fly tipping complaints 
and where appropriate refer jobs 

 Help to organise community 
action days by encouraging their 
neighbours to take part. 

 Can take responsibilities to keep 
their own back streets clean. 

 Can help to organise community 
clean ups / action days. 

 Ensure that wheeled bins are not 
over flowing and no side waste in 
line with the councils bin policy. 

 Use the bulk collection service or 
remove waste via skips or recycle 

Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Incommunities 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



to enforcement team. 

 Work with partners, local residents 
and volunteers to undertake clean 
ups in hotspot areas. 

 Clean Team and Fly Tipping 
Team to clear waste when 
advised to do so. 

 Council Wardens to visit 
businesses that are not containing 
waste responsibly and refer cases 
to Trade Waste. 

Enforcement:  

 To liaise with Council Wardens 
and Ward Officer to investigate 
reports of fly tipping. 

 Take appropriate legislative action 
against those responsible for fly 
tipping (warning letters / 
prosecution). 

Incommunities:  

 Clean Team to litter picking on 
their land / premises and removing 
waste. 

 Incommunities Tenancy 
Enforcement Team to take action 
where appropriate 

waste through household waste 
sites. 

 Report anyone seen fly tipping 
and give witness statements. 

 Business to ensure they have 
appropriate trade waste contracts 
and use recycling schemes to 
reduce waste.  

 People can take responsibility to 
ensure only authorised waste 
carriers remove their waste. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2.2 Increase young 
peoples awareness in 
environmental issues 

 Raise awareness around rectcling 
and introduce recycling bins to the 
Springfield Centre. 

 Deliver a community clean up. 

 Develop a grow, sow and cook 
project.. 

 Volunteer Senior Members at 
Youth Club to encourage YP 
participation.  

Youth Worker 

2.3 Promote recycling  Council Wardens/Ward Officer/   Community groups to publicise Area Operations 

P
age 98



across the ward 
 
 
 
 
 

Recycling team to identify 
household premises where 
contaminated recycling bins are 
being used for domestic residual 
waste. 

 Recycling Team to remove   
contaminated bins if not being 
used for recycling materials. 

recycling information at 
community events, venues and 
on social media websites 

 Resident and local businesses to 
take up recycling 

Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Recycling Team 
Incommunities  
 
 

2.4 Clean up of River Aire 
resulting from flood 
debris in 2015 

 Work with internal and external 
partners to organise a clean up to 
remove waste in stretch of river at 
Apperley Bridge. 

 Seek funding opportunities to 
enlist support from River 
Stewardship Company to clear 
waste in river.  

 Local residents can and voluntary 
groups could take part in clean 
up. 

Council Ward 
Officer 

3.0 Active 

3.1 Encourage residents 
to take up 
volunteering 
opportunities 
 
 
 
 

 Ward Officer/Wardens/ Engaging 
Communities / CABAD to work in 
partnership to organise a BD2, 
BD10 volunteering event and 
promote projects and volunteering 
opportunities 

 Ward Officer/Wardens to promote 
and support People Can initiative. 

 Residents to take up volunteer 
opportunities 

 Community groups to publicise 
volunteer opportunities at events, 
community venues, community 
websites and social media 

 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Engaging 
Communities 
CABAD 
 

3.2 Promote and support 
activities for older 
people including those 
who are socially 
isolated and living with 
dementia. 

 The Memory Tree to provide 
reminiscence sessions / activities 
at Idle Baptist Church. 

 Wright Watson Centre, Thorpe 
Community Project, Idle Baptist 
Church and St Johns Church to 
deliver “wellbeing café” sessions 
and reduce social isolation by 

 Residents and community groups 
to support and be involved with 
Be Neighbourly scheme/ Winter 
Warmth Project 

 Community Groups to organise 
and publicise activities at events / 
community venues /  community 
websites. 

Ward Officer 
Inspire 
Neighbourhoods 
Engaging 
Communities 

P
age 99



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

providing a range of stimulating 
activities. 

 Dementia Champion volunteers 
to  raise awareness of dementia 
in community and business 
settings. 

3.3 Ensure out of school 
activities available to 
young people 

 Offer sporting opportunities for 
young people.  

 Deliver 3 open access sessions.. 

 Deliver weekend provision for 
young people.. 

 Volunteering Senior Youth 
Member to support Youth Worker 

Youth Worker 

3.4 Promote training and 
employment 
opportunities 
 
 

 Ward Officer / Council Wardens to 
sign post people to organisations 
and voluntary support networks. 

 Promote employment and training 
opportunities. 

 Ward Officer 
Council Wardens 
CABAD 
Young Lives 
 

4.0 Other 

4.1 Support the work of 
community 
partnerships and 
voluntary 
groups/organisations 
 
 

 Ward Officer / CABAD to provide 
support and guidance to 
community partnerships, friends of 
groups and voluntary groups/ 
organisations. 

 Neighbourhood Services to 
support Idle Active  

 Ward Officer 
 

P
age 100



Eccleshill Ward Plan 2018-2019 
 

 

 
 

 

Ward Members  Cllr Brendan Stubbs Cllr Nicola Pollard Cllr Geoff Reid 

Ward Officer Daren Parr Date completed June 2018 
 
 
 

P
age 101



Introduction to Eccleshill Ward Plan 
 

Ward Eccleshill Ward 
 

Ward Officer Daren Parr 
 

Partners involved Bradford East Area Co-ordinator’s Office (Area Co-ordinator, Ward Officer, Area Operations 
Manager, Youth Service, Street Cleansing Manager, Environmental Enforcement). Ward Councillors, 
Neighbourhood Policing Team, Incommunities, BMDC Traffic & Highways, BMDC Parks & 
Landscapes, Community Groups and Organisations. 

How does the ward plan 
work 

The ward plans throughout the district engage with the communities identified in the boundary of 
each ward. The assessment summarises the strengths using both statistical and qualitative 
information. Each year the plan sets out agreed action in each ward with the support of a Ward 
Officer to work with others to seek solutions.  Ward plans are agreed and accountable to the Area 
Committees in each constituency. 
 

How to get involved If you would like to get involved please contact the Ward Officer, Daren Parr on (01274) 431066 or 
the email address is daren.parr@bradford.gov.uk  
 

 

Summary of the Eccleshill Ward Assessment 
 
Population The Eccleshill ward consists of five neighbourhoods which are Eccleshill, Fagley, Thorpe Edge, Ravenscliffe and 

Greengates.  
 
The data below is taken from the latest census in 2011   
 

Total Population 19020    Ward    Bfd East    District 

Population by Age 

    Population 0-4 1692 8.9% 9.1% 7.7% 

Population 5-9 1637 8.6% 9.2% 7.7% 

Population 10-14 1346 7.1% 7.9% 6.9% 

P
age 102

mailto:daren.parr@bradford.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/Parrd/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/9837148.xlsx%23'Population%20by%20Agegroup'!A1


Population 15-19 1142 6.0% 7.3% 6.7% 

Population 20-24 1056 5.6% 6.3% 6.3% 

Population 25-59 8768 46.1% 45.5% 45.6% 

Population 60-69 1710 9.0% 7.4% 9.4% 

Population 70-79 1029 5.4% 4.4% 5.8% 

Population 80+ 640 3.4% 2.9% 3.9% 

Population by Ethnicity 

    Population White 15637 87.1% 53.0% 67.4% 

Population Gypsy/Traveller/Irish Traveller 6 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 

Population Mixed 473 2.6% 3.1% 2.5% 

Population Indian 151 0.8% 3.2% 2.6% 

Population Pakistani 959 5.3% 30.0% 20.4% 

Population Bangladeshi 122 0.7% 3.5% 1.9% 

Population Chinese 58 0.3% 0.4% 0.4% 

Population Other Asian 98 0.5% 2.3% 1.5% 

Population Black/Black British 306 1.7% 2.5% 1.8% 

Population Other Ethnic Group 135 0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 

Population East and Central Europeans 287 1.6% 2.6% 2.1% 
 

Community 
Strengths 

The A658 splits communities living between Fagley / Ravenscliffe / Greengates / Eccleshill  and Thorpe Edge but 
the primary road provides a good commuting inks to Bradford, Harrogate and Leeds / Bradford Airport. Much of the 
ward is considered to be urban but residents living in the ward have easy access to rural parts of its neighbouring 
ward Idle & Thackley and Pudsey.  
 
Residents benefit from a range of community assets including: Eccleshill Community Hospital, Eccleshill Adventure 
Play Ground, Eccleshill Swimming Pool, Bradford Industrial Museum, Eccleshill Library, play areas at Harrogate 
Rd, Flaxton Green, Eccleshill Park and recreation ground. It has 4 Community Centres (Rockwell, Gateway, 
Ravenscliffe Youth Centre and Eccleshill Mechanics Institute, all of which provide a range of activities and services 
to its residents. Inspire Business Park also offers a range of support services and business opportunities. There are 
6 Primary Schools and 7 Churches located in the ward. 
 

Clean Key issues include:  

 Management of open space on former council estates, or created by demolitions, including protection from 

P
age 103

file:///C:/Users/Parrd/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/9837148.xlsx%23'Population%20by%20Ethnicity'!A1


abuse by vehicles and horses. 

 Residents taking responsibility for their unadopted back streets. 

 Cars competing for limited on-street parking therefore damaging grass verges. 

 Street litter and trade waste hotspots. 

 Flytipping 
 
Between periods 2015 to 2017 fly tipping requests per 1000 population has increased from 4.18 to 10.54. However, 
this is still lower than the area average of 15.61 and a district average of 13.30. Street cleansing requests per 1000 
population has decreased from 6.71 to 6.56 and is still lower than the area average of 9.09 and a district average of 
9.2. 

Safe The Eccleshill ward has the highest anti social behaviour rates in comparison to all other 30 wards within the 
Bradford district. Between periods 2015 to 2017, ASB per 1000 population has seen a steady increase from 54.76 
to 57.85. This is significantly higher than the area average of 36.35 and district average of 28.73. Over the past two 
years Enterprise Five Retail Park has become the hotspot area for ASB with young people causing much of the 
nuisances. The Neighbourhood Policing Team, partners and retailers are working on various strategies to address 
the problem.    
 
Statistics highlight that since 2016 to September 2017 burglary residential, criminal damage, serious acquisitive 
crimes, theft from motor vehicles and theft of motor vehicles have all declined. However violent crime and robbery 
crime have increased over the same period.   

Active Statistics from 2013 to 2015 obtained from Public Health indicate that:- 
 

 Infant mortality rate at 3.13 (per 1,000 live births) is lower than the area (6.6) and district (5.9) averages.  

 The life expectancy rate for both males and females is on par with the area and district averages.  

 The under 75 mortality rate due to cancer is lower at 131.37 (per 100,000 population) compared to the area 
average of 175.34 and district average of 153.75.  

 The mortality rate due to cardiovascular diseases is 100.37, lower than the area average of 124.29 and 
lower than the district average of 102.73.  

 The mortality rate due to respiratory diseases is 65.98, lower than the area (70.26) but higher than the 
district (50.93) averages. 

 

Incomes 
employment 

Annual data 2016 to 2017 obtained from Jobcentre Plus highlights:- 

 The percentage of job seekers allowance claimants is 1.80 (rate per 16 to 64 population) lower than the area 

P
age 104



and housing average of 2.2% with the district average at 1.80.  

 The percentage of working age claimants has increased to 3.8% and this is significantly higher than the area 
(2.7%) and the district (2.6%) level. 

 
% of empty homes over 6 months - according to data from 2016 to 2017 (BMDC Revenues & Benefits):-  

 1.12% of homes have been empty longer than 6 months, lower than the area average of 1.95% and lower 
than the district average of 1.90%. 

 
Incommunities is the main registered social landlord for providing alternative accommodation in Thorpe Edge, 
Ravenscliffe and Fagley. Home Group and Places For People also provide social housing. 

Children and 
young 
people 

According to 2016 to 2017 data obtained from the Integrated Youth Support Solution (IYSS):- 

 The percentage of people aged 16 to 19 not in education, employment or training (NEET) is 3.90% 
compared to the area average of 2.70% and a district average of 2.20% 

 
Qualitative information taken from BMDC Youth Workers suggests that young people express concerns about:- 

 Relationships with peers, parents and teachers. 

 Parents & other family members involved in drugs & alcohol. 

 High turn over of supply teachers in schools. 

 Social media (online bullying, sexting etc) 
 
Young people feel that youth centres provide them with a warm, safe place to socialise and take part in activities. 
The youth centre / worker in Ravenscliffe offers open access youth sessions, day trips, volunteering opportunities, 
job search, boys / girls only clubs, summer school programme and fund raising activities.   
 
Eccleshill Adventure Playground (The Big Swing) offers children aged 5 to 13 years the chance to engage in 
pro-social activities but with an element of challenge, such as using tools to construct dens, go karts and other 
structures and learn how to make camp fires in our outdoor kitchen. 
 
The Gateway Centre has partnered up with Ravenscliffe Youth Centre to develop a junior youth club with over 40 
children attending weekly sessions. 
 
The Rockwell Centre  hosts Little Chefs / Little Gardeners / Little Bakers for children aged  5/6 and a Young 
Leaders Youth Club 8 – 13 year old. 

P
age 105



Stronger 
Communitie
s 

There are a large range of community activities, organisations, church groups, history group and sports groups 
across the ward to cover all ages and interests.  All of them organise events and encourage local involvement and 
participation. 
 
In 2017 Eccleshill Community Association drew new volunteers on to their management committee and the group 
are now in discussion with Bradford Council in an attempt to secure a Community Asset Transfer (CAT) for 
Eccleshill Mechanics Institute. This will provide a local led community project and minimise the risk of the buildings 
closure. 
 
Eccleshill Events Organisers are a group of volunteers who organise annual events such as Eccleshill Village Fair 
held in July and a Christmas Celebration event in December. 
 
Fagley Community Association are currently developing their membership and seeking adequate accommodation 
to help run a verity of activities.  
 
 
 

P
age 106



 
Eccleshill Ward Plan 2018/2019 

 

2.0 Safe 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can services contribute? 

 
What can people do? 

 
Named person 

responsible 

1.1 Tackle anti-social 
behaviour 
 

 Monitor ASB hotspots through 
Ward Partnership Team 
meetings held every 6 weeks. 
 

 Police and Council ASB teams 
take action such as issuing 
ASB warning letters and 
dispersal orders where ASB 
problems are prevalent. 
 

 PCSOs/Council Wardens 
undertaking patrols and Youth 
Workers to carry out outreach 
/detached work 

 People can volunteer to work 
with the Youth Service and 
help qualified Youth Workers 
to deliver a variety of youth 
provisions. 
 

 Retailers to effectively use 
CCTV cameras and keep a 
diary log of incidents. 
 

 Retailers to use the Radio 
Shop Link scheme to warn 
other retailers of emerging 
ASB issues. 
 

 People can help the Police by 
joining the Special Constable 
scheme. 

Police Constable 
Area Operations Manager 
Council Warden 
Council Ward Officer 
Incommunities  

1.2 Tackle inconsiderate 
and illegal parking 
around schools 
 

 Council Wardens and PCSOs 
to undertake patrols and 
enforcement  including 
deployment of camera car 
outside schools and other 
hotspot areas. 

 

 Ward Officer/NPT/Road Safety 
Team to work with schools 
and parents on road safety 

 

 Parents/residents to ensure 
responsible parking around 
schools 

 
 
 

Area Operations Manager 
Council Ward Officer 
Police Constable 
Road Safety Team 

P
age 107



issues. 
 

 Police to secure funding for 
junior police uniforms as part a 
school road safety initiative 
(Days of Action)  

1.3 Reduce incidents of 
crime (violent crime, 
burglary, robbery 
and car crime) 
 

 PCSOs/Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes, Crimestoppers, 
OWL and undertake 
reassurance patrols 

 Police to explore possibility of 
introducing ANPR / CCTV 
cameras at junction of Fagley 
Road / Moorside Road. 

 Police to explore better 
communications to the public 
via social media and NPT 
newsletter. 

 Police and partners to map out 
hotspot areas of car crime and 
carryout Days of Action 
(leafleting, raising public 
awareness, trying out car door 
handles) 

 Ward Officer / Police to liaise 
with community centres to 
help reduce domestic 
violence. 

 Residents and community 
groups report information to 
Crimestoppers and Police  

 Residents to set up and 
actively engage in 
Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes 

 Community groups to 
publicise Crimestoppers and 
Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes 

 
 

Police Constable 
Council Ward Officer 
Area Operations Manager 
Neighbourhood Watch 
Officer 
 

1.4 Increase  young 
people’s awareness 
of community safety 
 

 Area wide detached team 
identified over bonfire 
weekend to work alongside 
partners and young people in 

 Youth Worker 
Police Constable 
Council Ward Officer 
Area Operations Manager 
 

P
age 108



hotspot areas. 

 Deliver themes workshops in  
Black History Month  and 
LGBT month. 

 Young people to engage in  
Pride & International day 
against Homophobia Bi-phobia 
and Trans phobia. 

 Deliver bonfire Night sessions 
to highlight consequences of 
crime and personal safety. 

 Deliver impact of drugs & 
alcohol  use in partnership 
with the drugs/alcohol D& A 
Team. 

 

1.5 Increase young 
peoples 
employability 

 Deliver school Transition 
Camp with partners. 

 Develop volunteering 
opportunities for young 
people. 

 Accredit young peoples 
learning. 

 Work with Incommunities to 
deliver functional skills for YP 
aged 16+. 

 Provide drop-ins for YP to 
develop skills in CV writing , 
jobs search and interview 
techniques. 

 Coach  junior leaders to 
support delivery of junior clubs 

 Youth Worker 

 Continue to grow 
services to support 

 Provide peer Support for trans 
young people through 

 Youth Worker 

P
age 109



LGBT Young People Phoenix. 

 Facilitate a peer support for 
parents & carers of Trans 
young people. 

 Provide peer Support for 
LGBT+ young people through 
Sound. 

 Provide residential 
opportunities for LGBT+ YP. 

 Facilitate National Conference 
for YP POC and who identify 
as LGBT+ through  CYM 
(Colour Youth Movement 
network 

1.6 Support Vulnerable 
young people 

 Provide one to one support for 
young people referred from 
CAMHS, CSE Hub and Early 
Help. 

 Provide area wide peer 
support group (R Space). 

 Deliver Girls/ Boys Night in – 
single gender sessions 
increasing confidence & self 
esteem. 

 Create & maintain regular 
contact with residential unit 
with the ward to support YP in 
accessing open 
access/targeted provision 

 Youth Worker 

1.7 Develop active 
citizenship amongst 
young people 

 Engage young people in 4 
Youth Voice initiatives. 

 Register 50 young people to 
vote. 

 Youth Worker 
 
 
 

P
age 110



 Young people to plan one 
community event. 

 Carry out intergenerational 
work with Eccleshill Men’s 
Group to bring different groups 
of YP together. 

 YP to organise a Community 
Lunch for older people across 
the Ward @ RYC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.0 Clean 

2.1 Reduce littering and 
fly tipping including 
rubbish in gardens 
 
 
 
 
 

 Council Wardens to monitor 
rubbish in domestic gardens 
and outside business 
premises. Advise residents 
and business owners how to 
dispose of their rubbish 
responsibly either through 
using bulk collection service, 
recycling, using household 
waste site or trade waste 
contracts. 

 Council Wardens to initially 
investigate fly tipping 
complaints and where 
appropriate refer jobs to 
enforcement team. 

 Work with partners, local 
residents and volunteers to 
undertake clean ups in hotspot 
areas. 

 Clean Team and Fly Tipping 
Team to clear waste when 
advised to do so. 

 Help to organise community 
action days by encouraging 
their neighbours to take part. 

 Can take responsibilities to 
keep their own back streets 
clean. 

 Can help to organise 
community clean ups / action 
days. 

 Ensure that wheeled bins are 
not over flowing and no side 
waste in line with the councils 
bin policy. 

 Use the bulk collection service 
or remove waste via skips or 
recycle waste through 
household waste sites. 

 Report anyone seen fly tipping 
and give witness statements. 

 Business to ensure they have 
appropriate trade waste 
contracts and use recycling 
schemes to reduce waste.  

Area Operations Manager 
Council Ward Officer 
Environmental Enforcement 
Incommunities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 111



 Council Wardens to visit 
businesses that are not 
containing waste responsibly 
and refer cases to Trade 
Waste. 

 Identify areas of high levels of 
fly tipping on unadopted back 
streets and use “Crime Not To 
Care campaign” (Wardens, 
Ward Officer to door knock 
local residents, surveys, use of 
posters and monitoring fly 
tipping) to reduce fly tipping.  

Enforcement:  

 To liaise with Council Wardens 
and Ward Officer to investigate 
reports of fly tipping. 

 Take appropriate legislative 
action against those 
responsible for fly tipping 
(warning letters / prosecution). 

 Work with Police to tackle 
rogue waste carriers along with 
waste carriers licence checks. 

Incommunities:  

 Clean Team to litter picking on 
their land / premises and 
removing waste. 

 Incommunities Tenancy 
Enforcement Team to take 
action where appropriate 

 People can take responsibility 
to ensure only authorised 
waste carriers remove their 
waste. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2 Increase young 
peoples awareness 

 Young People to carry out a 
visual audit of the area  

 Volunteer Senior Members at 
Youth Club to encourage YP 

Youth Worker 

P
age 112



in environmental 
issues 

identifying  areas for improving 
&and carry out a community 
clean-up  

 Deliver workshops & sessions 
to encourage and increase YP 
knowledge of recycling. 

participation.  

2.3 Promote recycling 
across the ward 
 
 
 
 
 

 Council Wardens/Ward Officer/  
Recycling team to identify 
household premises where 
contaminated recycling bins are 
being used for domestic 
residual waste. 

 Recycling Team to remove   
contaminated bins if not being 
used for recycling materials. 

 Community groups to 
publicise recycling information 
at community events, venues 
and on social media websites 

 Resident and local businesses 
to take up recycling 

Area Operations Manager 
Council Ward Officer 
Recycling Team 
Incommunities  
 
 

3.0 Active 

3.1 Encourage residents 
to take up 
volunteering 
opportunities 
 
 
 
 

 Ward Officer/Wardens/ 
Engaging Communities / 
Newlands Community 
Association / CABAD to work in 
partnership to organise a 
volunteering event and promote 
projects and volunteering 
opportunities 

 Ward Officer/Wardens to 
promote and support People 
Can initiative. 

 Residents to take up volunteer 
opportunities 

 Community groups to 
publicise volunteer 
opportunities at events, 
community venues, 
community websites and 
social media 

 

Council Ward Officer 
Engaging Communities 
Newlands Community 
Association 
CABAD 
 

3.2 Promote and 
support activities for 
older people 
including those who 
are socially isolated 

 Ward Officer/Wardens/ to 
promote activities being 
delivered at a local level 
(Men@Eccy project) 

 Residents and community 
groups to support and be 
involved with Be Neighbourly 
scheme/ Winter Warmth 
Project 

 Community Groups to 

Ward Officer 
Engaging Communities 

P
age 113



organise and publicise 
activities at events / 
community venues /  
community websites 

3.3 Ensure out of school 
activities available to 
young people 

 Youth Worker to deliver 3 open 
access sessions  

 Youth Worker to deliver 
weekend provision. 

 Youth Worker to deliver 
holiday activities.  

 Increase YP access to sport, 
physical activity through 
running ‘Activate’ sporting 
programmes. 

 Volunteering Senior Youth 
Member to support Youth 
Worker 

Youth Worker 

3.4 Promote training and 
employment 
opportunities 
 
 

 Ward Officer / Council 
Wardens to sign post people to 
organisations and voluntary 
support networks. 

 Promote employment and 
training opportunities. 

 Ward Officer 
Council Wardens 
CABAD 
Young Lives 
 

3.5 Promote and 
support Born In 
Bradford (BiB) 

 Ward Officer / Council 
Wardens / Youth Worker / 
Engaging Communities to 
promote BiB Growing Up 
research study by encouraging 
local people to take part in the 
study. 

 Community Groups to 
organise and publicise 
activities at events / 
community venues /  
community websites. 

Ward Officer  
Council Wardens 
Engaging Communities 
Youth Worker 

4.0 Other 

4.1 Support the work of 
community 
partnerships and 
voluntary 
groups/organisations 

 Ward Officer / CABAD to 
provide support and guidance 
to community partnerships, 
friends of groups and voluntary 
groups/ organisations. 

 Residents to join and support 
Eccleshill Events Organisers. 

 Residents to volunteer their 
time on the days of events. 

Ward Officer 
Eccleshill Events 
Organisers. 

P
age 114



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Ward Officer to support 
Eccleshill Events Organiser’s to 
deliver Eccleshill Village Fair / 
Christmas Lights Switch on 
events. 

4.2 Encourage 
communities to 
come together and 
support each other 
(Changing Places 
Controlling Migration 
funding) 
 
 

 Ward Officers to work with 
Gateway Centre to organise 
and deliver a community event 
to celebrate cultural 
differences. 

 Residents to take up 
volunteer opportunities to 
support provision 

 Community Groups to 
promote event at community 
venues across Bradford East  

Council Ward Officers 
Gateway Centre 

4.3     
 

P
age 115



Little Horton Ward Plan 2017 - 2018 
 

 
 

Ward Members Cllr Talat Sajawal Cllr Fareeda Mir Cllr Taj Salam 

Ward Officer Sheila Brett Date completed  April 2018 
 

 

P
age 116



Summary of the Little Horton Ward issues 
 

Community 
Strength 

Community led initiatives include Bradford Trident, Trident Community Council,  Parkside Community 
Association, Marshfield Neighbourhood Association, West Bowling Advice and Training Centre, West Bowling 
Youth Initiative, MAPA, Light of the World Centre, Madni Centre, West End Centre, Bowling Old Lane Cricket 
Club, Khidmat Centre and SHINE.  Bradford Trident is the largest community led organisation in the Ward and 
supports Trident Community Council, the local Parish Council.   
The residents of Little Horton come from a range of cultural, religious and ethnic backgrounds.  Bradford 
Trident own a number of community buildings, they employ a part time community development worker and 
facilitate the BD5 Faith Forum.  Trident has successfully led a community based partnership that has drawn in 
10 years of Lottery funding (£49 million) for work with families with children 0 – 4 years in Little Horton, 
Bowling, Barkerend and Bradford Moor, three of the most deprived wards in Bradford.  The programme, 
known as Better Start Bradford, started running its programme and projects from Summer 2015. 
 

Clean Little Horton faces a number of challenges in terms of cleaner and greener issues.  Littering, and flytipping 
(dumping) of household items and other waste is much higher than the Bradford District average.  Flytipping 
reports are only higher in Bowling and Barkerend ward, and local people see both this and the amount of 
littering as a problem.  Cleanliness of green spaces and recreation areas is also raised by people and services 
locally as needing attention.  There is a need to get more residents understanding and using the kerbside 
recycling service properly.  Putting food out for birds in public places, leaving waste in gardens and yards and 
dirty backstreets gives a poor impression of the area as well as attracting vermin.   Little Horton is the 2nd most 
densely populated ward (after City ward) and in some neighbourhoods this is even more obvious, for example 
in streets with families living in back-to-back housing.   Some of the cleanliness issues are exacerbated by 
landlords not taking responsibility for the homes they own and rent out (not clearing out previous tenants 
furniture and possessions), by residents who either don’t speak English very well, or not being long term 
residents they don’t understand how local services (such as recycling) work, or know how to access and use 
them (e.g. the Household Waste sites).  Community litter picks are supported by Wardens, Clean Team, 
Councillors and Community Council as well as local residents and we are keen to encourage and support as 
much of this as possible with local people, alongside educational work, and enforcement where needed. 
 

Safe Illegal drug dealing and use and anti-social behaviour are regularly raised and dealt with through the Ward 
Partnership Team.  Figures from the Police Analyst show that drugs, violence offences and house burglary are 
high compared to other areas and seem to be increasing.  There are also concerns that Eastern European 

P
age 117



residents in particular have different lifestyles and different understanding of what constitutes acceptable 
behaviour which seems to be at odds particularly with Asian Muslim resident’s way of life.  Activities for young 
people to provide positive alternatives to hanging about aimlessly on streets and public spaces are available, 
but perhaps not attractive to some of the young people whose behaviour is more problematic.  Inappropriate 
parking at and around schools, Children’s Centre and places of worship, including on footways and junctions, 
leads to safety issues and creates community tensions.   
 

Active Mortality per thousand population is higher in Little Horton than Bradford District as a whole with both infant  
and under 75’s mortality high.  One of the impacts of the ‘multiple deprivation’ is that many residents of Little 
Horton experience reduced life expectancy.  The ward has high levels of Coronary Heart Disease.  Obesity in 
school aged children at year 6, and the general population contributes to the high level of diabetes.  There is a 
lack of access to NHS dentists across the area.  Residents are given information and advice on healthy 
lifestyles (diet and exercise) through many Community Centre sessions and the work of local schools, but 
there remains much to be done to create and sustain positive behaviour changes that impact on health.  It is 
particularly difficult to engage both men and Eastern European residents on health issues. 

 

Incomes 
employment 
and housing 

There are high levels of welfare benefit claimants, including Job Seekers Allowance in Little Horton ward.  18-
24year old claimants are the 2nd highest in the district after Manningham ward, JSA claimants are the 3rd 
highest in the district after Bowling & Barkerend and Manningham wards.  There is a need for on-going 
support to make people, including young people, job-ready and get them into training and employment, and a 
number of centres provide this support.    Little Horton is 9th highest in the district for the number of empty 
homes, although rented housing is comparatively cheap.  Across the district 64% housing is owner occupied, 
this is likely to be lower in Little Horton, with social housing a good option locally, and this likely to be better 
quality than private rented housing.  Exploitation of people in housing need on limited income leads to 
overcrowded and poor quality housing being occupied, often by central and eastern European migrants, who 
may not have a formal tenancy agreements.  Advice services and ESOL classes help address these issues, 
but again more is needed.  The numbers of young people not in education, training or employment  are the 3rd 
highest in Little Horton, after Tong and Eccleshill wards, in Bradford district. 
 

Children and 
young 
people 

There is a high birth rate and young population in Little Horton and many families live in poverty, this is why it 
has been included in the Better Start Bradford area and is getting additional investment in support and 
services for families with children 0 – 4 year olds.  Qualification rates for young people leaving school are low 
and work with NEET (not in employment education or training) young people, aims to help ready them for 

P
age 118



training and employment, this is run through a range of local community and youth organisations including the 
Youth Service.   Work to impact on obesity rates in children and young people takes place through a range of 
organisations.  It is difficult to see what impact this is having as families cooking meals and cookery skills 
generally seem to have withered in the face of the plethora of cheap, fast food outlets locally that do not often 
provide the healthiest food choices.  It seems difficult to counteract this.  There are a number of youth projects 
and clubs across the ward but these are not able to help all the young people in need, a particular gap being 
provision for and drawing in young women and girls.     
 

Stronger 
Communities 

The ward has the 2nd highest population in the district after City ward. The highest proportion of residents are 
Asian, with less than 50% being white, and a much smaller number identifying as Black African, mixed or 
other ethnic origins.  The area has a number of residents from Central and Eastern European countries, 
focused in West Bowling, and attracted by low cost, and sometimes poorly maintained housing.  The diversity 
of the area creates challenges.  People from different backgrounds don’t necessarily know each other, get on 
well or treat each other with respect, creating community tensions particularly where there are differences in 
cultures that impact negatively on others. For example groups of families and friends gathering noisily and 
drinking outside when families with small children need them to be sleeping.  The BD5 Faith Forum and other 
more informal community working by faith and community based organisations, includes organising 
community events, helping different people to connect in social, non-threatening ways and create positive 
relationships.  The ward has a number of organisations that attract and utilise volunteers to help run their 
services, sessions and activities which helps them work with local people on local issues and priorities.  
Manchester Road (a busy dual carriageway) bisects the ward and is a physical barrier to community cohesion.  
 

Further 
information 

There is much more that could be said about Little Horton Ward.  This Ward Plan captures some of the key 
challenges, local services, community based work.  More statistical information is available from.   
https://datahub.bradford.gov.uk/ebase/districtdashboardiyp.eb?ebd=0&ebp=10&ebz=1 151318078913 
Or speak to Sheila Brett Bradford East Area Office on 01274 431066 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 119

https://datahub.bradford.gov.uk/ebase/districtdashboardiyp.eb?ebd=0&ebp=10&ebz=1


1.         CLEAN 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

1.1 Littering,  
flytipping  
(illegal 
dumping) and 
recycling 
 
 

 Coordinate Council Clean Team work 
including litter picking and litterbin 
emptying in public streets across the 
Ward.  

 Council Wardens - educational and 
enforcement role with local residents 
and businesses.  

 Incommunities and other social 
housing providers litter picking and 
removal of flytipping on their estates.   

 Warden and Ward Officer involvement 
in litter picking and removal of 
flytipping 

 Environmental projects with schools 
presentations to community groups 

 Helping residents download the 
Council App to easily report problems 
to be dealt with 

 Beautiful BD5 yard/garden 
competition, linking in with local 
organisations to enable this to happen 
and beautify spaces. 

 Joint clean ups with Trident 
Community Councillors 

 Beautiful BD5 Clean up weeks twice a 
year – April/May  and 
September/October 

 Using Google Translate or Warden 
who speaks EU/Asian languages to 

 Community litter picks by 
residents associations, 
neighbourhood groups, youth 
groups etc. supported by 
Council where possible to 
encourage active citizens. 

 NHS Douglas Mill staff and 
trustees support involvement in 
litter picks around their 
premises. 

 Residents reporting flytipping by 
phone, by website or by using 
the Bradford Council app  

 Residents using Bulk Waste 
service. 

 Residents using Council 
household waste sites. 

 Landlords working with their 
tenants to clear dumping left 
outside their properties. 

 Get involved in Beautiful BD5 
projects e.g. yard/garden 
competition, litter picks and 
community clean ups clean ups 

 

 Area Operations 
Manager, 

 Ward Officer 

 Bradford Trident 

 Trident Community 
Council 

 Residents groups 

 Local businesses 

 Schools 

 Probation / 
Community 
Payback 

 

P
age 120



inform residents about services and 
their responsibilities.   

 Passing on to Community Payback, 
where appropriate and possible, 
cleaning and cutting back of snickets 
and footpaths 

 Promoting Bulk Waste service as 
cheap alternative to getting a skip 

 Warden attendance at community 
groups and school sessions to inform 
and educate residents and harness 
interest in community clean ups  

 Promote Recycling where possible 
including during Recycling Week 12-18 
November  

 Facilitate 8 community clean ups in 
unadopted backstreets working with 
residents who live there 

 Support opportunities and help shape 
activities through Better Start 
Bradford’s ‘Better Place’ work 

2.         SAFE 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . .  

 
Named people 
responsible 

2.1 Drug dealing 
drug taking 
and Anti-Social 
Behaviour 
 

 Police and Wardens encourage 
anonymous forms of reporting by 
residents.  

 Promotion of Crimestoppers as a safe 
way to anonymously report 
information.  

 Promote Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch for residents to receive 

 Report incidents, anonymously 
where appropriate (online, by 
email, by phone to 
Neighbourhood Policing Team 
and to Crimestoppers.) 

 Residents Associations and 
Neighbourhood Watches to 
support residents and 

 Police 

 Ward Officer 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Schools 

P
age 121



information and report incidents safely.  

 Police patrols targeted on hotspot 
areas and action to deal with incidents, 
locations and offenders. 

 Support members of residents groups 
and neighbourhood associations to 
report incidents  

 Youth Service sessions providing 
positive activities for young people. 

 Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, and 
escalate this where appropriate. 

 Police / PCSO / Warden engagement 
with residents including those from 
different ethnic backgrounds whose 
lifestyles (such as drinking in public 
places) may clash with others. 

 Support to voluntary youth 
organisations to work together to 
obtain funding and meet need for 
positive activities for young people. 

 Promote Safeguarding Week events in 
June. 

   

encourage safe reporting of 
information.   

 Community run positive 
activities for young people. 

 Trident Community Council 
Neighbourhood Plan includes 
leading on a community based 
drug education project 

 Community events to include 
Police and Wardens where 
appropriate for signposting and 
information on how to safely 
report ASB and crime 

 

 Social housing 
landlords 

 Area Operations 
Manager 

 Trident Community 
Council 

 Youth workers 

2.2 Inappropriate 
parking - 
particularly by 
parents / carers 
around schools. 
 

 Schools and Children’s Centre run 
road safety work with children. 

 Regular Wardens education and 
enforcement work around schools. 

 Talks to parents groups by Police or 
Ward Officer on parking and road 
safety. 

 Promote Walk to School week – May 
16-20th 

 Be prepared to park a short 
distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey where 
possible and appropriate.  – e.g. 
during Walk to School week – 
May  

 Support school walking bus and 
other projects to encourage 
appropriate parking and walking 

 Police 

 Ward Officer 

 Wardens  

 Road Safety Team 

 Schools 

 Children’s Centres 

 Bradford Trident 

 Trident Community 
Council 

P
age 122



 World Health Day work in April 

 Bike week event in April 
 

by parents and children  Better Start 

 Parents and drivers 

2.3 Provision of 
and support to 
youth  
sessions, 
youth clubs 
and positive 
activities for 
young people  

 Deliver youth work sessions – The Arc, 
West Bowling Centre, Parkside.  

 Create opportunities to increase youth 
work provision e.g. by involving 
volunteers.   

 Deliver positive activity holiday 
programs  

 Train youth and adult volunteers to 
volunteer with young people and 
support local youth clubs.  

 Support young people’s educational 
achievements.  

 Work with young people on projects 
through ‘The Challenge’ 

 Provision of the Better Start Bradford 
programme and projects with families 
who have 0 – 4 year olds 

 Recognising needs locally and 
working together to plan to meet 
these where possible and 
feasible e.g. older youth group 
for Canterbury 

 Residents as volunteers and 
trustees of local youth 
organisations  

 Work towards increased 
community use of the Arc Youth 
Centre.  

 Support Safeguarding Week 
events – October. 

 Local volunteers to support 
youth activities.  

 Run holiday and summer 
scheme provision  

 

 Youth Service 

 Ward Officer 

 CD Worker 

 Trident  

 Trident Community 
     Council 

 Voluntary and 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Residents  

3.         ACTIVE 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

3.1 Encourage 
healthy 
Lifestyles 

 Better Start support of HENRY (Health 
Education and Nutrition for the Really 
Young) across the area and HENRY 
Parent Champions to spread the word. 

 Support / initiate at least 3 food 
markets where fresh produce is made 
available in communities at low cost 
from supermarket surplus 

 Weekly lunch Clubs held by a 
number of community 
organisations across the area  

 Local Community Centres to 
lead on projects and introduce 
activities to help people improve 
their life style e.g. cook and eat 
sessions, walking and exercise 

 Ward Officer 

 Better Start 

 Inn Churches 

 Healthy Lifestyles 
Project 

 Light of the World 

 Westend Centre 

P
age 123



 Healthy Lifestyles Project run cook and 
eat sessions 

 Use Mental Health Awareness Week 
14 – 20th May and World Mental 
Health Day 10th October to promote 
services that support those with mental 
health difficulties 

 Link in with Diabetes Week 11 – 17th 
June to promote testing, dietary 
advice, cooking courses, exercise, etc 

 Healthy Lifestyles, Better Start and 
other organisations running cook and 
east sessions, walking groups etc. 

 

groups 

 Take advantage of the services 
locally provided by a range of 
organisation to help improve 
people’s health and change 
their lifestyle  

 Membership of local sports 
clubs such as football and 
cricket clubs 

  
 

3.2 Relationships 
between 
people of 
different faiths 
and culture 
 
 
 

 Create and support social 
opportunities for people from different 
faith, cultural and ethnic backgrounds 
to mix and break down barriers 

 Explore feasibility of running an 
interfaith event – perhaps as part of 
national Interfaith Week in November. 

 Youth Service cohesion event for 
young people - in August. 

 Youth Service work with young people 
on Black History Month - in October.  

 Support ‘Big lunch’ events – in June 

 Support International Women’s Day 
events – in March, including Youth 
Service 

 Police /PCSO / Warden engagement 
with residents from different cultural / 
ethnic backgrounds whose lifestyles 
(such as public drinking) may clash 

 BD5 Faith Forum bringing 
together a range of faiths to 
work on common issues and 
interests  

 Community groups encourage 
social mixing and relationship 
building in a safe and fun way 

 Neighbours being neighbourly 

 Support International Women’s 
Day events – in March 

 Support ‘Big lunch’ events – in 
June 

 Interfaith Mosque Open Day in 
February. 

 BD5 Refugee and Asylum 
Seekers Women’s group in 
West Bowling 

 Trident 

 Trident Community 
Council 

 Schools 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Better Start 

 Residents 

 West Bowling 
Training & Advice 
Centre 

 

P
age 124



with others. 

 Support the Great Get Together and 
the Big Lunch as ways for residents to 
come together in June  

 Support and promote Macmillan 
Coffee Morning events 29th September 

 Promote services, activities  and 
community events by a range of 
means - including posters, face to 
face, email and social media 

 

3.3 Support, 
encouragement 
and 
opportunities 
for residents to 
volunteer to get 
involved in a 
wide range of 
activities and 
projects 
 

 Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage 
their own involvement in local projects. 

 Support the Big Lunch – in June and 
link into activities for National 
Volunteers week 1-7th June. 

 Youth Service recruit and train 
volunteers to build capacity in sessions 
and increase the support to work with 
young people. 

 Better Start Bradford support and offer 
a range of volunteering opportunities 
that increase the impact of their 
programme of work 

 Support for residents to get involved in 
beautiful BD5 projects such as 
community clean ups and the 
garden/yard competition 

 Support to Trident Community Council 
to be effective in progressing their 
Community Plan  

 Involvement of local residents in 
residents groups, other 
voluntary organisations and in 
volunteering as an individual, 
some as trustees.  

 Involvement of volunteers at 
local community centres and 
faith organisations and in 
running activities for others. 

 Support the Big Lunch in June 
and national Volunteers week 1-
7th June 

 Ward Officer 

 Youth Service 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 

 Resident 
volunteers 

 

P
age 125



 Explore feasibility of establishing a 
BD5 Women’s Forum to work together 
on local concerns and activities 

 Link in with International Women’s Day 
on 8th March 

 Promote opportunities for residents to 
get involved as volunteers with 
services, activities  and community 
events by a range of means - including 
posters, face to face, email and social 
media 
 

3.4 Support with 
fundraising for 
community 
activities and 
projects and 
organisations to 
work together 
avoiding 
duplication and 
enhancing 
provision  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Support Better Start Network Lunch to 
encourage people to share good 
practice and work across 
organisational boundaries 

 CD worker and Ward Officer to help 
organisations to develop plans and 
actions that meet local needs  

 CD worker and Ward Officer to support 
local organisations in developing 
projects and activities and applying for 
funding 

 CD worker and Ward Officer to support 
volunteers involved in local 
organisations where appropriate and 
possible 

 CD worker, Ward Officer and Youth 
Service to support people considering 
volunteering locally, including informal 
training and connecting them to local 
organisations, where appropriate 

 Community Chest and Community 

 Attend BD5 Network Lunch to 
share good practice and 
develop relationships work 
across organisational 
boundaries 

 Recognising needs locally and 
working together to plan to meet 
these where possible and 
feasible. 

 Residents as street champions 
and trustees of local 
organisations working locally. 

 

 Ward Officer 

 CD Worker 

 Trident Community 
     Council 

 Voluntary and 
Community 
organisations,  

 Trustees  
 

P
age 126



Council grants available to support 
local projects. 

 CVS support to voluntary groups 
including VCS Network event to pass 
on information and advice to support 
voluntary organisations to provide 
services 

 Information from Bfunded regarding 
funding opportunities passed onto 
local groups. 

 

4.          OTHER 

4.1 Support local 
families to deal 
with the impact 
of low income 

 Welfare benefits advice services 
commissioned locally include 
assistance with fuel poverty and 
switching energy providers where 
appropriate 

 Promotion of White Rose Energy and 
other lower cost providers 

 Trident Bike library offering repairs and 
loaning out of bikes to residents. 

 Job clubs and similar support for 
residents to find jobs and training 
provides provided by local 
organisations including SHINE, WBC, 
ARC etc 

 Use local advice services 
 

 Voluntary and 
Community groups 

 Ward Officer 

 Bradford Trident 

 Better Start 
Bradford 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
Bolton and Undercliffe Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report  

 

1.0 Cleaner Greener 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can   

Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target  street litter – 
especially around 
schools and business 
areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure kerbside 
collections are regular, 
accessible and that 
residents are aware of 
the New ‘Bin Policy’ 
which introduces 
alternate weekly 
collections.  
 

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
front s and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when trade 
waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Engage with Schools to tackle litter 
dropped by students.  
 
 
Contact elderly or vulnerable 
residents or those who live with 
steps or steep drives to discuss 
collections. Offer assisted 
collections where appropriate.  
 
Ensure that bins are collected on 
schedule.  
Work to increase the number of 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
 
Recycle as much household waste as 
possible within the guidelines of the 
new bin policy.  
 
 
 
 
 

Ward 
Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of 
Groups 
Schools 
 

P
age 129



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce Fly Tipping 
 
 
 
Support local 
environmental projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
Dog Fouling   

houses that have a recycle bin and 
work with residents who are not 
using the service correctly.  
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 
Working with residents and business 
to collect information and pursue 
enforcement action.  
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support the exploration of new 
project aimed at promoting clean air 
and wild life around the Undercliffe 
area.  
 
Explore innovative ways to tackle 
dog fouling. Taking examples from 
other local authorities including 
flagging dog fouling.  Consult with 
local residents in hotspot areas on 
the possibilities of a pilot scheme.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Visual audits and community litter picks held in focussing in the most fly-tipped and heavily littered areas involving a mix of 
residents, schools and community groups including parks, open spaces and unadopted backstreets. Presentations delivered 
in some schools covering anti-littering, recycling and services available from the Council.  Area around SidWigCres has been 
supported by Wardens working alongside local residents group.  

 Wardens regularly help out the Clean Team and Fly tipping Team by litter picking (including in adopted backstreets in the 
Maze area) and helping remove fly tipping from verges. Wardens speak to residents where fly tipping is found and go through 
bags of waste to try and find evidence of who dumped it.   

 Families engaged with recycling activities through the Police Camp over a four week period.  

 Wardens work with businesses on containment and disposal of business waste as problems arise. Work has included visual 

P
age 130



audits and clean-up of key gateways.  

 Wardens, Ward Officer and Enforcement Officer education and enforcement action where needed and appropriate and 
possible 

 Reassurance and engagement action days / streets surgeries / school gate surgeries delivered talking to residents about 
practically helping to clean up their areas, report issues and helping residents download the Council app, ordering recycling 
bins and issuing Household Waste Site permits. 

 Great British Spring Clean events held and litter picks with young people.  

 Dog Fouling Action Days and anti-dog fouling posters placed in top hot-spots. 

 Recycling awareness action days held in hot-spot areas.  

2.0 Safer Communities 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can  

Named person 
responsible 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Roadshow 
events, in partnership 
with other Wards, to 
ensure resident are 
aware of basic crime 
prevention measures, 
fire safety. This is an 
opportunity to engage 
and inform residents on 
the best ways to report 
crime.  
 
Tackle anti social 
behaviour in Swain 
House/ 5 Lane Ends.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Develop community based forums to 
encourage people to report issues 
including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Strengthen links between Schools 
and Police officers to tackle anti-
social behaviour issues particularly 
within the Swain House area. 
 
Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, 
escalating this where appropriate to 
Court action. 
 
Detached youth work by Youth 
Service in hotspots such a 5 Lane 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 
activities to divert young people into 
positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 131



 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

 
 
Disrupt the sale of 
illegal alcohol, tobacco 
and fireworks, 
especially to under age 
individuals.  
 
 
 
Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding and 
inconsiderate parking.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To work with partners 
and the community to 
tackle drug use and 
dealing in specific “ hot 
spot” areas  in the ward 

Ends. 
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Offer schools educational 
programmes through the Road 
Safety Team – supporting 
pedestrian safety and raise 
awareness of consequences of not 
using seat belts, child seats and use 
of mobile phones. Drivers drive and 
park more responsibly.  
 
Regular Police and Wardens 
educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the Peel 
Park, Poplars Farm and Swain 
House cluster of school as arranged 
through the Ward Partnership Team. 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 
ensure information is reported to 
police.  Positive action to be 
collected and fed back to residents 
within these identified areas. 

 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
 
 
 
Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 
within as much information as 
possible. 
 
Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance mis 
use.  

P
age 132



2.6 Effective Ward 
Partnership Team 
meetings (WPT)  

Trail a new style of WPT to make 
the most of resource.  Hold 
discussions with key partners and 
Ward Councillors across Eccleshill, 
Bolton and Undercliffe and Idle and 
Thackley to trial a series of collective 
WPT meetings to help support 
vulnerable people.    
 
 
 

 Neighbourhood 
Policing Team / 
Council Ward 
Officer 

 Road safety educational projects in primary schools across the ward.   

 Enforcement action days some involving Police to deal with school gate parking issues including issuing Penalty Charge 
Notices for vehicles parked in contravention, sending key messages out through the school and assemblies.  

 Crime prevention road shows, Online Watch, Business Watch and other crime prevention information circulated to community 
contacts through social media streams, at community engagement events (fun days in schools, community centres and parks) 
and reassurance action days.  

 Youth Service delivered school holiday and also weekly diversionary activities including educational projects covering a range 
of themes such as anti-social behaviour, safe guarding, staying safe and anti-drugs. Detached work undertaken by Youth 
Services. Youth sessions provision to be developed to run from the Greenwood Centre. 

 Report incidents on residents behalf – residents can be extremely loathe to report drug dealing and ASB even anonymously 
as they fear the persons concerned will work out who reported them 

 Young people engaged in Police Camps over a four week period.  

 On-going work by Council Wardens, Police and Ward Officer to encourage residents to report drug dealing and drug running 
to either Police or Crime stoppers.  

 Police Camp delivered engaging with families and young people over a 4 week period – subjects ranging from cyber safety, 
safe guarding, fire safety, anti-bullying plus visits to Police and Army bases were included as part of the offer. 

 Pilot of Ward Partnership merged with Eccleshill, Idle and Thackley Wards focussing on key issues.  

3.0 Inequalities, health and Wellbeing 

 
Code 

 
Priority  

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can 

Named person 
responsible 

P
age 133



3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 

Actively promote and 
support activities for 
older people to reduce 
social isolation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encourage healthy 
eating and positive 
individual behaviour life 
style changes. 
 
Maintain Eccleshill 
Swimming Pool as an 
affordable and 
accessible local 
resource.  
 
Explore developing a 
Green Gym  

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities 
and events and sign post 
individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use 
of local pharmacies for advice where 
appropriate. 
 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 
community venues / community 
websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food choices 
and encouraged to exercise, stop / 
reduce smoking and manage their 
own health through self-care initiated 
actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third Sector 

 Information promoted through community events, fun days, schools and through other community engagement networks.  

 Walking groups and activities now take place in Peel Park. 

 Wardens and Police visits to older peoples complexes offering information, support and sign-posting. 

 Youth sessions delivered through GOALs, detached work and in the future to include Greenwood Centre as a base. 

4.0 Incomes Skills and Housing 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

What can the Community 
Contribute? Individual residents, 
local groups… 

Named person 
responsible 

P
age 134



4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

Ensure people can 
access the right 
support and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Substandard, 
overcrowded or empty 
homes.  

Link people to services to reduce 
problems with debt, changes to 
welfare reform and tackle fuel 
poverty.  Support people into 
employment – sign posting to 
employability programme 
opportunities. 
 
Raise awareness of foodbanks 
where appropriate e.g. Trussell 
Trust, Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an Integrated 
Switching Service 
 
Provide workshops for local people 
to protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to 
relevant services. 
 
 
Council Wardens to refer 
overcrowded homes to Housing 
Standards Team or social housing 
organisations. 
 
Council Warden to refer 
substandard empty homes to Empty 
Homes Team or social housing 
providers. 

Debt advice provision to be offered at 
the Greenwood Centre facilitated by 
Inspired Neighbourhoods 
 
Local foodbanks run by Church on the 
Way and St Luke’s Church. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Refer empty homes to the Empty 
Homes Team or local Councillors 

Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 
InCommunities 
Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Community 
Works 
Children’s 
Centre  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 
Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

4.2 Support local 
businesses  

Develop a Local Business Network.    

P
age 135



4.3 Shipley and Canal 
Road Area Action Plan 
– new housing. To 
ensure that local 
communities are kept 
informed and engaged 
wherever possible in on 
going regeneration 
initiatives and 
developments within 
the ward.  
 
 

Update residents by appropriate 
means, including social media and 
forums, encourage involvement in 
the planning consultation process.  
 
Ensure that Ward Plan consideration 
are reflected in developments, e.g. 
community safety, road network 
implications, provision for positive 
activity and active communities  
 

Residents can check planning website 
for information on applications made. 
 

Planning 
Regeneration 
Team  
Ward Officer 
Council 

 Job clubs held in community centres and young people supported through NEET contracts.  More work needed locally it is 
hoped that the Greenwood Centre development will provide additional opportunities.  

 Volunteering and / or educational programmes developed by youth services and partners providing young opportunities to 
become involved with learning new skills and running activities for other young people at Duke of Edinburgh Centre.   

 Wardens refer properties and tenants to Private Sector Housing or Empty Homes Team where there are issues relating to 
housing standards or dumped waste at properties.   

 Advice provision is available in some of the community centres just outside of the Ward.   

5.0 Children and Young People 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can 

Named person 
responsible 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seek to challenge low 
educational attainment, 
low aspirations and anti 
social behaviour by 
improving the offer for 
young people.  
 
 
 
 

BMDC Delivers up to 3 open access 
sessions each week at the 
Greenwood Centre, Sorted and at 
Goals and holiday activities 
schemes.  
Provides a variety of formal and 
informal workshops addressing 
issues that young people face at 
Greenwood, Sorted and Goals.  
Deliver preventative one to one and 

Partners and communities refer young 
people to youth provision 
opportunities and events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Youth Service 
Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 
Sorted Church 
Goals 
Hanson School 
 
 

P
age 136



 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Deliver inclusive open 
access youth work 
sessions addressing 
ASB, challenging 
behaviour, Substance 
misuse, sexual health, 
healthy relationships 
and community pride. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain Peel Park as 
a recreational space, 
with the provision of 
play equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure Eccleshill 
Library remains open, 
accessible and relevant 
to young people.  
 
  
 
 
 
 

group sessions to young people at 
risk of CSE in the ward. 
 
Work with young people and families 
at low level risk of CSE in 
partnership with the CSE hub to 
reduce risk levels and increase 
resilience. A series of assessments 
and action plans will be put in place 
for young people and agreed by 
them and the family. Support young 
people to stick to action plans and 
engage in positive activities that will 
enhance their life. 
 
Recruit, train and enable youth and 
adult volunteers to support youth 
work sessions. 
 
Ensure Peel Park remains a place 
for outdoor play and sport.  
 
Support Friends of Peel Park who 
provide a cafe facility. 
 
Encourage and make accessible the 
full range of facilities in Peel Park.  
 
Ensure the right sort of books are 
available at the library and that 
young people know how and when 
they can access them.  
 
Ensure the library is a welcoming 
environment for young people. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Volunteer with Friends of Peel Park. 
Report any damage to the park to 
Bradford Council on 01274 431000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign up children to use the library  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 137



 
5.5 

 
Implement and support 
the Community led 
school improvement 
project (Springwood) 
which is aimed at 
introducing a range of 
positive learning 
experiences for 
children and young 
people. 
 
The purpose of this 
project is to raise the 
attainment of this group 
of young people and in 
particular to support 
their transition into 
secondary school. 

Promote reading amongst children 
and young people.  
 
The Springfield Centre has 
employed a Community Literature 
Champion.  
 
Neighbourhood Services and the 
Youth Service to provide support to 
project through different work 
streams such as social resilience 
work and environmental awareness 
work and the use of Council 
resources and facilities.  
Youth Service to provide a 
programme of summer activities for 
children and young people. 
 
 
 

 
Volunteer to support the Springwood 
Partnership to develop a project plan 
to deliver the Community Based 
Improvement Project. 
 
Local people can volunteer to support 
a range of activities and services such 
as homework clubs, literacy 
champions and to help run a 
community library. 
 
 

 Youth engagement activities delivered at GOALS and through detached work. Includes holiday activities during half-term, 
Easter and summer holidays held including trips, community fun day and outdoor events. 

 Volunteers training programme available and young volunteers schemed developed supporting young people to run activities 
for other young people. 

 Friends of Peel Park group being developed. 

6. Stronger Communities 
 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People Can 

Named person 
responsible 

6.1 Support, encourage 
and develop 
opportunities for 
residents to volunteer 
to get involved in a 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage 
their own involvement in local 
projects.  

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 

P
age 138



wide range of activities 
and projects 
connecting people from 
different faiths, 
ethnicities and ages. 
 

 
Develop a multi-faith forum for the 
ward and host multi-faith celebration 
events.  
 
Encourage residents to report issues 
to agencies and Council services 
and explore community responses 
as part of the solutions approach.  

 
Support community groups to 
access funding opportunities internal 
and external to the Council. 
 
Support local voluntary groups  

solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  

groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

 ‘People Can Make a difference’ website highlighting voluntary community action and Bradford East Facebook used. 

 Bradford East Facebook group highlighting good news and community action across the area. 

 Twitter account now established.   

 Youth service Cohesion event run in summer holiday. 

 Youth service Black History Month in October 

 Youth Service International Women’s Day event in March. 

 Day to day work of Wardens, PCSO’s, Housing Managers and other workers in tackling community issues that can create 
community tensions  

 Schools, Children’s Centres and other community organisations running stay and play and parents forums/ sessions. 

 

P
age 139



Bowling and Barkerend Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report 
 

1.0 Cleaner Greener 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can  Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce street litter – 
especially around 
schools and business 
areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure kerbside 
collections are regular, 
accessible and that 
residents are aware of 
the New ‘Bin Policy’ 
which introduces 
alternate weekly 
collections.  
 

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
fronts and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when 
trade waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Engage with Schools to tackle litter 
dropped by students.  
 
 
Contact elderly or vulnerable 
residents or those who live with 
steps or steep drives to discuss 
collections. Offer assisted 
collections where appropriate.  
 
Ensure that bins are collected on 
schedule.  
 
Work to increase the number of 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
Recycle as much household waste as 
possible within the guidelines of the 
new bin policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of 
Groups 
Schools 
 

P
age 140



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce fly tipping and 
engage more 
proactively with 
residents and partners 
focusing on the top 10 
hot-spots within the 
ward  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support local positive 
social action 
environmental 
initiatives. 
 

houses that have a recycle bin and 
work with residents who are not 
using the service correctly.  
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 
Working with residents and 
business to collect information and 
pursue enforcement action.  
 
Explore use of CCTV to maximise 
intelligence gathering to support 
possible prosecutions. 
 
Collaborative problem solving with 
Wardens, Ward Officer, 
Enforcement Officer and Clean 
Team 
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support community led 
environmental action days and back 
street tidy ups.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents and partners engage with 
helping to organise community led 
environmental action days and 
projects.  

 Visual audits and community litter picks held in focussing in the most fly-tipped and heavily littered areas involving a mix of 
residents, schools and community groups including parks, open spaces and unadopted backstreets. Presentations delivered in 
some schools covering anti-littering, recycling and services available from the Council.   

 Wardens regularly help out the Clean Team and Fly tipping Team by litter picking (including in adopted backstreets in the Maze 
area) and helping remove fly tipping from verges. Wardens speak to residents where fly tipping is found and go through bags of 
waste to try and find evidence of who dumped it.   

 Supporting Friends of Group – monthly litter picks held in Bowling Park.  

P
age 141



 Wardens work with businesses on containment and disposal of business waste as problems arise. Support has been given to 
Karmand Centre on a waste cooking oil collection and recycling scheme which has been extended to cover additional streets in 
BD3 with further support from Yorkshire Water.    

 Wardens, Ward Officer and Enforcement Officer education and enforcement action where needed and appropriate and 
possible. Increase in environmental enforcement prosecutions. New pilot of CPWs trialled in Barkerend. 

 Reassurance and engagement action days / streets surgeries / school gate surgeries delivered talking to residents about 
practically helping to clean up their areas, report issues and helping residents download the Council app, ordering recycling 
bins and issuing Household Waste Site permits. 

 Gulley cleansing action days delivered in streets most difficult to access and with highest number of blocked gullies. 
Engagement work by Warden has also included door knocking talking to people and businesses about responsibly disposing of 
oil, food waste and containing building materials.   

 Roll out of new bin policy – awareness raised through presentations, contact with third sector and home visits. 

2.0 Safer Communities 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community engagement 
awareness events to 
ensure resident are 
aware of basic crime 
prevention measures, 
fire safety. This is an 
opportunity to engage 
and inform residents on 
the best ways to report 
crime.  
 
 
 
Tackle anti social 
behaviour within the 
Undercliffe area, Leeds 
Road vicinity and 
Seymour Park. 
 
 
 

Develop community based forums 
to encourage people to report 
issues including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Strengthen links between Schools 
and Police officers to tackle anti-
social behaviour issues particularly 
within the Undercliffe area, Leeds 
Road vicinity and Seymour Park. 
 
Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, 
escalating this where appropriate to 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 
activities to divert young people into 
positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 142



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disrupt the sale of illegal 
alcohol, tobacco and 
fireworks, especially to 
under age individuals.  
 
Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding, inconsiderate 
parking, mobile phone 
and seat belt 
infringements.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To work with partners 
and the community to 
tackle drug use and 

Court action. 
 
Detached youth work by Youth 
Service in hotspots particularly 
around Seymour Park. 
 
Explore developing new 
approaches to tackle anti social 
behaviour issues within BD3 
working in conjunction with the 
Safer and Stronger Project Officer 
team. 
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
 
 
Offer schools educational 
programmes through the Road 
Safety Team – supporting 
pedestrian safety and raise 
awareness of consequences of not 
using seat belts, child seats and use 
of mobile phones. Drivers drive and 
park more responsibly.  
 
Regular Police and Wardens 
educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the 
Barkerend Road corridor and Fenby 
Avenue as arranged through the 
Ward Partnership Team. 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 
ensure information is reported to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 
within as much information as 
possible. 
 

P
age 143



dealing in specific hot 
spot areas in the ward. 

police.  Positive action to be 
collected and fed back to residents 
within these identified areas. 

Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance 
misuse.  

 Road safety educational projects in primary schools across the ward.   

 Enforcement action days some involving Police to deal with school gate parking issues including issuing Penalty Charge 
Notices for vehicles parked in contravention, sending key messages out through the school and assemblies.  

 Crime prevention road shows, Online Watch, Business Watch and other crime prevention information circulated to community 
contacts through social media streams, at community engagement events (fun days in schools, community centres and parks) 
and reassurance action days.  

 Youth Service delivered school holiday and also weekly diversionary activities including educational projects covering a range 
of themes such as anti-social behaviour, safe guarding, staying safe and anti-drugs.  Primetime deliver weekly sessions from 
The Vine Centre and during school holidays.  Emerge are involved in delivering youth sessions in Bowling Park after school 
and during school holiday periods.  

 Report incidents on residents behalf – residents can be extremely loathe to report drug dealing and ASB even anonymously as 
they fear the persons concerned will work out who reported them 

 On-going work by Council Wardens, Police and Ward Officer to encourage residents to report drug dealing and drug running to 
either Police or Crime stoppers.  Campaign to encourage reporting being developed.  

 Work with Places for People, InCommunities and Manningham Housing Association supported by the Police and Council 
Wardens carrying out door knocking and engagement to encourage reporting of issues.   

 Community walks delivered by local groups and Better Start to encourage walking to school and pedestrian safety.  

 Police Camp delivered engaging with almost 900 families and young people over a 4 week period – subjects ranging from 
cyber safety, safe guarding, fire safety, anti-bullying plus visits to Police and Army bases were included as part of the offer.  

 

3.0 Inequalities, health and Wellbeing 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Actively promote and 
support activities for 
older people to reduce 
social isolation.  
 
 
 
 

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities 
and events and sign post 
individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use 
of local pharmacies for advice 
where appropriate. 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 
community venues / community 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third Sector 

P
age 144



 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Encourage healthy 
eating and positive 
individual behaviour life 
style changes. 
 
 

 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 
Support the delivery of Better Start 
initiatives such as HENRY (Health 
Education and Nutrition for the 
Really Young) across the area and 
HENRY Parent Champions to 
spread the word. 

websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food 
choices and encouraged to exercise, 
stop / reduce smoking and manage 
their own health through self-care 
initiated actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

 Information promoted through Forums, fun days, schools and through other community engagement events.  

 Better Start working in area with children 0-5 years old and families improving health links and support available. 

 Walking groups and activities supported in Bowling Park and Myrashay. 

 Wardens and Police visits to older peoples complexes offering information, support and sign- 

4.0 Incomes Skills and Housing 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ensure people can 
access the right support 
and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Link people to services to reduce 
problems with debt, changes to 
welfare reform and tackle fuel 
poverty.   
 
Support people into employment – 
sign posting to employability 
programme opportunities. 
 
Raise awareness of foodbanks 
where appropriate e.g. Trussell 
Trust, Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an 
Integrated Switching Service 
 

Debt advice provision offered in 
places of community interest.  
 
Community led food projects and 
luncheon clubs e.g. faith centre on 
Prospect Road hold weekly evening 
to feed the homeless supported by 
other faith and third sector partners. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

InCommunities 
Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Children’s 
Centres  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 
Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

P
age 145



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Substandard, 
overcrowded or empty 
homes.  

Provide workshops for local people 
to protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to 
relevant services. 
 
 
Council Wardens to refer 
overcrowded homes to Housing 
Standards Team or social housing 
organisations. 
 
Council Warden to refer 
substandard empty homes to Empty 
Homes Team or social housing 
providers. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Refer empty homes to the Empty 
Homes Team or local Councillors 

 Job clubs held in local community centres and young people supported through NEET contracts.   

 Volunteering and / or educational programmes developed by youth services and partners providing young opportunities to 
become involved with learning new skills and running activities for other young people at Karmand Centre, The Vine Centre and 
at different locations in East Bowling.  

 Wardens refer properties and tenants to Private Sector Housing or Empty Homes Team where there are issues relating to 
housing standards or dumped waste at properties.   

 Advice provision is available in some of the local community centres.   

 BD3 network developed and events held. 

5.0 Children and Young People 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Seek to challenge low 
educational attainment, 
low aspirations and anti 
social behaviour by 
improving the offer for 
young people.  

BMDC delivers weekly open access 
sessions at the Karmand Centre 
and Carlton Bolling College and 
holiday activities schemes.  
 
Provides a variety of formal and 

Partners and communities refer young 
people to youth provision 
opportunities and events. 
 
Third Sector and faith centres also 
deliver youth engagement activities 

Youth Service 
Third Sector  
Faith Centres 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Police 

P
age 146



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deliver inclusive open 
access youth work 
sessions addressing 
ASB, challenging 
behaviour, Substance 
misuse, sexual health, 
healthy relationships 
and community pride. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain local parks and 
open places and 
recreational spaces, 
with the provision of 
play equipment and 
sports provision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

informal workshops addressing 
issues that young people face at 
youth service open access venues.  
 
Deliver preventative one to one and 
group sessions to young people at 
risk of CSE in the ward including 
work with the EU communities. 
 
Work with young people and 
families at low level risk of CSE in 
partnership with the CSE hub to 
reduce risk levels and increase 
resilience. A series of assessments 
and action plans will be put in place 
for young people and agreed by 
them and the family. Support young 
people to stick to action plans and 
engage in positive activities that will 
enhance their life. 
 
Recruit, train and enable youth and 
adult volunteers to support youth 
work sessions. 
 
Ensure local parks including 
Bowling Park, Myrashay, Beech 
Grove and Seymour Street remain 
as places for outdoor play and 
sport.  
 
Support Friends of Bowling Park 
who provide a cafe facility and 
deliver a range of community 
benefit activities. 
 

include Emerge, The Vine Centre and 
local sports groups.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Volunteer with Friends of Bowling 
Park.  
 
Support developing a Friends of 
Seymour Park Group.  
 
Report any damage to the park to 
Bradford Council on 01274 431000. 
 
 
 
 

CSE Hub 
 

P
age 147



 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Ensure St Augustine’s 
Library remains open, 
accessible and relevant 
to young people.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Explore developing a Friends of 
Seymour Park Group.  
 
Encourage and make accessible 
the full range of facilities within the 
parks.  
 
Ensure the right sort of books are 
available at the library and that 
young people know how and when 
they can access them.  
 
Ensure the library is a welcoming 
environment for young people. 
 
Promote reading amongst children 
and young people.  
 

 
 
 
Sign up children to use the library.   
 
Become involved as a volunteer to 
help run St Augustine’s library.    
 
Local people volunteer to support a 
range of activities and services such 
as homework clubs and become 
literacy champions. 
 
 

 Youth engagement activities delivered at Karmand Centre, East Bowling Unity Club, The Vine Centre and in Bowling Park on a 
scheduled basis and detached work undertaken on a needs basis.  Includes holiday activities during half-term, Easter and 
summer holidays held including trips, community fun day and outdoor events. 

 Volunteers training programme available and young volunteers schemed developed supporting young people to run activities for 
other young people. 

 Young people involved in environmental project involving recycling arts and crafts, visual audit, community litter pick and 
culminating into the production of a DVD promoting key messages to encourage people to pledge not to drop litter.  

 St Augustine’s Library with support from Youth Service and Carlton Bolling College has remained opened – it is run now with 
support from volunteers.  

6. Stronger Communities 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

P
age 148



6.1 Support, encourage and 
develop opportunities 
for residents to 
volunteer to get involved 
in a wide range of 
activities and projects 
connecting people from 
different faiths, 
ethnicities and ages. 
 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to 
encourage their own involvement in 
local projects.  
 
Continue to support the multi-faith 
forum for the ward and host multi-
faith celebration events.  
 
Encourage residents to report 
issues to agencies and Council 
services and explore community 
responses as part of the solutions 
approach.  

 
Support community groups to 
access funding opportunities 
internal and external to the Council. 
Support local voluntary groups  

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 
solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  
 
Partners host multi-faith and multi-
cultural community events.   

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 
groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

 Development of Bowling Park Lodge into a community hub and café online for opening in August 2018.  

 ‘People Can Make a difference’ website highlighting voluntary community action and Bradford East Facebook. 

 Bradford East Facebook group highlighting good news and community action across the area. 

 Twitter account now established.  

 Community engagement events held at various locations across the ward including Christmas and Eid themed events offering 
sign posting and information. 

 Youth service Cohesion event run in summer holiday. 

 Youth service Black History Month in October 

 Youth Service International Women’s Day event in March. 

 Day to day work of Wardens, PCSO’s, Housing Managers and other workers in tackling community issues that can create 
community tensions. Support BD3 Network.  

 Schools, Children’s Centres and other community organisations running stay and play and parents forums/ sessions. 

 
 
 

P
age 149



Bradford Moor Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report 
 

1.0 Cleaner Greener 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can  Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce street litter – 
especially around 
schools and business 
areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensure kerbside 
collections are regular, 
accessible and that 
residents are aware of 
the New ‘Bin Policy’ 
which introduces 
alternate weekly 
collections.  
 

Ensure that cleaning schedules are 
meeting the need and responding to 
demand.  
 
Ensure there are sufficient litter bins 
and that these bins are regularly 
collected.  
 
Engage with businesses on the 
disposal of trade waste and litter. 
Encourage businesses to tidy shop 
fronts and car parks. 
 
Take enforcement action when 
trade waste is not being disposed of 
correctly.  
 
Engage with Schools to tackle litter 
dropped by students.  
 
 
Contact elderly or vulnerable 
residents or those who live with 
steps or steep drives to discuss 
collections. Offer assisted 
collections where appropriate.  
 
Ensure that bins are collected on 
schedule.  
 
Work to increase the number of 

Report areas where litter has 
collected to the Council via 01274 
431000 or via the Bradford App.  
 
Dispose of household waste in the 
correct way, recycling as much as 
possible. For larger items make use of 
the Households Recycling Centre or 
arrange a bulky waste collection.  
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/recycling-
and-waste/bulky-waste/bulky-waste-
collections/ 
 
Join a local clean up or start one of 
your own 
 
Local businesses to take more 
responsibility for trade waste and litter 
in the area – businesses adequately 
secure and properly dispose of waste. 
 
Recycle as much household waste as 
possible within the guidelines of the 
new bin policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ward Councillors  
Area Operations 
Manager 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Environmental 
Enforcement 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Community  
Friends of 
Groups 
Schools 
 

P
age 150



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reduce fly tipping and 
engage more 
proactively with 
residents and partners 
focusing on the top 10 
hot-spots within the 
ward  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support local positive 
social action 
environmental 
initiatives. 
 

houses that have a recycle bin and 
work with residents who are not 
using the service correctly.  
 
Work with residents and housing 
providers to encourage recycling in 
multi occupancy blocks and shared 
collection points.  
 
 
Working with residents and 
business to collect information and 
pursue enforcement action.  
 
Explore use of CCTV to maximise 
intelligence gathering to support 
possible prosecutions. 
 
Collaborative problem solving with 
Wardens, Ward Officer, 
Enforcement Officer and Clean 
Team 
 
Offer practical support to local 
environmental groups or projects. 
Support community led 
environmental action days and back 
street tidy ups.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report fly tipping to the Council on 
01274 431000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents and partners engage with 
helping to organise community led 
environmental action days and 
projects.  
 

 Visual audits and community litter picks held in focussing in the most fly-tipped and heavily littered areas involving a mix of 
residents, schools and community groups including parks, open spaces and unadopted backstreets. Presentations delivered in 
some schools covering anti-littering, recycling and services available from the Council.  There is need to undertake more 
educational based work in school / community settings.  

 Wardens regularly help out the Clean Team and Fly tipping Team by litter picking (including in adopted backstreets in the Maze 
area) and helping remove fly tipping from verges. Wardens speak to residents where fly tipping is found and go through bags of 
waste to try and find evidence of who dumped it.   

P
age 151



 Supported a range of resident led backstreet tidy up events and some of these have been delivered in partnership with local 
sports teams, faith centres, businesses and with support from Councillors e.g. Curzon Road, Thornbury Drive, First to Sixth 
Avenues.  

 Wardens work with businesses on containment and disposal of business waste as problems arise. Support has been given to 
Karmand Centre on a waste cooking oil collection and recycling scheme which has been extended to cover additional streets in 
BD3 with further support from Yorkshire Water.    

 Wardens, Ward Officer and Enforcement Officer education and enforcement action where needed and appropriate and 
possible 

 Referring problem rights of way to Probation Service for cutting back and clearing of dumped items including Myrashay, 
Bradford Moor Park and public footpaths.  

 Reassurance and engagement action days / streets surgeries / school gate surgeries delivered talking to residents about 
practically helping to clean up their areas, report issues and helping residents download the Council app, ordering recycling 
bins and issuing Household Waste Site permits. 

 Beautiful BD3 garden completion held led by the St Clement’s Church to showcase positive gardens and encourage people to 
take more pride in the appearance of their gardens / wider neighbourhood.  

 Gulley cleansing action days delivered in streets most difficult to access and with highest number of blocked gullies. 
Engagement work by Warden has also included door knocking talking to people and businesses about responsibly disposing of 
oil, food waste and containing building materials.   

 Roll out of new bin policy – awareness raised through presentations, contact with third sector and home visits. 

2.0 Safer Communities 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

Community engagement 
awareness events to 
ensure resident are 
aware of basic crime 
prevention measures, 
fire safety. This is an 
opportunity to engage 
and inform residents on 
the best ways to report 
crime.  
 
 
 

Develop community based forums 
to encourage people to report 
issues including online reporting. 
 
PCSOs / Wardens promote 
Neighbourhood Watch Schemes, 
Crimestoppers, OWL, community 
based forums and undertake 
reassurance patrols. 

 
 
 
Strengthen links between Schools 

Residents follow crime prevention 
advice, locking doors, windows, sheds 
and garages.   
 
Residents to support each other 
through Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch Initiative. Residents to 
challenge and report ‘cold callers’ and 
suspicious behaviour and incidents to 
the Police. 
 
 
Voluntary youth sessions and 

Police Ward 
Officer 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Trading 
Standards 
Third Sector 
Schools 
 
 

P
age 152



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tackle anti social 
behaviour within the 
Maze particularly 
around Attock Park area 
and the Leeds Road 
corridor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disrupt the sale of illegal 
alcohol, tobacco and 
fireworks, especially to 
under age individuals.  
 
Reduce illegal and poor 
driving standards 
particularly around 
schools, including 
speeding, inconsiderate 
parking, mobile phone 
and seat belt 
infringements.   
 
 

and Police officers to tackle anti-
social behaviour issues particularly 
within the Attock Park area. 
 
Police and Council ASB teams take 
action such as warning letters, 
escalating this where appropriate to 
Court action. 
 
Detached youth work by Youth 
Service in hotspots particularly 
around Attock Park and the Leeds 
Road corridor. 
 
Explore developing new 
approaches to tackle anti social 
behaviour issues within BD3 
working in conjunction with the 
Safer and Stronger Project Officer 
team. 
 
Spot checks carried out re sale of 
alcohol to under aged people.  
 
 
 
Offer schools educational 
programmes through the Road 
Safety Team – supporting 
pedestrian safety and raise 
awareness of consequences of not 
using seat belts, child seats and use 
of mobile phones. Drivers drive and 
park more responsibly.  
 
Regular Police and Wardens 

activities to divert young people into 
positive activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Residents to report shops to Trading 
Standards when they feel items are 
being sold illegally.  
 
 
Parents / carers prepared to park a 
short distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey if possible and 
appropriate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 153



 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

 
 
 
 
 
To work with partners 
and the community to 
tackle drug use and 
dealing in specific hot 
spot areas in the ward. 

educational and enforcement work 
around schools including the 
Barkerend Road corridor and Fenby 
Avenue as arranged through the 
Ward Partnership Team. 
 
Focused work in hot spot areas to 
ensure information is reported to 
police.  Positive action to be 
collected and fed back to residents 
within these identified areas. 

 
 
 
Residents to report drug dealing, 
within as much information as 
possible. 
 
Youth Service to provide information 
and advice regarding substance 
misuse.  

 Bonfire initiative held to tackle ASB issues led to significant reduction of issues in November 2017.   

 Focused talks and pieces of work delivered by Youth Services at Laisterdyke Centre covering a wide range of topics – drugs 
awareness, consequences of ASB, impact on communities, bullying, online safety etc. 

 Road safety educational projects in primary schools across the ward.   

 Enforcement action days some involving Police to deal with school gate parking issues including issuing Penalty Charge 
Notices for vehicles parked in contravention, sending key messages out through the school and assemblies.  

 Crime prevention road shows, Online Watch, Business Watch and other crime prevention information circulated to community 
contacts through social media streams, at community engagement events (fun days in schools, community centres and parks) 
and reassurance action days.  

 Youth Service delivered school holiday and also weekly diversionary activities including educational projects covering a range 
of themes such as anti-social behaviour, safe guarding, staying safe and anti-drugs.  

 Report incidents on residents behalf – residents can be extremely loathe to report drug dealing and ASB even anonymously as 
they fear the persons concerned will work out who reported them 

 Young people engaged in Police Camps over 900 families engaged over a four weeks.  

 Ongoing work by Council Wardens, Police and Ward Officer to encourage residents to report drug dealing and drug running to 
either Police or Crime stoppers.  Campaign to encourage reporting being developed.  

 Work with InCommunities and Manningham Housing Association supported by the Police and Council Wardens carrying out 
door knocking and engagement to encourage reporting of issues.   

 Community walks delivered by local groups and Better Start to encourage walking to school and pedestrian safety.  
 

3.0 Inequalities, health and Wellbeing 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

P
age 154



3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

Actively promote and 
support activities for 
older people to reduce 
social isolation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encourage healthy 
eating and positive 
individual behaviour life 
style changes. 
 
 

Ward based staff to share and 
distribute information on activities 
and events and sign post 
individuals.  
 
Promote NHS 111 service and use 
of local pharmacies for advice 
where appropriate. 
 
Access to Community Health 
Champion support via GPs. 
 
Support the delivery of Better Start 
initiatives such as HENRY (Health 
Education and Nutrition for the 
Really Young) across the area and 
HENRY Parent Champions to 
spread the word. 

Residents and Community Groups to 
support and be involved with Be 
Neighbourly Scheme / Winter Warmth 
Project. 
 
Community Groups to organise and 
publicise activities at events / 
community venues / community 
websites.  
 
 
People to make healthier food 
choices and encouraged to exercise, 
stop / reduce smoking and manage 
their own health through self-care 
initiated actions.  
 
Third sector partners delivering sports 
and positive health activities – karate, 
football, cricket etc. 

Council Ward 
Officer 
Area Operations 
Manager 
Police Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third Sector 

 Information promoted through Forums, fun days, schools and through other community engagement events.  

 Better Start working in area with children 0-5 years old and families improving health links and support available. 

 Supported development of local sports teams – assisted with funding advice, guidance and developing groups skills capacity.  

 Youth Service hosted healthy cook and eat sessions, nutritional advice sessions and sports programmes.  

4.0 Incomes Skills and Housing 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ensure people can 
access the right support 
and advice.  
 
 
 
 
 

Link people to services to reduce 
problems with debt, changes to 
welfare reform and tackle fuel 
poverty.   
 
Support people into employment – 
sign posting to employability 
programme opportunities. 

Debt advice provision offered in local 
places of community interest.  
 
Community led food projects and 
luncheon clubs e.g. faith centre on 
Prospect Road hold weekly evening 
to feed the homeless supported by 
other faith and third sector partners. 

InCommunities 
Youth Service 
Council Ward 
Officer 
Children’s 
Centres  
Bradford District 
Credit Union 

P
age 155



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Substandard, 
overcrowded or empty 
homes.  

 
Raise awareness of foodbanks 
where appropriate e.g. Trussell 
Trust, Metropolitan. 
 
Explore the concept of an 
Integrated Switching Service 
 
Provide workshops for local people 
to protect themselves from fraud 
 
Youth Service signposting to 
relevant services. 
 
 
Council Wardens to refer 
overcrowded homes to Housing 
Standards Team or social housing 
organisations. 
 
Council Warden to refer 
substandard empty homes to Empty 
Homes Team or social housing 
providers. 

 
. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Refer empty homes to the Empty 
Homes Team or local Councillors 

Food Banks 
Community  
Faith Sector 

 Job clubs held in local community centres and young people supported through NEET contracts.   

 Volunteering programmes developed by youth servicing providing young opportunities to become involved with learning new 
skills and running activities for other young people at Laisterdyke Centre.  

 Wardens refer properties and tenants to Private Sector Housing or Empty Homes Team where there are issues relating to 
housing standards or dumped waste at properties.   

 Advice provision is available in some of the local community centres.   

 BD3 networking events held with partners, third sector and schools providing information on opportunities, services and other 
local projects. 

5.0 Children and Young People 

P
age 156



Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 

Seek to challenge low 
educational attainment, 
low aspirations and anti 
social behaviour by 
improving the offer for 
young people.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deliver inclusive open 
access youth work 
sessions addressing 
ASB, challenging 
behaviour, Substance 
misuse, sexual health, 
healthy relationships 
and community pride. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintain local parks and 
open places and 
recreational spaces, 
with the provision of 
play equipment and 
sports provision. 

BMDC delivers weekly open access 
sessions at Laisterdyke Centre and 
holiday activities schemes s.  
 
Provides a variety of formal and 
informal workshops addressing 
issues that young people face at 
youth service open access venues.  
 
Deliver preventative one to one and 
group sessions to young people at 
risk of CSE in the ward including 
work with the EU communities. 
 
Work with young people and 
families at low level risk of CSE in 
partnership with the CSE hub to 
reduce risk levels and increase 
resilience. A series of assessments 
and action plans will be put in place 
for young people and agreed by 
them and the family. Support young 
people to stick to action plans and 
engage in positive activities that will 
enhance their life. 
 
Recruit, train and enable youth and 
adult volunteers to support youth 
work sessions. 
 
Ensure local parks including 
Myrashay, Bradford Moor and 
Woodhall Recreation Ground 

Partners and communities refer young 
people to youth provision 
opportunities and events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Support developing a Friends of 
Bradford Moor Park Group.  
 
Report any damage to the park to 

Youth Service 
Third Sector  
Faith Centres 
Parks and 
Landscape 
Police 
CSE Hub 
 

P
age 157



 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Ensure Thornbury 
Library remains open, 
accessible and relevant 
to young people.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

remain as places for outdoor play 
and sport.  
 
Support develop a Friends of 
Bradford Moor Park group. 
 
Encourage and make accessible 
the full range of facilities within the 
parks.  
 
Ensure the right sort of books are 
available at the library and that 
young people know how and when 
they can access them.  
 
Ensure the library is a welcoming 
environment for young people. 
 
Promote reading amongst children 
and young people.  

Bradford Council on 01274 431000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign up children to use the library.   
 
Become involved as a volunteer to 
help run Thornbury Library.    
 
Local people volunteer to support a 
range of activities and services such 
as homework clubs and become 
literacy champions. 
 
 

 Youth service sessions delivered at Laisterdyke Centre on a weekly basis and detached work undertaken on a needs basis.  
CSE awareness sessions held and one to one supported provided to young people as part of youth club offer.  

 Volunteers training programme available and young volunteers schemed developed supporting young people to run activities for 
other young people. 

 Holiday activities during half-term, Easter and summer holidays held including trips, community fun day and outdoor events at 
Bradford Moor Park, Myrashay and in other open spaces some of which were in partnership with Better Start Bradford.  

 Young people involved in environmental project involving recycling arts and crafts, visual audit, community litter pick and Work 
Environment Day as well as planting hanging baskets which were given to older people’s homes.  

 Litter picks held in local parks. Active group of residents who litter pick weekly in Myrashay Park as part of a walking group with 
support from partners.  

 Thornbury Library has remained opened supported by volunteers to run.  

6. Stronger Communities 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can Named person 
responsible 

P
age 158



6.1 Support, encourage and 
develop opportunities 
for residents to 
volunteer to get involved 
in a wide range of 
activities and projects 
connecting people from 
different faiths, 
ethnicities and ages. 
 

Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to 
encourage their own involvement in 
local projects.  
 
Continue to support the multi-faith 
forum for the ward and host multi-
faith celebration events.  
 
Encourage residents to report 
issues to agencies and Council 
services and explore community 
responses as part of the solutions 
approach.  

 
Support community groups to 
access funding opportunities 
internal and external to the Council. 
 
Support local voluntary groups  

Residents can get involved with local 
projects.  
 
Residents encouraged to develop 
self-help approaches and community 
solutions to local issues where 
appropriate.  
 
Partners host multi-faith and multi-
cultural community events.   

Council Ward 
Officer 
Youth Service 
Third sector 
including faith 
groups 
Residents 
Businesses 
 

 ‘People Can Make a difference’ website highlighting voluntary community action and Bradford East Facebook and Twitter now 
used to promote volunteering, positive social action and encourage cohesion. 

 Community engagement events held at various locations across the ward including Christmas and Eid themed events offering 
sign posting and information. 

 BD3 interfaith trail active.  

 Youth service Cohesion event run in summer holiday. 

 Youth service Black History Month in October 

 Youth Service International Women’s Day event in March. 

 Day to day work of Wardens, PCSO’s, Housing Managers and other workers in tackling community issues that can create 
community tensions  

 Support BD3 Network.  

 Schools, Children’s Centres and other community organisations running stay and play and parents forums/ sessions. 

 Free training for volunteers available through the Youth Service for both adults and young people who want to run or support 
youth clubs or activities locally  

P
age 159



 

 
Eccleshill Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report  

 

1.0 Cleaner Greener 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

1.1 Improve condition of 
grass verges 

Neighbourhood Services:- 

 Council Wardens to door knock / 
send letters out to vehicle owners 
not to park on grass verges. 

 Ward Officer, Council Warden and 
Parks & Landscapes to liaise with 
each other when grass verge 
cutting takes place. 

 Encourage residents to take part 
in action days specifically to edge 
out overgrown verges. 

 

 Help to organise community 
action days by encouraging 
their neighbours to take part. 

 Refrain from parking on 
verges. 

 Place painted white stones 
on the verge edge / kerbside.  

 Can reseed their verges. 
 

Council 
Warden 

1.2 Litter and fly tipping  
 

Neighbourhood Services:-  

 Council Wardens to monitor 
rubbish in domestic gardens and 
outside business premises. 
Advise residents and business 
owners how to dispose of their 
rubbish responsibly either 
through using bulk collection 
service, recycling, using 
household waste site or trade 
waste contracts. 

 Council Wardens to initially 
investigate fly tipping complaints 
and where appropriate refer jobs 
to enforcement team. 

 Work with partners, local 

 Can take responsibilities to 
keep their own back streets 
clean. 

 Can help to organise 
community clean ups / action 
days. 

 Ensure that wheeled bins are 
not over flowing in line with 
the councils bin policy. 

 Use the bulk collection service 
or remove waste via skips or 
recycle waste through 
household waste sites. 

 Report anyone seen fly 
tipping and give witness 

Ward Officer 
Cleansing 
Manager 
Community  
NPT 
Housing Ass 
 

P
age 160



residents and volunteers to 
undertake clean ups in hotspot 
areas. 

 Clean Team and Fly Tipping 
Team to clear waste when 
advised to do so. 

 Council Wardens to visit 
businesses that are not 
containing waste responsibly and 
refer cases to Trade Waste. 

 
Enforcement:  

 To liaise with Council Wardens 
and Ward Officer to investigate 
reports of fly tipping. 

 Take appropriate legislative 
action against those responsible 
for fly tipping (warning letters / 
prosecution). 

 Work with Police to tackle rogue 
waste carriers along with waste 
carriers licence checks.  

 
Incommunities:  

 Clean Team to litter picking on 
their land / premises and 
removing waste. 

 Incommunities Tenancy 
Enforcement Team to take action 
where appropriate.   

Leeds City Council / Neighbourhood 
Service / Incommunities:  

 To remove fly tipping and litter in 
Ravenscliffe Woods. 

statements. 

 Business to ensure they have 
appropriate trade waste 
contracts and use recycling 
schemes to reduce waste.  

 People can take responsibility 
to ensure only authorised 
waste carriers remove their 
waste. 

 
  

P
age 161



1.3 Work with volunteers 
from local groups and 
residents to help 
maintain snickets / public 
footpaths / streets / land 
by removing litter and 
cutting back overgrown 
vegetation and weeding. 

Neighbourhood Services:  
To work with  community associations, 
landlords and partners to:- 

 Recruit local volunteers and set up 
informal / formal groups’ e.g. 
Friends of Green Spaces or an 
Eccleshill Active Group. 

 Source funding opportunities to 
support groups and volunteers. 

 Encourage residents to get involved 
in community clean up action days 
to  

 Clean Team and Council Wardens 
to work in partnership to support 
volunteers by helping them to 
remove waste.     

 
Community Payback scheme 

 Ward Officer to liaise with Ancillary 
Services and Community Payback 
to help with clean up and cut back 
vegetation in snickets and public 
footpaths. 

 
Form their own informal / formal 
groups and apply for funding to 
support environmental projects. 
 
Residents can volunteer and work 
with Ward Officer / Council Warden 
and Clean Team to keep snickets 
and footpaths clean.  
 
  

Ward Officer 
Cleansing 
Manager 
Warden  
Manager 
Community 

August / September 2017 – Ward Officer, Council Warden and local resident drafted a letter and circulated to all properties in 
Acre Ave and Acre Drive requesting volunteers to help out on a grass verge improvement scheme. Approximately 12 volunteers 
responded and edged out the verges over a 2 day period. Prior to edging out Parks & Landscapes cut the grass verges. 
April to September 2017 – Council Wardens referred cases of fly tipping, rubbish in gardens and trade waste issues to 
Enforcement Officer who investigated 108 cases including involving use of CCTV camera and prosecutions. Greystone Cres, 
Osterley Gve and Fagley Rd with Community Protection Notices issued to property owners about rubbish in gardens. Fly Tipping 
case on land at Stony Lane. 
August 2017 – Ward Officer, Clean Team, Fly Tipping Team, Highways Dept, Incommunities and Keepmoat removed all fly 
tipping from Norbury Rd and organised reinstating of road closure.  
September 2017 – Ward Officer, Council Warden and Parks & Landscapes worked with local people to clean up snicket from Acre 
Ave to Acre Dve. (Weed sprayed, pulled up weeds and swept snicket)  
April to September 2017 – Enforcement Officer dealt with 108 cases of fly tipping, rubbish in gardens and trade waste problems. 
Successful prosecutions included fixed penalty charges, Community Protection Notices issued and fines through Magistrates 

P
age 162



Court. Some of the issues dealt with include:-  Fly tipping on Norbury Rd and Harrogate Rd, rubbish in gardens at Greystone Cres, 
Osterely Grove, Fagley Rd.   
6 September 2017 – Neighbourhood Services worked with Parks & Landscapes and resident volunteers from Acre Ave / Acre Dve 
to weed spray snicket and then remove overgrown vegetation.  
December to April 2018 – Worked with Enforcement,  residents, Ward Councillors to tackle fly tipping at Bayswater Grove. 
December / January 2018 – Worked with Ward Councillors and residents to tackle residual side waste at bin collection point. 
Letters sent out to all residents.  
January to April 2018 – Youth Service and volunteers carried out regular litter picks of snicket near to Eccleshill Hospital 

2.0 Safer Communities 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

2.1  Reduce Burglary All Partners 

 Trading Standards to raise 
awareness about door step crime 
to vulnerable adults. 

 Crime Prevention Roadshows and 
crime prevention leaflet drops to 
homes. 

 Promote and increase 
Neighbourhood Watch schemes 
including using (OWL) Online 
Watch Link) and social media.  

 Volunteer to set up 
Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes. 

 Can help with leaflet drops. 

 Ensure their buildings, outdoor 
buildings and vehicles vehicles 
are locked and secured. 

Neighbourhood 
Policing Team 

2.3 Tackle anti-social 
behaviour and crime with 
particular focus on 
working with young 
people visiting Enterprise 
Five Retail Park and 
shops in Eccleshill ward. 

 Neighbourhood Services / 
Police / Incommunities / Youth 
Service:  

 Links with local community 
groups to identify ongoing / 
emerging ASB problems and use 
Ward Partnership Team meetings 
and Ravenscliffe ASB Group as a 
mechanism to tackle on-going 
problems and raise awareness of 
the support available. 

 Youth Service to respond with a 
variety of detached outreach work 

Community groups and residents 
can set up their own Neighbourhood 
Watch scheme or encourage their 
neighbours to sign up to OWL. 
 
People can volunteer to work with 
the Youth Service and help qualified 
Youth Workers to deliver a variety of 
youth provisions. 
 
Retailers to effectively use CCTV 
cameras and keep a diary log of 
incidents. 

Neighbourhood 
Policing Team 
 

P
age 163



and diversionary activities.   

 Ward Officer / Youth Workers to 
explore funding opportunities to 
support projects and activities 
aimed at reducing ASB and 
crime. 

 Police and Council ASB teams 
take action such as issuing ASB 
warning letters and dispersal 
orders where ASB problems are 
escalating. 

 Introduce a Community Alcohol 
Partnership (CAP) focusing on 
areas near York House. CAP to 
include impact of young people 
taking high energy drinks. 

 Neighbourhood Policing Team to 
explore opportunities to introduce a 
Police Cadet scheme to encourage 
young people in to crime 
prevention. 

 

Retailers to use the Radio Shop 
Link scheme to warn other retailers 
of emerging ASB issues. 
 
People can help the Police by 
joining the Special Constable 
scheme. 
 
Young people can become Police 
Cadets to help influence a reduction 
in ASB. 
 
 

26 July 2017 – NPT and Neighbourhood Services carried out an ‘Action Day’ aimed at tackling crime. Young people and PCSO’s 
carried out Speed Watch initiative. Police Accident Reduction vehicle targeted Harrogate Rd area, Police executed search 
warrants for unpaid fines and Police fitted car number plates with anti-theft screws. PCSO’s and Council Wardens carried out door 
knocks to promote OWL. 
July 2017 – Neighbourhood Services and Police explored opportunities to introduce Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP) in 
Thorpe Edge. Project currently on hold until other CAP’s are introduced in Keighley.   
April to September 2017 - £7.5K of Safer Communities Funding secured to tackle on-going ASB issues at Five Lane Ends. 
Funding currently being used to carry out extra detached work by youth workers and Police + funding used to provide extra youth 
provisions at Greenwood Centre, Springfield Centre and Ravenscliffe Youth Centre + community youth and information notice 
board introduced at Greenwood Centre + Police currently recruiting local young people to join Police Cadet scheme + Police 
working with local retailers to introduce reporting procedures to help identify young people causing ASB. Police issuing yellow 
warning letters and Acceptable Behaviour Contracts to persistent young people causing ASB.   
July to September 2017 – Neighbourhood Services, Ward Councilors and Police worked to develop a new approach to deliver 
Ward Partnership Team meetings which are used as a mechanism to tackle on-going issues with crime and grime through multi 

P
age 164



agency and partnership working. Multi WPT meetings now include services across 3 wards (Eccleshill, Bolton & Undercliffe and 
Idle & Thackley)    
August 2017 – Police held Summer Camp event at Trinity Green Campus. Event included a range of fun and diversionary 
activities to reduce ASB in the school holidays. Activities included, Team Building, Sports activities, Road Safety awareness and 
Recycling projects. Police and Ward Officer circulated information to community groups and Youth Service encouraged young 
people to sign up to event.  
January 2018 to March 2018– HALE project worked in partnership with Youth Service, Police, Neighbourhood Services to plan 
outreach work in Ravenscliffe to help tackle ASB.  
April 2017 to March 2018 – ASB warning letters and dispersal orders issued to young people causing ASB at Enterprise Five. 

3.0 Inequalities, health and Wellbeing 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

3.1 Encourage healthy 
lifestyles. 

Local Community Centres to lead on 
projects and introduce innovative 
activities to help people improve their 
life style e.g Fareshare café and 
calendar, Wellbeing Cafes, Coffee 
mornings, Menn@Eccy Meccy, Ecc 
Flix. 
  

Encourage friends, neighbours and 
family members to get involved and 
contribute towards the activities. 

 

April – September 2017 – Fruit & Veg from Bradford City Market donated to Ravenscliffe Community Development Project to help 
support people on low income and encourages healthy eating in the community. 
April – September 2017 - Fareshare programme where Tesco’s and Marks & Spencer donate food to the Gateway Centre. 
April – March 2018 – Men@EccyMeccy project. A group to help support men who have been through difficult events. Activities 
have included tour visits to Leeds City Hall and intergenerational activities with young people from Ravenscliffe. Group have also 
been supported to help set up their own constitution and to increase funding opportunities. 
April – July 2017 – Eccleshill Community Cinema runs once per month and screened films. 
April - September 2017 – Springboard Project funded by Big Lottery aimed at providing a range of self-help groups including 
swimming club, sink or swim, befriending group, arts & crafts group, gardening and walking groups. 
April – September 2017 - Routes & Fruits community garden project for young people.  
April – September 2017 - Young Leaders and Little Chefs Project that provides a youth provisions for young people aged 
between 8 – 13 years. Activities have included building their own wigwam, creating a community allotment to enable them to grow 
and harvest their own vegetables for cook & eat sessions.  
9th July 2017 – Thorpe Edge Festival held at the Rockwell Centre. Event included live music and dance, giant inflatable slides, 
photography competition and much more.  

P
age 165



4.0 Incomes Skills and Housing 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

4.1     

5.0 Children and Young People 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

5.1 Deliver youth work 
sessions 

Youth service: 
Deliver 2 open access sessions and 1 
focused detached work session to 
include activities in music, sport and 
workshop activities to highlight drug 
problems, crime and anti social 
behaviour. Deliver single gender 
sessions to develop positive self 
esteem and personal confidence.   
 
 

Young People can volunteer their 
time to help qualified Youth Workers 
to support their provisions. 
 
 

Youth Service 
 

5.2 Create opportunities to 
increase youth work 
provisions. 

Youth Service 
Exploring funding opportunities to 
support delivery of specific youth work 
projects such as school holiday 
activities / programmes and help to 
support accrediting and recognising 
people’s involvement. 
 
Work with young people to raise 

Young People can promote 
activities to their friends and 
members of their family. 
 
Young People can help to shape 
and develop provisions by 
volunteering to do bag packs, help 
out on stalls etc. 

Youth Service 
 

P
age 166



funding through fundraising activities 
such as bag packs, stalls, raffles and 
sponsored walks.    

5.3 Deliver a programme of 
school holiday activities.  

Youth Service 
Deliver cook & eat sessions, a range of 
sports activities including football. 
 
Work with voluntary organisations to 
explore funding opportunities to support 
delivery of activities for children & 
young people. 

 Youth Service 

5.4 Train youth and adult 
volunteers to support 
youth work sessions. 

Youth Service 
Recruit young volunteer and adults to 
set up junior youth clubs and establish 
formal training to give volunteers the 
skills to run regular junior youth clubs. 
 
Work in partnership with local 
Community Centres to develop junior 
youth clubs. 

People can get training to enable 
them to help deliver youth sessions. 

Youth Service 

5.5 Support young peoples 
education achievements 

Youth Service 
Youth Worker to create links with local 
secondary schools (Hanson, Immanuel 
and Leeds schools) to help and set up 
programmes aimed at introducing  
personal development plans for young 
people who are not in main stream 
education.  

Young People can influence their 
school colleagues and friends by 
encouraging and supporting them to 
take up PDP’s.  

Youth Service 

P
age 167



5.6 Community led school 
improvement project 
aimed at introducing a 
range of positive learning 
experiences for children 
and young people. 

Inspired Neighbourhoods to explore 
funding opportunities to enable the 
employment of a Community Learning 
Facilitator based in Idle & Thackley but 
to work across 2 other wards. 
 
Neighbourhood Services and Youth 
Service to provide support to 
community ambitions projects through 
the use of 5 community facilities (Idle 
Library building, Springfield Centre, 
Buck Mill Cottage, Wright Watson 
Centre and Greenwood Centre)  
 

Ward Councillors from Eccleshill 
and Idle & Thackley to develop a 
project plan and a partnership board 
to support the project.  
 
Local people can volunteer to 
support a range of activities and 
services such as homework clubs, 
literacy champions and to help run a 
community library in neighbouring 
Idle & Thackley. 
 
Ward Councillors from Eccleshill, 
Bolton & Undercliffe and Idle & 
Thackley to facilitate discussions 
with services and local businesses 
to help young people attain work 
experience and placements. 

Ward 
Councillors 

April to September 2017 –  
5.1 – 3 open access sessions (including junior club in partnership with Gateway with adult and young volunteers) at RYC as well 
as targeted sessions with yp at risk/identified as causing ASB. Girls & Boys Nights In taken place on weekends for yp to access. 
Supported community events across the ward in delivering a wide range of activities to engage young people. 
5.2 – Young people organised back packs to raise funds towards summer activities – bag pack at Sainsbury’s Greengates on 
Saturday 8th July 2017. YP accessing provision gaining accreditation for involvements through Lords Mayors award and Local 
Award. 
5.3 – Easter, Springbank and Summer Programmes delivered across the Ward for all young people. 
5.4 – Volunteers attended training which was delivered by the youth service. Volunteers and young volunteers supporting delivery 
of sessions at RYC. 
5.5 – Link and made contact with Immanuel School. Attended 1:1 appointments with young people as part of buddying work. 
Supporting yp referred into CAMHS. Appointments with ypung people taking place within the school. 
5.6 - Unknown 

6. Stronger Communities (Community Support) 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

People Can… Named 
person 
responsible 

P
age 168



6.1 Eccleshill Village Fair / 
Christmas Lights Switch 
on. 

Neighbourhood Service: To provide 
support to Eccleshill Village Steering 
Group by encouraging them to submit 
funding bids, take notes at meetings, 
liaise with other providers taking part in 
the event and recruit other volunteers. 

Local businesses can support 
events through donations funding or 
supplying free resources e.g. 
Printing leaflets, prize donations etc. 
 
People Can help to promote events 
by volunteering to distribute flyers, 
programmes and join EVSG. 
 
People can volunteer some time to 
help out at the events by helping to 
steward and clean up litter. 
 
 

Eccleshill 
Village 
Steering Group 
Ward Officer 
Local 
Volunteers 

6.2 People Can / New Deal Neighbourhood Service to support the 
‘People Can’ campaign aimed at 
developing strong and resilient 
communities to fill the gap in the 
reduction of public services in line with 
the New Deal principals 
 
Neighbourhood Services to work with 
Safer Communities Group to identify 
community groups / facilities to 
introduce a community led garden tool 
bank.    
Neighbourhood Services to encourage 
local residents to set up their own ‘cold 
calling zones’. 
 
Neighbourhood Services to encourage 
‘neighbourliness’ amongst residents 
and help them to develop a range of 
community activities where they can 
contribute towards having a positive 
impact in their community. 

Local residents and neighbours can 
volunteer to organise community 
activities to encourage 
neighbourliness. 
 
Volunteers could set up their own 
informal / formal groups to carry out 
a range of environmental projects 
such as litter picking public 
footpaths and cutting back 
overgrown vegetation. 

Ward Officer 

P
age 169



 
Neighbourhood Service to work with 
Safer Communities Group to develop a 
social media campaign to support and 
celebrate community activities and 
volunteering. 

April – 15th July 2017 – Eccleshill Village Fair: 

 Ward Officer and volunteers from Eccleshill Village Steering Group held fortnightly meetings as part of the organising of 
Ecclsehill Village Fair. 

 Ward Officer provided support to sub group by liaising with Emergency Planning, Parks & Landscapes and St Johns 
Ambulance. 

 Sub group organised 20 stalls holders to attend. 

 Developed and produced 5,000 leaflets for distribution to local homes and recruited additional 6 volunteers to deliver 
leaflets. 

 Secured sponsorship from Marcus Transport Ltd and Marshalls Amusements. 

 Youth Service provided a variety of activities including a football tournament, making mud pies and face painting. 

 An estimated 2,000 visitors attended the event during the course of the day.  

 Council Wardens promoted the People Can campaign aimed at encouraging more volunteering opportunities.  
June to September 2017 -  Neighbourhood Services encourage local community group to apply for The Big Lunch funding which 
was aimed at bringing communities together for a big lunch celebration. 4 Community Groups from Eccleshill were awarded a £200 
grant. 

 
 
 

Idle & Thackley Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report  
 

1.0 Cleaner Greener 

Code Priority What can Services contribute? People Can… Named person 
responsible 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Reduce litter around 
takeaways, shops and 
pubs in Idle village. 
Specifically businesses 
near to Southcote 
Place, those that back 

Council Warden to increase patrols 
in Idle village and undertake regular 
audits of build-up of litter and 
ensure businesses are complying 
with trade waste responsibilities. 
 

Local businesses can sign up to 
the voluntary code of practice to 
ensure their premises and shop 
frontage are free from litter and 
trade waste is disposed 
appropriately. 

Ward Officer 

P
age 170



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

onto residential 
properties in Idle Village 
and the rear of the 
Coop. 

Work with Environmental 
Enforcement Officer to tackle 
businesses who fail to contain their 
waste. 

 
Local businesses to consider 
other methods of reducing general 
waste being deposited in trade 
bins i.e. recycle materials such as 
card board.  

1.2  Reduce domestic litter 
in Idle village 

Council Warden to identify who is 
putting domestic rubbish in the 
street litter bins. 
 
Council Warden to ensure that 
every household has a bin for 
domestic waste 

 Ward Officer 

1.3 Reduce litter in Idle 
Recreation Ground 
 
 

Parks department to empty the bins 
and clear the park on a daily basis 

 Ward Officer 

1.4  Reduce litter under the 
railway bridge and 
around the park 
including Railway Road 

Street cleansing team to include in 
weekly schedule 

 Ward Officer 

1.5  Reduce Dog Fouling Council Warden and Ward Officer 
to work with partners and Ward 
Councillors to identify hotspot 
areas. 
 
Encourage local people to actively 
report irresponsible dog owners so 
that enforcement action can be 
taken. 
 
Council Wardens to carryout 
random patrolling of hotspot areas 
(if necessary in plain clothes) so 
that enforcement action can be 

Local residents can report 
irresponsible dog owners to the 
Council. 
 
Idle and Thackley Active are to 
produce and carry out a survey to 
find out why people do/don’t 
remove dog litter 
 
 
 
  

Ward Officer 
 

P
age 171



taken. 
 
Undertake a public campaign to 
highlight areas where dog fouling is 
a concern.    

1.3 Support vulnerable 
people who find it 
difficult to use wheeled 
bins. 

Work with Refuse Collection and 
Recycling Departments to provide 
assisted collections for people in 
receipt of social care.   
 
Encourage local people to be 
“Neighbourly” and explore 
opportunities to share wheeled 
bins. 
 
Work with social housing providers 
to identify tenants who struggle with 
the use of wheeled bins. 
 
Organise Community Litter Pick 
Action Days to help improve the 
environment where vulnerable 
people are living in social housing 
accommodation.    

Local people and relatives to 
contact the Council and request 
an assisted collection service. 
 
 
Neighbours to support elderly 
people by putting out a bin or a 
bin share scheme. 
 
 

Ward Officer 
 
 
 
 

1.4 Ensure that local people 
are informed about the 
changes to the refuse 
and recycling collection 
service.  

Have a “Day of Action” with 
Yorkshire Housing and residents of 
Mark Close to ensure residents are 
informed and are ready to use the 
new collection service 
 
Produce and distribute and  
information leaflet for every 
household to inform residents about 
the changes to the collection 
service 

 Ward Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
Ward Officer 

P
age 172



1.4 Work towards tackling 
the problem of 
Japanese Knotweed. 

Identify areas where Japanese 
Knotweed is prevalent and work 
with land owners to look at 
feasibility of reducing the spread of 
Knotweed and tidy up affected 
areas. 
 
Seek support from Parks & 
Landscapes and Environmental 
Health / Enforcement to deal with 
land owners by taking legal action. 

Land owners to be more 
responsible in treating affected 
areas and tidy up land. 

Ward Officer 

 Continue to clean the 
River Aire from debris 
from the Boxing Day 
floods of 2015 

Support residents and community 
groups on a day of action to 
continue the clean up.  
 
Explore the cutting of trees along 
the riverbank that are still covered 
in plastic waste. 
 

Local residents can volunteer to 
help out on River Clean-up days.  

Ward Officer 
 
 
 
Ward Officer 

April to September 2017 – Council Warden dealt with a range of environmental reports (litter, graffiti and fly tipping) at; Bracken 
Edge, Apperley Rd, New St, Westfield Ln, Greengates Recreation area, Idle Recreation area and Idle Car Park.  
June / September 2017 – Ward Officer, Enforcement Officer and Pest Control visited trade premises on Albion Rd / Southcote 
Place and near Coop – issued trade waste advice and warning letters about containment of waste. On-going monitoring by 
Council Warden and Ward Officer.  
April / May 2017 – Council Warden visited business properties on The Green about Trade Waste issues. Businesses suspected 
of putting trade waste in to street litter bins were advised about Trade Waste legislation. 
April to June 2017 – Council Warden distributed dog fouling letters to properties on Brackendale streets and Kingstone Rd to 
raise awareness about increase in dog fouling cases and encouraged witnesses to report issues to the Council. Council Warden 
also undertook increased patrolling of the areas and talked to dog walkers about dog fouling. 
17 August 2017 – Idle & Thackley Action Day – Partners, Ward Councillors and Incommunities helped vulnerable people living in 
Hampton Place to clear out bulky items from refuse areas and to trial assisted collection of recycling bags.  
August 2017 – Ward Officer, Ward Councillor and Recycling Team working with Elm Tree Court staff and residents to introduce 
a recycling scheme and minimise volume of domestic waste.   
25 April 2017 – Ward Officer sent advertising flyers out to residents in Apperley Bridge inviting them to the Shipley Flood 
Roadshow. Partners from Environment Agency, Yorkshire Water, River Stewardship Company,Council Drainage Team and 
Neighbourhood Services organised the event which aimed to encourage more volunteers to take part in River Aire clean ups and 

P
age 173



formulate local flood resilience plans. 
11 May 2017 – Ward Officer met with Kevin Sunderland (local volunteer of River Aire) to walk Idle & Thackley stretch to 
determine areas where clean up is needed. Ward Officer reported back to Flood Resilience Group. 
24 Oct 2017 – Idle Rec & Idle village Action Day – Young People worked with Youth Service, Ward Councillors to tidy up Idle 
Rec. Police and Council Wardens carried trade waste visits to local businesses. Parks & Landscapes and Street Cleansing 
introduced 4 new litter bins in and around Idle Rec. 
8 Dec 2017 – Waste Recycling Advisors and Council Wardens carried out door knock to review Hampton Place recycling bag 
scheme. Residents issued with Orange bags and information guidance. 
18 Jan 2018 – Ward Officer, Barney Lerner (Friends of Bradford Beck) and Kevin Sunderland assessed Apperley Bridge stretch 
of River Aire to determine what amount of debris that would need removing as part of a clean up – Clean up likely in summer 
2018. 
Jan 2018 – Enforcement investigated reports of dog fouling in Greengates – 1 resident issued with £80 fixed penalty notice. 

2.0 Safer Communities 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
 

Named person 
responsible 

2.1 Reduce ASB in across 
the ward  

Police to undertake regular patrols 
on evenings in Idle village. 
 
Youth Service to conduct additional 
detached youth work and extra 
youth sessions.  
 
Encourage young people to attend 
Police Summer Camp to help 
reduce ASB. 
 
Introduce a Community Alcohol 
Partnership (CAP) working with 
local retailers / off licence business 
and information and guidance to 
young people. 
 
Provide information and advice to 
young people about consequences 
of taking drugs and impact of taking 
high energy drinks. 

Police Specials to volunteer time 
to provide high visibility patrols in 
peak times and assist Youth 
Workers in youth centre sessions 
and diversionary work.   

Police /Ward Officer 
/ Springfield Centre 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 174



 
Work with local businesses to 
reduce the sale of high energy 
drinks and offer low sugar 
alternatives 
 
Introduce recycling bins for energy 
drink bottles and cans  

Ward Officer 
 
 
 
Ward Officer 

2.2 Decrease the incidence 
of street dealing of 
drugs 
 

Report actions taken to deal with 
street dealing to Ward Councillors  

People can report incidences to 
Crimestoppers or 101 

Police/Ward Officer 

2.3  Increase prosecutions 
for dangerous driving 
 

Report actions taken to deal with 
dangerous driving to Ward 
Councillors 

People can report incidences to 
Crimestoppers or 101 

Police/Ward Officer 

2.4  Have a Zero-tolerance 
approach to parking on 
the pavement 

Develop a safer and considerate 
parking scheme and roll out across 
the ward. The scheme to include 
parking on the pavements, 
behaviour outside schools, parking 
on corners etc 

People can report incidences to 
Crimestoppers or 101 

Police/Ward Officer 

2.5 Work towards reducing 
Burglary Dwelling and 
Theft from Motor 
Vehicles throughout Idle 
& Thackley including 
the Apperley Bridge 
Railway Station 
 
 
 

Promote OWL (Online Watch Link) 
and encourage residents to join or 
develop their own Neighbourhood 
Watch scheme. 
 
Promote Crime Prevention advice 
through use of OWL and social 
media. 
 
Council Wardens to assist Police 
with patrolling in hotspot areas.    
 
 

People Can work with services to 
introduce Neighbourhood Watch 
schemes. 
 
Take up Police Community 
Volunteering Scheme – an 
informal scheme aimed at 
recruiting people to volunteer their 
time to help with Policing.  
 
Local people could volunteer to 
help with crime prevention leaflet 
drops.  
   

Police  
Ward Officer / 
Council Ward 
Officer 
 

2.6 Trial a new way of Work with Police, key partners and  WPT partners 

P
age 175



delivering Ward 
Partnership Team 
meetings. 
 
 
 

Ward Councillors from Idle & 
Thackley, Bolton & Undercliffe and 
Eccleshill . 
 
 
 
 

18 April 2017 – Trading Standards visited Idle Memory Club and issued advice and guidance to vulnerable adults about 
preventing doorstep crime. 
17 August 2017 – Idle & Thackley Action Day – Neighbourhood Service, Police, Ward Councillors and young people from 
Springfield Centre  took part in a multi partnership Action Day – Police carried out arrest warrants for non-payment of fines, fitted 
anti-theft screws to customer vehicles in Aldi car park, speedwatch on Harrogate Rd / New Line, carried out door knocks in Cote 
Farm and Idle to offer crime prevention advise to local residents and Young People from Springfield Centre took part in a Safer 
Communities design a poster competition. 
August 2017 – Police held Summer Camp event at Trinity Green Campus. Event included a range of fun and diversionary 
activities to reduce ASB in the school holidays. Activities included, Team Building, Sports activities, Road Safety awareness and 
Recycling projects. Police and Ward Officer circulated information to community groups and Youth Service encouraged young 
people to sign up to event.   
July 2017 to March 2018 – New Multi Ward Partnership Team meeting developed with new information sharing agreement in 
place – meetings now held every 6 weeks.  
January 2018 to March 2018– HALE project worked in partnership with Youth Service, Police, Neighbourhood Services to plan 
outreach work in Idle village to help tackle ASB. 
April 2017 – Council Wardens dealt with vehicle obstructions on pavement at junction of Harrogate Road / Navigation Drive. 

3.0 Inequalities, health and Wellbeing 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
How residents can contribute. 

Named person 
responsible 

3.1 Support people who are 
living and working with 
Alzheimer’s / Dementia. 
 

Memory Tree to provide 
reminiscence sessions / activities at 
Idle Baptist Church 
 
Thorpe Edge Community Project, 
Idle Baptist Church and St Johns 
Church to deliver “wellbeing café” 
sessions and reduce social 
isolation by providing a range of 

Idle Dementia Friendly Group 
Facilitate bi-monthly meetings to 
seek out funding opportunities and 
activities 
 
Dementia Champion volunteers to 
raise awareness of dementia in 
community and business settings. 

Ward Officer 
Thorpe Edge 
Community Project, 
Idle Baptist Church, 
St Johns Church, 
The Memory Tree 
 

P
age 176



stimulating activities. 

3.2 Increase the health and 
well- being of children 
and young people living 
in the ward and 
attending local school. 
Just over a third of 
pupils in year 6 have 
been identified as 
obese. 

Produce an evidence data base of 
the health (physical and mental) of 
children and young people living 
and attending school in the ward  
and devise a project to offer help 
and support  children and young 
people and their families 

 Springfield Youth 
Centre, Schools 
Partnership, 
Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 
and SD 
Department of 
Health and Well-
Being   

3.3  Reduce the risk of heart 
disease, type 2 diabetes 
and dementia  

Produce an evidence base of data 
of people living in the ward and 
devise a range of activities that 
people can join to reduce the risks 
and (where appropriate) decrease 
the use of medication.   

 Springfield Centre, 
local CCG, Age 
Concern, the CCG 
and the SD 
Department of 
Health and Well-
Being 

3.4 Reduce the impact of 
the reduction of the 
substance misuse 
services and other 
reductions in public 
health such as support 
for sexual health and 
contraception for young 
people.  

Produce an evidence base of data 
and decide what response is 
needed in the ward. 

 SD Department of 
Health and Well-
Being 

 
3.5 

 
Ensure the provision of 
welfare advice across 
the ward 

 
Ensure that the Welfare Advice 
service is delivering as per the 
contract for residents in Idle and 
Thackley ward.  

  
SD Department of 
Health and Well-
Being 

P
age 177



3.2 SNOOP – Stay and Play session (under 5’s) , Holiday play schemes, during school holidays for those aged 2 – 19 years, 
After school clubs for those aged 2 – 19 years  
Springfield - Six week programme of daily activity based on workshops provided by the National Literacy Trust, Weekly group 
and/or individual sessions in the library, Storytelling workshops, Storytelling sessions, Literacy projects for boys, Volunteer 
workshops, Summer Reading Challenge, Book Start Bear Visits , and Themed storytelling activities 
 
Inspired Neighbourhoods:   6 week weight management programmes for children in schools , 2 oral health programmes to 
children and parents, weight management for parents, mental health programmes.  
Funding for the above services will cease in March 2018.  
Funding for services at Thorpe Edge will continue until June 2018-these include EAE Walking Group, Wildlife and plant id walk, 
dog walking, 10+ challenge, swimming at Eccleshill pool, Tai chi, Boxercise, football training, fun with food (families and children) 
and primary school cooking classes 
 
3.4 On 1st October 2017 a new fully integrated substance misuse service for Alcohol and Drug users in Bradford and Airedale 
commenced under the service name `New Directions`. 
The service is delivered by Change,Grow,Live , a large national recovery focussed organisation who are working in partnership 
with  Bridge and Project 6. 
The service operates a dedicated single point of contact  based at Pelican House, 10 Currer Street, Bradford  BD1 5BA and all 
service users, carers , professionals or members of the public can make referrals to the service through a dedicated 24/7  contact 
number of 01274 296023. 
Any individual  who accesses  interventions at the service will be allocated a dedicated recovery worker who will work with the 
individual at an appropriate location. New Directions has hubs located in both Bradford and Keighley and also access to 27 
community locations across the district. 
 
3.5 There is 1 outreach venue in Idle & Thackley at a GP surgery. This is currently being reviewed as not many people are 
accessing this location. The GP surgery is making referrals for patients but they are often choosing to access advice in other 
venues eg Gateway, Thorpe Edge or Eccleshill Mechanics Institute.  This may be due to the surgery not being on a bus route. It 
is likely that the sessions at the surgery will be ended and an alternative location sought within the ward. 
 
Family Action have indicated they are continuing to review venues in this locality and are waiting to meet with Cllr Rachel 
Sunderland to discuss this. 
 
The performance data for Q2 shows 15 people from Idle & Thackley accessed services in the Bradford East locality and  
21 people from Idle & Thackley accessed services outside of the locality. 6 in Windhill, , 5 Bradford CAB,  3 Shipley 
CAB, 2 Wrose Health Centre,  and the remainder in 6 different locations.  These figures do not include those accessing 
phone advice or other contacts. 

P
age 178



4.0 Incomes Skills and Housing 
There are 5127 privately own houses, 951 privately rented and 860 social rented properties in Idle and Thackley ward. The ward 
is identified through the Development Plan as a site for a large number of houses. 

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
How residents can contribute. 
 

Named person 
responsible 

4.1 Substandard or 
overcrowded housing 
and empty homes 

Council Wardens to refer 
overcrowded homes to Housing 
Standards Team or social housing 
organisations. 
 
Council Warden to refer 
substandard empty homes to 
Empty Homes Team or social 
housing providers. 
 
Identify all of the sub-
standard/empty houses and decide 
on plan to return them to use 

Refer empty homes to the Empty 
Homes Team or local Councillors 

Ward Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SD Department 
Environment and 
Sport 

4.2 Excess winter deaths in 
Idle and Thackley are 
high and above the 
district average. 

Produce an evidence base as to 
why these figures are high and 
decide what action can be taken to 
reduce the numbers.  

Contribute to a survey about 
health and heating.  

SD Department of 
Health and Well-
Being 

4.3 Reduce the cost of bills 
for people who are not 
switching their 
accounts. 

Explore the concept of an 
Integrated Switching Service 
offered from Idle Library. 

 Age 
Concern/Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 

P
age 179



4.4 Reduce the risks to 
residents from SCAMS 
and fraud 

Provide workshops for local people 
to protect themselves from fraud. 

 Age 
Concern/Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 

4.5 Increase the amount of 
extra care housing 
similar to Elm Tree 
Court to encourage 
people to move from 
under-occupied homes 
to “free – up” homes for 
families. 

Negotiate with providers to deliver 
an Extra Care Scheme. A suitable 
site which would meet with elected 
member support is the site at 
Harrogate Road identified for social 
housing  

 AD Estates and 
Properties 

4.6 Ensure the delivery of 
an appropriate vehicle 
to deliver a 
Neighbourhood Plan in 
order to use the 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy for 
the benefit of Idle and 
Thackley Ward.  

  AD planning, 
Transportation and 
Highways/ 
Inspired N/hoods 
Idle and Thackley 
Neighbourhood 
Plan Group. 

4.7 Improve the success of 
the businesses in Idle 

Produce a regeneration plan for 
Idle Village and its environs 
including an extension to the car 
park, improvements to green 
infrastructure and heritage 
buildings.  

Local residents can join the Idle 
and Thackley Neighbourhood 
Plan Group. 

AD planning, 
Transportation and 
Highways/ 
Inspired N/hoods 
Idle and Thackley 
Neighbourhood 
Plan Group. 

5.0 Children and Young People 

P
age 180



 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
How residents can contribute. 

Named person 
responsible 

5.1 Provision of and support 
to youth sessions, youth 
clubs and positive 
activities for young 
people. 
(see table below) 
 

Youth Worker to carryout detached 
work to monitor build-up of young 
people and start to build positive 
working relationships and reduce 
anti-social behaviour. 
 
Youth Service to provide a 
programme of activities engaging 
young people in music, arts and 
sports. 
 
Youth Worker to deliver youth 
sessions two evening per week and 
support play work at Springfield 
Centre and develop a junior leader 
volunteer to support provisions. 
 
The Youth Service to provide 
support to the Springwood Summer 
Camp 
 
The Youth Service to support the 
Springfield Centre to redevelop its 
offer to children, and young people 
to ensure it is sustainability.  
 

People can get training to enable 
them to help deliver youth 
sessions. 
 
Watch over young people to keep 
them safe and report to the Police 
incidents of concern. 
 
Young People can promote 
activities to their friends and 
members of their family. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
People can participate in activities 
at the Springfield in order to raise 
profit for the centre for the 
purpose of reinvesting in activities 
for young people. 

Youth 
Service/Springfield 
Centre 
 
 
 
 

5.2 Implement and support 
the Community led 
school improvement 
project (Springwood) 
which is aimed at 
introducing a range of 

The Springfield Centre has 
employed a Community Literature 
Champion.  
 
Neighbourhood Services and the 
Youth Service to provide support to 

Volunteer to support the 
Springwood Partnership to 
develop a project plan to deliver 
the Community Based 
Improvement Project. 
 

The Springfield 
Centre  
Ward Councillors / 
Youth 
Service/Inspired 
Neighbourhoods 

P
age 181



positive learning 
experiences for children 
and young people. 
 
Parkland and 
Greengates Primary 
Schools and Hanson 
Academy are judged by 
OFSTED to require 
improvement and have 
a high number of pupils 
who are eligible for free 
school meals or in need 
of additional support. 
The purpose of this 
project is to raise the 
attainment of this group 
of young people and in 
particular to support 
their transition into 
secondary school.  

project through different work 
streams such as social resilience 
work and environmental awareness 
work and the use of Council 
resources and facilities.  
Youth Service to provide a 
programme of summer activities for 
children and young people. 
 
Youth Service to train youth and 
adult volunteers to support youth 
work sessions.  
 
The Council’s library service to 
support the expansion of Idle library 
to provide activities for children and 
young people in community 
settings.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
Local people can volunteer to 
support a range of activities and 
services such as homework clubs, 
literacy champions and to help run 
a community library. 
 
 
Ward Councillors to facilitate 
discussions with services and 
local businesses to help young 
people attain work experience and 
placements.  
 
   
 
 
 

and Hanson 
Academy, the 
Primary partnership, 
the Early Help 
Team and the 
Councils Asset 
Management Team. 
 
 
 
  

 
5.3 

 
Support the re-
programming the work  
Done by the Trustees of 
the Springfield Centre to 
deliver a programme 
that provides 
opportunities and 
activities for all the 
young people living in 
the ward. 
 
 

 
Ensure that the Springfield Centre 
is included in the Bradford Active 
strategy. 

 
Volunteer to help 
out/coach/mentor at the 
Springfield Centre. 
 
Pay to participate in activities such 
as health classes. The money 
paid to the Centre will be used to 
support the Springfield Centres 
programme activity for children 
and young people.   

 
Springfield 
Trustees, the Youth 
Services and the 
Springwood 
Partnership.  
 
AD Sport and 
Culture 

P
age 182



 
5.4 

 
Ensure the introduction 
of a co-ordinated Early 
Help Offer 

 
Ensure that the Early help Offer is 
embedded in Idle and Thackley 
ward and that a local scheme is 
developed to offer support to 
families. 

 
Residents can contribute by 
offering to support Families 
through a local based scheme 

 
SD Children’s 
Servioces 

May to August 2017 – Youth Worker, National Citizen Service, volunteers from Springfield Centre and Ward Officer regularly 
met to plan and organise 7 days of activities for young people during school holidays. Activities included drama workshops, 
environmental clean ups around Springfield Centre and art workshops. The aim was to develop the skills of young people aged 
15 – 17 by giving them personal challenges, team challenges and real challenges to building social action.  
 
There are 915 children living in Idle and Thackley ward aged between 12 and 18, 48% are female and 52% are male. 90% of 
these young people are white British. Less than half of them (545) attend Immanuel College the remainder are split between 52 
other places of education. 19 young people (as of 31.10.2016) are on the role of a Pupil Referral Unit. There are 3 homes for 
Children in Public Care and 15 children placed in foster care and 15 children from Idle and Thackley placed in foster care 
elsewhere. There are 16 children subject of a Child Protection Plan and 18 children subject to Child in Need plan. There are 18 
young people with a statement of SEN and 31 with an Education, Health and Care Plan.  31 Families are working with the 
Families First Plan and there are 12 children at risk from child sexual exploitation.  
 
Parkland and Greenwood Primary schools and Hanson Academy are judged by OFSTED to be requiring improvement. The 
remainder are either good or outstanding. 

6. Stronger and Safer Communities  

 
Code 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
How residents can contribute. 

Named person 
responsible 

6.1 Work with partners to 
strengthen communities 
and encourage active 
participation. 

Neighbourhoods Services to 
support established voluntary 
groups in community clean ups by 
providing equipment, working with 
groups and removing waste. 
 
Promote and publicise community 
events / activities. 

Volunteers from Idle & Thackley 
Active already carry a range of 
environmental projects such as 
litter picking public footpaths and 
cutting back overgrown 
vegetation. 
 
Local residents and neighbours 
can volunteer to organise 
community activities to encourage 

Ward Officer 

P
age 183



neighbourliness. 

 
6.2 

 
Residents of Apperley 
Bridge are supported to 
ensure they have a 
Flood Plan. 

 
Neighbourhood services and the 
Councils Emergency Planning 
Team can facilitate the production 
of the Plan and support residents to 
maintain it.  

 
Residents can participate in the 
production and maintenance of 
the Neighbourhood and Individual 
Flood Plans.   

 
Emergency 
Planning Team 

2 August 2017 – Ward Officer and members of Idle Active Group dismantled fence, pulled out weeds and detritus and swept 
public footpath at junction of Woodfield Close / Thorp Garth.  
April to September 2017 – Members of Idle Active group undertook litter picking, weeding and bulb planting projects around Idle 
village. The group meet once per month to undertake environmental projects and are supported by Ward Councillors. 
August 2017 – Ward Officer supported Friends Of Greengates Group to look for funding towards organising a Christmas Lights 
celebration event. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Little Horton Ward Plan 2017 – 2018 progress report  
 

1.  Cleaner Greener 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

1.1 Littering and 
flytipping  
(illegal dumping) 
 
 

 Coordinate Council Clean Team work 
including litter picking and litterbin 
emptying in public streets across the 
Ward.  

 Council Wardens - educational and 
enforcement role with local residents and 
businesses.  

 Community litter picks by 
residents associations, 
neighbourhood groups, youth 
groups etc. supported by 
Council where possible to 
encourage active citizens. 

 NHS Douglas Mill staff and 

 Area Operations 
Manager, 

 Ward Officer 

 CD Workers 

 Trident 

 Trident 
Community 

P
age 184



 Incommunities environmental teams litter 
picking on their estates.   

 Warden and Ward Officer involvement in 
litter picking and removal of flytipping 

 environmental projects with schools 
presentations to community groups 

 local issuing of Household Waste Site 
permits 

 Helping residents download the Council 
App 

 Beautiful BD5 projects e.g. yard/garden 
competition -linking in with local 
organisations to enable this to happen 

 Joint clean ups with Trident Community 
Councillors 

 Organise Clean up week 2 x year – March 
and September 

 Leaflet in EU languages being produced 
outlining  basic waste responsibilities  

 Link in with Community Payback on 
cleaning and cutting back snickets and 
footpaths 

 Promoting Bulk Waste service as cheap 
alternative to getting a skip 

 Warden drop in’s / surgeries 

 Develop Street Champions in hotspot 
areas 

 Support Recycling week events – in June 
 

trustees involvement in litter 
picks around their building. 

 Residents reporting flytipping by 
phone, by website or by using 
the Bradford Council app  

 Residents using Council Bulk 
Waste service. 

 Residents using Council 
household waste sites. 

 Landlords working with their 
tenants to clear dumping left 
outside their properties. 

 Develop Street Champions in 
hotspot areas 

 Beautiful BD5 projects e.g. 
yard/garden competition -linking 
in with local organisations 

 

Council 

 Residents 
groups 

 Local 
businesses 

 Schools 

 Probation - 
Community 
Payback 

 Better Place 
 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Ongoing work of the Clean Team and Wardens in litter picking and removing flytipping 

 Wardens, Ward Officer and Enforcement Officer education and enforcement action where needed and appropriate and 
possible 

 Referring problem rights of way to Probation Service for cutting back and clearing of dumped items including Parkside 
Road snicket and Horton Park primary snicket. Also on-going project by Community Payback Team around Canterbury 

P
age 185



and the Arc in particular 

 Wardens drop-ins at schools for parent coffee mornings and at local Community Centres across the ward to answer 
queries, promote Bulk waste and Recycling services and get people using the Council app  

 Beautiful BD5 week held Sept 17involved fewer local organisations than previously – this work needs re-thinking  

 Applied for funding for annual Beautiful BD5 Garden Competition to run over the summer.  Seeking again to involve 
Cedar Court Hotel and  to encourage community pride with residents maintaiingn their gardens and yards 

 Madni Centre community champions 
 

2.  Safer Communities 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . .  

 
Named people 
responsible 

2.1 Drug dealing 
drug taking and 
Anti-social 
behaviour 
 

 Police and Wardens encourage 
anonymous forms of reporting by 
residents.  

 Promotion of Crimestoppers as a safe 
way to anonymously report information.  

 Promote Neighbourhood Watch and 
Online Watch for residents to receive 
information and report incidents safely.  

 Targeted Police surgeries at venues 
community use such as schools  

 Set up / Support members of residents 
groups and neighbourhood associations 
to report incidents  

 Youth Service sessions providing positive 
activities for young people. 

 Police patrols and action to deal with 
incidents, locations and offenders. 

 Police and Council ASB teams take action 
such as warning letters, escalating this 
where appropriate. 

 Police / PCSO engagement with residents 
including those from different ethnic 
backgrounds whose lifestyles (such as 

 Reporting incidents by 
community (online, by email, by 
phone to NPT and to 
Crimestoppers. 

 Residents Associations and 
Neighbourhood Watches to 
support residents and 
encourage safe reporting of 
information.   

 Community run positive 
activities for young people. 

 

 Police 

 Ward Officer 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Schools 

 Social housing 
landlords 
including 
Incommunities 

 Area Operations 
Manager 

 Trident 
Community 
Council 

 Youth Service 

P
age 186



drinking in public places) may clash with 
others. 

 Support to voluntary youth organisations 
to work together to obtain funding and 
meet need for positive activities for young 
people. 

 Safeguarding week events – in October 
   

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Crimestoppers promoted and other crime prevention information passed on to community contacts 

 Positive activities for young people run by a range of providers, including Youth Service and Community organisations 

 Report incidents on residents behalf – residents can be extremely loathe to report drug dealing and ASB even 
anonymously as they fear the persons concerned will work out who reported them –working with partners through the 
Ward Partnership Team 

 Ongoing work between Council and Incommunities to agree use of CCTV on street lighting columns on Canterbury 
estate 

 Youth Service and other organisations supporting volunteers to help with local youth sessions 
 

2.2 Inappropriate 
parking 
particularly by 
parents / carers 
around schools. 
 

 Schools and Children’s Centre road safety 
work with children including at after school 
clubs. 

 Regular Wardens educational and 
enforcement work around primary 
schools. 

 Talks to parents groups by Police or Ward 
Officer on parking and road safety. 

 Walk to school week – May 16-20th, 
including ‘Shoesday’ 

 World Health Day  - in April 

 Bike week event – in April 

 Trident Bike library 
 

 Be prepared to park a short 
distance from schools and walk 
part of the journey where 
possible and appropriate.  - 
Walk to school week – May 16-
20th, including ‘Shoesday’ 

 Support school walking bus and 
other projects 

 Police 

 Ward Officer 

 Warden  

 Road Safety 
Team 

 Schools 

 Children’s 
Centres 

 Trident 

 Trident 
Community 
Council 

 Better Start 

 Parents 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Regular enforcement at schools in Little Horton, including at Rainbow school – however it is difficult to enforce as cars 
move on quickly 

P
age 187



 Drop ins and work with parents groups in schools 

 Work of Better Start in encouraging families to be more active including walking children to school 

 Sessional work with young people by Youth Workers includes walking and exercise 

 Bradford Trident Bike Library offers free bike hire for up to a week (renewable) and supports local schools with bike hire 
and maintenance 

 

4.  Incomes Skills and Housing 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

4.1 Support with 
fundraising for 
community 
activities and 
projects and 
organisations to 
work together 
avoiding 
duplication and 
enhancing 
provision  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 BD5 Worker Lunches to encourage 
people to share good practice and work 
across organisational boundaries 

 CD workers and Ward Officer to help 
organisations to develop plans and 
actions that meet local needs  

 CD workers and Ward Officer to support 
local organisations in developing projects 
and activities and applying for funding 

 CD workers and Ward Officer to support 
volunteers involved in local organisations 
where needed 

 CD workers, Ward Officer and Youth 
Service to support people considering 
volunteering locally, including informal 
training and connecting them to local 
organisations where appropriate 

 Run funding / forward strategy event for 
voluntary organisations. 

 Community Chest and Community 
Council grants available to support local 
projects. 

 CVS support to voluntary groups 

 Bfunded information on funding 
opportunities. 

 BD5 Worker Lunches to 
encourage people to share 
good practice and work across 
organisational boundaries 

 Recognising needs locally and 
working together to plan to meet 
these where possible and 
feasible. 

 Residents as street champions 
and trustees of local 
organisations working locally. 

 

 Ward Officer 

 CD Workers 

 Trident  

 Trident 
Community 

     Council 

 Voluntary and 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Residents 
 

P
age 188



 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 
 

 BD5 Neighbourhood Lunch once a month art Parkside Centre– information and signposting will be available at these as 
well as a low cost food market 

 BFunded - information on funding opportunities passed on to local groups and contacts 

 Support groups and projects applying for funding from either Trident Community Council or our Community Chest  and 
signpost to CABAD support with bigger funding applications and other support 

 

5.0 Children and Young People 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

5.1 Provision of and 
support to 
youth  
sessions, 
youth clubs 
and positive 
activities for 
young people  

 Deliver youth work sessions – The Arc, 
West Bowling Centre, Parkside, including 
provision for disabled young people at 
Parkside.  

 Create opportunities to increase youth 
work provision.   

 Deliver positive activity holiday programs  

 Train youth and adult volunteers to 
volunteer with young people and support 
local youth clubs.  

 Support young people’s educational 
achievements.  

 Recognising needs locally and 
working together to plan to meet 
these where possible and 
feasible e.g. older youth group 
for Canterbury 

 Residents as street champions 
and trustees of local 
organisations working locally 

 Work towards increased 
community use of the Arc Youth 
Centre.  

 Support Safeguarding Week 
events – October. 

 Local volunteers to support 
youth activities.  

 Run holiday and summer 
scheme provision  

 

 Youth Service 

 Ward Officer 

 CD Worker 

 Trident  

 Trident 
Community 

     Council 

 Voluntary and 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Residents  

 Better Start 
Bradford  

 Better Place 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Youth service sessions at Parkside Centre Saturday mornings and at The Arc twice a week.  A range of other youth and 
play sessions are run by local community organisations.e.g. After school club run by one in a Million at the Arc, WBYI 

P
age 189



sessions, sessions for young people at other community venues, including  St Stephens Church,  Madni Centre etc. 

 School holiday provision 

 Free training for volunteers is available through the Youth Service for both adults and young people who want to run or 
support youth clubs or activities locally for children and young people 

 Support and services provided by, or in partnership with, Better Start Bradford and Better Place 
 

6. Stronger Communities (Community Support) 

 
 

 
Priority 

 
What can Services contribute? 

 
People can . . . 

 
Named people 
responsible 

6.1 Relationships 
between 
people of 
different faiths 
and culture 
 
 
 

 Create and support social opportunities 
for people from different faith, cultural and 
ethnic backgrounds to mix and break 
down barriers 

 Explore feasibility of running an interfaith 
event – perhaps as part of national 
Interfaith Week in November. 

 Youth Service cohesion event for young 
people - in August. 

 Youth Service work with young people on 
Black History Month - in October.  

 Support ‘Big lunch’ events – in June 

 Support International Women’s Day 
events – in March, including Youth 
Service 

 Police /PCSO / Warden engagement with 
residents from different cultural / ethnic 
backgrounds whose lifestyles (such as 
public drinking) may clash with others. 

 

 BD5 Faith Forum bringing 
together a range of faiths to 
work on common issues and 
interests  

 Community groups encourage 
social mixing and relationship 
building in a safe and fun way 

 Neighbours being neighbourly 

 Support International Women’s 
Day events – in March 

 Support ‘Big lunch’ events – in 
June 

 Explore feasibility of running an 
interfaith event - national 
Interfaith Week in November. 
 

 Trident 

 Trident 
Community 
Council 

 Schools 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Better Start 

 Better Place 

 Residents 
 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Community events at various locations across Little Horton encouraging social mixing. 

 Youth Service International Women’s Day event in March 

 Day to day work of Wardens, PCSO’s, Housing Managers and other workers in tackling community issues that can 
create community tensions  

P
age 190



 Support monthly BD5 Neighbourhood Lunches  

 Schools, Children’s Centres and other community organisations running stay and play and parents forums/ sessions 
 

6.2 Support, 
encouragement 
and 
opportunities 
for residents to 
volunteer to get 
involved in a 
wide range of 
activities and 
projects 
 

 Work with young people, people of 
different racial backgrounds, faiths, 
cultures and ethnicities to encourage their 
own involvement in local projects. 

 Support the Big Lunch – in June and link 
into national Volunteers week 1-7th June. 

 Youth Service recruit and train volunteers 
to build capacity in sessions and increase 
the support to work with young people. 

 Support Volunteering week events - June 

 Involvement of local residents in 
residents groups and other 
voluntary organisations.  

 Involvement of volunteers at 
local community centres and 
faith organisations and in 
running activities for others. 

 Support the Big Lunch – in June 
and national Volunteers week 1-
7th June 

 Ward Officer 

 Youth Service 

 Voluntary & 
Community 
organisations, 
including faith 
groups 

 Residents 

 Better Start 
Bradford 

 Better Place 
 

  UPDATE MARCH 18 

 Free training for volunteers available through the Youth Service for both adults and young people who want to run or 
support youth clubs or play sessions locally  

 ‘People Can Make a difference’ website highlighting voluntary community action  

 Bradford East Facebook group highlighting good news and community action across the area 
 

 
 

P
age 191



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 ANNUAL UPDATE ON ROAD SAFETY IN BRADFORD EAST
	9 27 WINGFIELD MOUNT, BRADFORD - REQUEST FOR A DISABLED PERSONS PARKING PLACE
	10 PETITION - WESTFIELD LANE, BRADFORD
	11 SAFER ROADS DEVOLVED BUDGET
	12 COMMUNITY CHEST BUDGET ALLOCATION 2017/18 AND COMMUNITY CHEST GRANTS FUNDING 2018/19
	Appendix to Document "E"

	13 BRADFORD EAST WARD PLANS
	Appendix "A" to Document "F"
	Appendix "B" to Document "F"


